
Agenda compiled by: 
Guy Close 
Governance Services 
Tel: 24 74356 

 
 

Principal Scrutiny Advisor: 
Sandra Newbould 
Tel: 24 74792 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (CHILDREN AND FAMILIES) 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds, LS1 1UR on 

Thursday, 11th October, 2012 at 9.45 am 
 

(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.15 a.m.) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
J Chapman (Chair) - Weetwood; 

B Gettings - Morley North; 

C Gruen - Bramley and Stanningley; 

A Hussain - Gipton and Harehills; 

A Khan - Burmantofts and Richmond Hill; 

A Lamb - Wetherby; 

P Latty - Guiseley and Rawdon; 

M Rafique - Chapel Allerton; 

K Renshaw - Ardsley and Robin Hood; 

A Sobel - Moortown; 

B Urry - Roundhay; 

 
Co-opted Members (Voting) 

Mr E A Britten - Church Representative (Catholic) 
Vacancy - Church Representative (Church of England) 
Ms A Craven - Parent Governor Representative (Primary) 
Ms J Ward - Parent Governor Representative (Secondary) 
Ms N Cox - Parent Governor Representative (Special) 

 
Co-opted Members (Non-Voting) 

Ms C Foote - Teacher Representative 
Ms C Raftery - Teacher Representative 
Mrs S Hutchinson - Early Years Representative 
Ms T Kayani - Leeds Youth Work Partnership Representative 
Ms J Morris-Boam - Young Lives Leeds 

 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded). 
 
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting).  
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution: 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows: 

 
 No exempt items have been identified on 

this agenda. 
 

 



 

 
C 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
AND OTHER INTERESTS 
 
To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable 
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31 
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-18 of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct.  Also to declare 
any other significant interests which the Member 
wishes to declare in the public interest, in 
accordance with paragraphs 19-20 of the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND 
NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES 
 
To receive any apologies for absence and 
notification of substitutes. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES - 27TH SEPTEMBER 2012 
 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 27th September 2012. 
 
(Minutes to follow) 
 

 

7   
 

  SCRUTINY INQUIRY - FOUNDATION YEARS - 
PROVIDING THE BEST START IN LIFE FOR 
CHILDREN TO SUCCEED - SESSION 2 
 
To receive and consider the reports of the Director 
of Children’s Services and Health Service 
Practitioners which provides an overview of the key 
issues relating to children and their families in the 
foundation years. 
 

1 - 76 



 

 
D 

8   
 

  LEEDS SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN BOARD 
ANNUAL REPORT 2011/12 
 
To receive and consider a report form the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development presenting the 
Annual Report of Leeds Safeguarding Children 
Board 2011/12. 
 

77 - 
120 

9   
 

  WORK SCHEDULE 
 
To receive and consider a report form the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development outlining the 
Scrutiny Board’s work schedule for the remainder 
of the current municipal year. 
 

121 - 
144 

10   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
Thursday, 8th November 2012 at 9.45am in the 
Civic Hall, Leeds. 
(Pre meeting for Board Members at 9.15am) 
 
 

 

 
 



 

 

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) 

Date: 11th October 2012 

Subject: Foundation Years - providing the best start in life for Children to succeed – 
Session 2  

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

 
1.0     Purpose of this report 

1.1  At its meeting on the 20th of June 2012, the Scrutiny Board resolved to undertake an 
Inquiry looking at foundation years (age 0- 5) and how services in Leeds are 
provided to promote the best start in life for children, to equip them with the skills to 
succeed and promote their social mobility.  

 
1.2 The purpose of the inquiry is to make an assessment of and, where appropriate, 

make recommendations on the following areas: 
 

• The universal and targeted health, wellbeing and developmental support in 
place for Children and their families during foundation years (0-5) in Leeds.  

• Levels of support and engagement with families particularly those that are 
disadvantaged or hard to reach 

• Provision and delivery services, particularly those delivered in partnership 
with others such as the NHS and private and voluntary sector, the promotion 
of services and how accessible these services are. 

• To determine how well Leeds is working to identify challenges and take 
appropriate measures to improve outcomes for children and their families. 

• To identify how take up of free early education provision can be improved in 
the more deprived areas of Leeds. 

 
1.3  Terms of reference were agreed by the Scrutiny Board on the 23rd of August 2012 

and the first session of the inquiry was conducted on the 27th of September 2012.  
 
 

 Report author:  Sandra Newbould 

Tel:  0113 2474792 

Agenda Item 7

Page 1



 

 

2.0 Submission of evidence – October Meeting  
 
2.1 In accordance with the terms of reference the Scrutiny Board requested information 

on the following areas:  
 

Supporting and Engaging with Families 
 

• Health and wellbeing 
o Healthy child programme( 0 – 5 years), the role of Health Visitors and 

the Family Nurse Partnership. 
o Service commissioning, links between practitioners and professionals, 

provision and the delivery of integrated services, communication and 
information sharing. 

 

• Access to services and the provision of support through Childrens Centres   
such as ‘Early Start’. 

 

• Targeted Services, Early intervention, Parental support and parenting 
programmes,  evidence based intervention, troubled families.  

  
2.2 During April 2012 a working group of the Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and 

Adult Social Care) considered evidence specifically relating to health inequalities for 
children under 5 years of age. During this session information relating to the Family 
Nurse Partnership was considered, an approach which was wholly supported by the 
working group. A number of proposed draft recommendations have been 
determined which are listed below for the information of the Scrutiny Board 
(Children and Families ): 

 

• The city needs to target services towards the most deprived communities to 
tackle the entrenched social inequalities that form the wider determinants of 
health – poverty, poor housing, poor environment, low educational outcomes, 
unemployment, low aspiration.   

• the Family Nurse Partnership (FNP) approach is wholeheartedly supported, with 
the outcome of the formal review to be reported back to the Health and 
Wellbeing and Adult Social Care Board.  Subject to the outcome of the review of 
the pilot areas, consideration to be given to expanding the approach across the 
City.  

• Concern about the significant impact on families in the more deprived areas of 
Leeds who are at higher risk of suffering health inequalities. 

• Concern about access to information and services in the more deprived areas of 
Leeds.  

 
3.0 Evidence 
 

Representatives from Children’s Services and NHS Airedale Bradford and Leeds 
will be attending this inquiry session. Supporting information has been provided 
which is appended as follows:  
 

• Appendix A – The report of the Director of Childrens Service 

• Appendix B – Reducing inequalities in infant mortality in Leeds 

• Appendix C – Preparation for Birth and Beyond 

• Appendix D - Family Nurse Partnership Report 

Page 2



 

 

• Appendix E – Infant Mental Health Services 
 

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

Where the board deems it appropriate to undertake in consultation in order to 
conduct this inquiry or gather necessary evidence consultation will be undertaken.  

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration. 

4.2.1 The Equality Improvement Priorities 2011 to 2015 have been developed to ensure 
our legal duties are met under the Equality Act 2010. The priorities will help the 
council to achieve its ambition to be the best City in the UK and ensure that as a 
city work takes place to reduce disadvantage, discrimination and inequalities of 
opportunity. 

4.2.2 Equality and diversity will be a consideration throughout the Scrutiny Inquiry and 
due regard will be given to equality through the use of evidence, written and verbal, 
outcomes from consultation and engagement activities.  

4.2.3  The Scrutiny Board may engage and involve interested groups and individuals (both 
internal and external to the council) to inform recommendations. 

4.2.4 Where an impact has been identified this will be reflected in the final inquiry report, 
post inquiry. Where a Scrutiny Board recommendation is agreed the individual, 
organisation or group responsible for implementation or delivery should give due 
regard to equality and diversity, conducting impact assessments where it is deemed 
appropriate. 

4.3 Council Policies and City Priorities 

This inquiry will assist in achieving outcomes and priorities as defined in the 
Children and Young Peoples Plan 2011-2-15 and the Child Friendly City Priority 
Plan. 

4.4 Resources and Value for Money 

There is no resource or value for money implications relating to this report. At the 
conclusion of the inquiry any identified impact will be reported in the final inquiry 
report.  

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

None 

4.6 Risk Management 

None 

4.7      Recommendations 

The Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) is recommended to:  

Page 3



 

 

4.7.1 Note the information contained within this report, and consider the information 
appended to this report and presented to the Board on the 11th of October 2012.  

4.7.2 Make recommendations as deemed appropriate.  

4.7.3   Note that the terms of reference may incorporate additional information during the 
inquiry should the Children and Families Scrutiny Board identify any further scope 
for inquiry or request further witness or evidence.   

4.8 Background documents1  

None 

  

 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works.  
 

Page 4



 

 

Report of Director of Children’s Services 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Children and Families)  

 

Date:  11th October 2012 

Subject: Session 2: Foundation Years - providing the best start in life for children to 
succeed 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

1. Summary of main issues  

This report is to inform the second meeting of the Scrutiny Board Following into the 
inquiry into the foundation years (age 0- 5). The June meeting identified term of reference, 
around the inquiry, whilst the September meeting considered the overview of services, 
existing provision, outcomes and any gaps in services. The focus for the meeting in 
October is around how services support and engage with families. The board will consider 
evidence from health around the healthy child programme, the family nurse partnership, 
commissioning of services, communication and information sharing, access to the Early 
Start Teams through Children’s Centres and health visiting services, an overview of 
Targeted Services for children and the new ‘Families First model, funded through the 
Troubled Families programme and more information on the profile of young children 
becoming looked after. 
 
2. Recommendations 

Scrutiny Board are asked to consider and note the contents of the report as part of their 
wider inquiry. 

 

Report author: Andrea 
Richardson  

Tel:  0113 2243092 

Page 5



 

 

 

1. Purpose of this report 

1.1 This report provides an overview to Children’s Scrutiny Board of the key issues 
relating supporting and engaging with families: 

 • Access to services and the provision of support through Childrens Centres 
  such as ‘Early Start’. 

 • Targeted Services, early intervention. 

 • Parental support and parenting programmes. 

 • Service commissioning, links between practitioners and professionals, 
provision and the delivery of integrated services, communication and 
information sharing. 

 • Families First, funded from the Troubled Families initiative. 

 • Service commissioning, links between practitioners and professionals, 
provision and the delivery of integrated services, communication and 
information sharing. 

 • More detail around the profile of young children becoming looked after by the 
local authorities. 

2. Background information 

2.1 As presented in the initial report for Scrutiny Board a wide range of partners 
across health, Leeds City Council, the maintained, voluntary and private sector 
deliver provision and services to support children in the foundation years. This 
includes health, early learning, child-care, leisure and support services. The child-
care market in Leeds is delivered through a mixed market economy with a 
maintained sector element through schools and Children's Centres and a vibrant 
and strong private and voluntary sector, including over 900 childminders. 
Partnerships across the stakeholders have been developed over time and have 
been effective in improving services. However significant challenges for Leeds 
remain. Although attainment of young children overall has improved, infant 
mortality rates have decreased and 95% of 3 and 4 year olds take up the offer of 

Page 6



 

 

free early education there are still considerable issues for improvement: 

• The birth rate in Leeds is increasing significantly with 2,434 (32%) more 
babies born last year than ten years ago; and 821 (9%) more last year than 
five years ago (academic years); 

• The detrimental effects of deprivation on health and wellbeing, both direct 
and indirect, is a strong and consistent theme; 

• The attainment gap at the end of the Foundation Stage, between the 
lowest 20% of achievers and the median level remains significantly wider 
than the national figure; 

• The level of take up a free early education is lower in areas of significant 
disadvantage; 

• There has been a significant increase in the number of under 4’s becoming 
looked after in the last 6 months. 

 

3. Main issues 

3.1 Access to services and the provision of support through Childrens Centres - 
‘Early Start’ Teams. 

 

 There are 57 Early Start Children’s Centres across the City and these are 
integrating with Health Visiting services to create 25 Early Start Teams.  They 
provide a range of services for families including childcare either provided on site 
or in a formal agreement with a near by provider.  The teams deliver family 
outreach and support services both in the Centre and in family homes.  The 
integration with health visiting is enabling information to be shared (through a 
formal information sharing agreement) between Health and Children’s Centres so 
that no families are missed.  The Healthy Child Pathway is then delivered by the 
right member of the team and resources are maximised to ensure all families 
receive the right service at the right time.  A key feature of Early Start Teams is 
the joint allocation of cases, a universal, universal plus and universal partnership 
plus level of service, better working between Leeds Community Health care Trust 
and LCC and a streamlined service for families.  The Early Start Teams contribute 
to the three obsessions – all LAC and those on a CPP are registered and invited 
to engage with the centre, attendance and attainment are monitored. Young 
parents are supported into readiness for employment, there are good relationships 
established with Job Centre Plus support this. 

More recently working with social care colleagues has been a focus for 
development, a lead social worker has been identified for each Children’s Centre; 
a referral pathway from social workers to Children’s Centres has been established 
for pregnant women who have significant issues and Children’s Centre will ensure 

Page 7



 

 

that children with child protection plans, or who are Looked After by the local 
authority are offered services. They are also working with social care colleagues 
to develop ’family assessment’ skills, where the child is at risk of becoming looked 
after, to contribute to court proceedings if required, but primarily to engage the 
family in good models of parenting.  

The Early Start information sharing agreement between Leeds Community Health 
Trust and LCC is being used by the Department for Education as a model of good 
practice nationally in,  ‘Information Sharing in the Foundation Years’  a report from 
the task and finish group led by Jean Gross, to be published later this year. The 
case study explains some of the process undertaken: 

 

3.2 Targeted Services, early intervention 

 

 For school age children, we are developing our local partnerships, or clusters, 
which bring together a range of services involved in providing universal services 
for school aged children and families. Our clusters are local partnerships that 
include, amongst others, schools, governors, Police, Youth Service, Youth 
Offending Service, Children’s Centres, Housing services, third sector, health, local 
elected members and a senior representative from children’ services. 

We are growing the capacity of clusters to provide Early Intervention and 
Prevention support to local children and families by developing the role of the 
Targeted Services Leader. 

Targeted Services Leaders (TSLs) will work with clusters using a ‘TOP 100’ 
methodology to identify children and families who need additional support.  The 
“top 100” methodology is a fluid record of the families who are identified as 
vulnerable with multiple additional needs in the locality. To be effective, input into 
the top 100 process should come from all cluster stakeholders across education 
settings, children’s settings, health settings, community safety settings, housing 
settings and adult settings.  

TSLs are tasked to ensure that each family on the top 100 list benefits from 

• A shared assessment (CAF or equivalent assessment) 

• Requisite team around the family 

• Lead family practitioner 

• Shared intervention plan 

• Team around the family communication strategy 

TSLs are tasked to ensure that robust “support and guidance” processes are in 
place within the cluster to galvanise local cluster resources to provide appropriate 
early intervention.  Where available, access to targeted mental health support 

Page 8



 

 

(TAMHS) is secured through support and guidance. Where more specialist 
interventions are required such as multi systemic therapy, family group 
conferencing, Signpost family intervention programme or support from the Leeds 
family intervention service, TSLs will broker these arrangements, ensuring that 
these resources are appropriately targeted. 

Referrals that do not require the support of a Specialist but needs are identified 
require a different level of support. In these circumstances cases will be referred 
directly to a cluster, or if below school age, to the local children’s centres.  

For families whose level of support is to be de-escalated help is provided at a 
stage beyond early intervention, and is built around preventing problems from re-
occurring. Another element of the role of Targeted Services and Early Start 
Teams is supporting the safe de-escalation of support for children and families 
from specialist intervention to less intensive cluster based care and support. 
Cluster based support and guidance or other multi agency meetings are the 
conduit for developing safe de-escalation plans.   

 

3.3 Parental support and parenting programmes 

 

 The Family support and Parenting service came together in January  2012 and 
brought together  staff from 4 teams including the Family Information Service at 
the Parent Partnership Service.  The service is building up relationship with  staff 
in clusters  who deliver a range of  parenting and family support services with the 
aim of improving practice .These  staff will have a variety of employers and  job 
titles but are key personnel  in terms of  delivering the improved outcomes 
 required in line with the 3 obsessions .  

Resources vary across clusters in line with  the funding formula  and  this  can 
mean that in smaller clusters there may be fewer staff to support staff of school 
aged children . This means that  they need to have the skills, resources and 
support to in place to maximise their impact and to work well with targeted and 
specialist services  when the need arises   

Leeds Education Challenge has  a vision of  a strong and successful network 
of  well trained family practitioners, providing collective leadership, sharing best 
practice, and providing peer support and professional development is at the heart 
of this strand.    

Progress to date: 

• An engagement and consultation exercise has taken place with cluster 
mangers  and children’s centre managers on their priorities for support     

• A similar exercise is taking place with schools through a survey and the 
recent Primary heads conference. 

Page 9



 

 

• A steering group has come together made up of Head teachers, Cluster 
managers , Children’s centre managers, Targeted service leaders, and 
Community representative  to ensure that this work  has a joined up 
approach and  work/ fits with the targeted services developments and the 
Families first work.   

• A  menu of  a cluster family support and  parenting offer  has been developed 
and is with clusters  for them to  identify and feed back on their  provision  

In partnership with targeted services the service is delivering a City and Guild 
qualification “Working with parents to family support and parenting staff initially 
focussed o n the family intervention services.  

Support for Evidence based parenting course for parents /cares and families is 
now being targeted in line with the  3 obsessions . 

Staff teams are focusing on clusters /areas to ensure that they are able to best 
support practitioners in the areas whether they are employed by schools, clusters, 
 children’s services or partner agencies . 

 

3.4 Service commissioning, links between practitioners and professionals, 
provision and the delivery of integrated services, communication and 
information sharing. 

 The DfE funded TaMHS project which was successfully piloted in 3 clusters in 
Leeds 2007-10, then expanded to 9 clusters 2010-12. It aims to improve the 
mental health of school age pupils.  The model is based on: building on existing 
effective universal practice; evidence based approaches; capacity building in 
schools; specialist mental health ‘in-reach’ support in local multi professional 
teams; early Intervention. The expansion had a broader remit to work with families 
where necessary, with a number of family support workers commissioned to offer 
mental health approaches to resolving family issues alongside specialist mental 
health professionals. 

Summary of outcomes: Both the pilot and the current expansion demonstrate 
“good” measurable improvements in school age children’s mental health using 
Goodman’s Strength and Difficulties Questionnaire[1] (average points 
improvement of 5.1 in pilot; 3.5 in expansion year 1). Outcomes from 355 pupils 
supported through individual, group and one off sessions and 140 families, in the 
current expansion, include:  

“Good” measurable improvements in family issues: average Goals Based 
Outcomes improvement of 4.2 

A greater than average reduction of child protection plans in a cluster: gap 
between the Leeds’ average and the TaMHS expansion average reduced from 18 

                                            
 

Page 10



 

 

(Rates per 10,000 children) to 2. Sample comparisons to statistical neighbours 
without TaMHS improvement in gap of 5.4. 

A greater than average improvement in school attendance: 2.4% increase 
compared to annual Leeds average, of Primary: 0.9% Secondary: 1.4%.  

Feedback shows swifter and easier access and high levels of satisfaction from 
users, families and school staff. ‘The results have been phenomenal and had 
made an enormous difference - a definite shift in cases which previously would 
have escalated to social care.’ - Jill Wood, Head Teacher Little London Primary 
and Cluster Chair.  

Further Expansion Funding 2013-15 

The 2010-12 expansion of TaMHS was funded through a Joint Investment fund – 
seed funding. Leeds City Council and Schools Forum have now agreed the 
proposed contributions for a further expansion to the remaining 14 clusters in the 
city from April 2013. NHS Leeds partnership commitment will soon be confirmed. 
Clusters will then be invited to submit expressions of interest, demonstrating a 
commitment to matched funds. 

3.5 Families First, funded from the Troubled Families initiative 

 Government estimates put the number of troubled families in Leeds at 2190. A 
figure of £4,000 per family will be made available in payment by results and some 
upfront funding (approx £8m over three years). The Department for Communities 
and Local Government (DCLG) have now confirmed Troubled Families that fall 
within the baseline1 for PbR’s over the three years is 1800. 

Year one to start work with 600 troubled families. DCLG would make £3,200 per 
family (80% of the 40% payment by results) available up front with the remaining 
£800 per family to be paid on meeting the success criteria. In the region of £1.9m 
up front and £0.5m in arrears (PbR) when success criteria achieved. 

Year two to start work with another 600 troubled families. DCLG would make 
£2,400 per family (60% of the 40% payment by results) available up front with the 
remaining £1,600 per family to be paid on meeting the success criteria. In the 
region of £1.4m up front and £1.0m in arrears (PbR) when success criteria 
achieved. 

Year three to start work with another 600 troubled families. DCLG would make 
£800 per family (40% of the 40% payment by results) available up front with the 
remaining £3,200 per family to be paid on meeting the success criteria.  

The Targeted Service Leader role in each cluster and the use of the Top 100 

                                            
1
 The funding provided under the Troubled Families payment by results arrangements will be available for five out of six 

troubled families in each upper-tier local authority. This is to avoid paying twice for the same outcomes. Government 
funding has already been provided to support these remaining families. For example, the DWP's £200m+ European 
Social Fund provision, the Work Programme and existing Government-funded Multi-Systemic Therapy pilots. 
 

Page 11



 

 

methodology which we are rolling out to all clusters and the recently developed 
data set is the basis for our confidence in delivering this service and meeting the 
criteria for the upfront funding. 

Leeds has some of the best evidence based practice services in the country, such 
as Multi Systemic Therapy, Family Group Conferencing, the Family Intervention 
Service (modelled on the evidence base of the previous national family 
intervention programme) and a nationally recognised Youth Offending Service. 
Additional funds would enable us to add capacity to our offer and reach more 
families at pace.  

The Troubled Families Programme strategically fits with and complements our 
local approaches and obsessions in the ways we work ‘with’ families and 
focussing on our three obsessions and improving outcomes: reducing LAC; 
increasing school attendance; and decreasing NEET. The National Troubled 
Families Programme fits as part of what we do and how we do it rather than as a 
stand alone initiative and must not be seen as such. The additional funds will not 
only enable us to increase capacity of our front line services but it also enables 
Leeds to further strengthen our ‘architecture’ by rolling out and with increased 
pace: Targeted Service Leaders; the Top 100 methodology; and local cluster 
guidance and support panels. It is crucial, in this current financial climate, to get 
any investment right first time.  

The initial identification of the cohort of families who fit the Troubled Families 
criteria (national and local filters) has been completed.  The lists are now placed 
on a secure website. Targeted Services Leaders have now been appointed to 20 
out of the 25 clusters and they have been tasked to verify the data relating to their 
cluster. An information sharing protocol has been developed which will enable 
TSLs (over a period of time) to coordinate a risk assessment meeting for each of 
the families on the list. This will include appointing a lead practitioner and ensuring 
that a shared assessment is in place. Work is underway to utilise Troubled 
Families money to expand the intensive family support offer in Leeds including 
commissioning a  further MST team and a further Signpost FIP team.  The police, 
probation and prison services have agreed in outline to second staff to a central 
coordinating team to enable new ways of working with families with multiple 
additional needs which include an interface with the criminal justice system. 

3.6 Service commissioning, links between practitioners and professionals, 
provision and the delivery of integrated services, communication and 
information sharing. 

 A range of services are commissioned by Children’s services, more information 
can be provided, including: 

• Family Intervention Service, east, west/north west, south 

• Support for young carers 

Page 12



 

 

• Bookstart 

• ESOL for parents 

• Homestart 

• Leeds counseling 

• Oxford Place 

4. Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

 There will be implications for consultation with providers and stakeholder 
dependent on the findings of the report. 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

 There are key areas of equality and diversity that will need full consideration in 
relation to issues raised. 

4.3 Council policies and City Priorities 

 There are no immediate implication for council policy and governance 

4.4 Resources and value for money  

 Dependant on the outcome of the inquiry. 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

 None 

4.6 Risk Management 

 The issues outlined in this report highlight some of the potential risks in terms of 
wider city priorities 

Page 13



 

 

5. Conclusions 

5.1 This Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) inquiry the foundation years will help 
to identify further investigation and next steps into narrowing the achievement 
gap, supporting the most vulnerable families more appropriately and achieve the 
vision for Leeds to become a Child Friendly City for all of its children.  There is 
good progress in many areas to be built on and learned from. By identifying the 
needs of children at the earliest stage, even before birth, then the right services 
can be provided at the right time to break the cycle of disadvantage experienced 
by some families. 

The inquiry will help to identify where services are working well together and 
promote this, and also identify gaps or areas where services are not fully co-
ordinated. 

6. Recommendations 

6.1 Scrutiny Board are asked to consider and note the contents of the report 

7. Background documents2  

7.1 LAC report – appendix 1. 

 

                                            
2
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works.  
 

Page 14



 

 

APPENDIX 1 
 
Children’s Services – Leeds City Council 
LAC Research Project 
 
 
Background  
 
The vision for Leeds is to have a child friendly city by 2030 and the key to start delivering 

this ambition is the Leeds Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) 2011 to 2015. The 

CYPP describes five strategic outcomes, 11 priorities and 15 key performance indicators 

(KPIs) that will guide and underpin the work and measure impact.  An approach called 

‘outcomes based accountability’ will be the tool to drive improvement and change.  The 

plan is owned by the Leeds Children’s Trust Board (CTB). 

 

One of the five strategic outcomes is that ‘children and young people are safe from harm’. 

This is supported by two specific priorities; to help children to live in safe and supportive 

families and to ensure that the most vulnerable are protected.  The two KPIs that will be 

used to measure the impact of our actions are; to reduce the number of looked after 

children in the Leeds area – the baseline at January 2011 was 1,434 and to reduce the 

number of children and young people with child protection plans – the baseline at January 

2011 was 778. 

 
The CYPP covers a broad and complex agenda so to focus efforts in a way that makes the 

greatest impact three KPIs have been chosen as ‘bell weathers’ to provide a way to make 

significant improvements in a relatively short timescale. Rapid progress on these three 

‘bell weathers’ or ‘obsessions’ will have a knock on effect in other areas. Reducing the 

number of looked after children is one of the three ‘obsessions’. 

 

The 103 list refers to the number of children and young people that came into care 

between 1st January and the 27th March 2012.  Nearly half of this list included children who 

were under the age of one year old. A piece of research has been undertaken to explore 

why these children have come into care – what’s the story?  

 

Research project objectives 
 
The research objectives are to: 

Page 15



 

 

• Quantify parental factors that contribute to children becoming looked after such as 

alcohol / drug use, domestic violence, mental health and learning disabilities 

• Identify the presenting child protection concerns for this group of children 

• Quantify when referrals are made to CSWS and by whom 

• Explore how the assessment processes is conducted with particular emphasis on pre-

birth assessment and planning 

• Identify the involvement of / support given by Children’s Services such as children’s 

centres and family group conferencing 

• Quantify the involvement of the child’s extended family network  

• Identify outcomes for previous children 

• Explore the child’s journey from initial concerns, assessment, through to placement and 

then permanence - focusing on purpose, time scales and long term planning 

• Success stories and challenging cases  

 

The sample 
 
The sample has been drawn from the LAC 103 list and refers to those children who came 

into care between the 1st January 2012 and the 27th March 2012 and were aged under one 

year old at the time.  Initially there were 46 children within the cohort.  On investigation one 

child did not have LAC status and there were two sets of twins.  The cohort was amended 

to reflect the twins as belonging to single birth events therefore the sample group consists 

of 43 births.  

 

Methodology 

The initial data set was obtained from ESCR and contained information about the child’s 

name, ESCR reference number, first and subsequent legal status, care start date and the 

social work team with case responsibility. 

 

This data was expanded to provide a broader picture of the household,  parental factors, 

presenting health and social issues, involvement from social care and other agencies, the 

child’s journey from assessment through to care planning and options for permanence. 

 

Page 16



 

 

The additional information was obtained by interviewing the lead social worker practitioner 

/ team manager.  The interviews were over the telephone and took between 15 and 30 

minutes to complete.  

 

Initial findings  

 

The initial findings have been collated into the following key themes to promote initial 

discussion: 

 

• Age 

• Parental factors 

• Child protection concerns 

• Previous children 

• Referral  

• Support and extended family 

 

Age  

The data shows a distinct difference in age bands between mothers and fathers although 

the average age of mothers and fathers is similar. 

 

Average age of mothers is 26 Average age of fathers is 28 

Youngest mum is 16 (pregnant at 
15) 

Youngest father at 19 

Oldest mother at 48 Oldest father at 55 

 

 

Page 17



 

 

Age range of parents / partners

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

0 10 20 30 40 50

Number of parents / partners

A
g
e
 i
n
 y
e
a
rs

Age of Mother

Age of Father

 

 

Parental factors 

 

Drug and alcohol use 

24 (56%) out of the 43 households use drugs / alcohol.  Both parents use drugs in 50% of 

the 24 households identified as using. Of the 24 households where parents use drugs / 

alcohol, 19 (79%) experience one or more other factors. 

  

The 24 households who use drugs / alcohol

5, 21% 19, 79%

Drugs / alcohol only 

Plus one or more other factor 

 

The other factors include mental health, domestic violence and learning disability.  

Page 18



 

 

Use of drugs / alcohol and other factors (24 households)

5, 21%

2, 8%

2, 8%

7, 30%

6, 25%

2, 8%

Drugs / alcohol only 

With learning disabilities

With learning disabilities and

DV 

With DV

With DV and mental health 

With all four factors present 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mental health 

16 out of 43 (37%) households experience mental health issues (this excludes drugs / 

alcohol use).  Nearly three times as many women experience a mental health issue in 

comparison with fathers / partners.  

 

Who is experiencing mental health difficulties out of the 16 households identified?

3, 19%

11, 68%

2, 13%

Both parents 

Mother 

Father 

 

Page 19



 

 

 

Women are more likely to experience neurosis ie depression, anxiety and cutting 

behaviours and men are more likely to experience both neurosis and psychosis ie 

schizophrenia. 

 

14 out of 43 mothers experience mental health difficulties

8, 58%
3, 21%

2, 14%

1, 7%

Neurosis

Neurosis w ith self harming

Self harming behaviours 

Personality disorder 

 

 

 

 

 

14 (87%) of these 16 households also experience one or more of other factors as shown 

below. 

 

The 16 households who experience mental health difficulties

2, 13%

14, 87%

Mental health only 

Plus one or more other factor

 

 

Page 20



 

 

The other factors include domestic violence, drug / alcohol and learning disability.  

 

Experience of mental health and other factors (16 households)

2, 13%

4, 24%

6, 37%

2, 13%

2, 13%
Mental health only 

With DV 

With drug / alcohol and DV

With learning disabilities and DV

With all four factors present 

 

 

Domestic violence 

Domestic violence has or continues to feature in 25 (58%) of the 43 households. The 

perpetration of domestic violence can be broken down further by source which includes 

members of the extended family ie grandmothers to daughters and mothers to their 

children, brothers to sisters as well as fathers / partners to mothers.  

 

Perpetration of domestic violence within the 43 households

18, 33%

7, 13%

25, 47%

4, 7% None reported 

DV in previous relationships

DV with current partner / father of

child 

DV from or to another member of

the extended family 

 

 

Page 21



 

 

24 (96)% of these 25 households who experience domestic violence also had one or more 

other factors presenting such as drug / alcohol, mental health issues and learning 

disability.  

 

Experience of domestic violence with other factors

1, 4% 1, 4%

7, 28%

4, 16%2, 8%

6, 24%

2, 8%
2, 8%

DV only 

With learning disabilities 

With drug / alcohol 

With mental health

With drug / alcohol and learning

disabiltiies 

With drug / alcohol and mental

health  

With mental health and learning

disabilities 

With all four factors present 

 

 

 

 

Learning disability 

11 (26%) mothers and 4 (9%) fathers / partners from the 43 households have a mild 

learning disability. 

 

Page 22



 

 

Who is experiencing a learning disability within the 12 households 

identified?

3, 25%

8, 67%

1, 8%

Both parents 

Mother 

Father

 

 

12 (28%) of households in the cohort experience learning disabilities and of those 12 

households, 75% experience one or more  other factors such as drug / alcohol, mental 

health issues and domestic violence.  

 

Experience of learning disability with other factors ( 12 

households)

3, 24%

2, 17%

1, 8%2, 17%

2, 17%

2, 17%
Learning disability only 

With drugs / alcohol 

With DV 

With drugs / alcohol and DV 

With mental helath and DV 

With all four factors present 

 

Child protection concerns 

When looking at child protection concerns there are variations between the genders. 

These are regarding physical abuse, sexual offences, drug / alcohol use and failure to 

protect. 

Page 23



 

 

 

5
8

1
12

3

3

4 8

18

6
9

2

10

1

13

5

3
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

re
p
o
rt
s

P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 s
k
ill
s
 /
 y
o
u
th

C
h
a
o
ti
c
 l
if
e
s
ty
le
 

R
is
k
 o
f 
n
e
g
le
c
t 

E
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
b
u
s
e
 

P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
b
u
s
e
 

S
e
x
u
a
l 
a
b
u
s
e
 

F
a
il
u
re
 t
o
 p
ro
te
c
t 

V
u
ln
e
ra
b
ili
ty
 /
 r
is
k
 o
f 
p
re
d
it
o
ry

m
e
n
 

A
lc
o
h
o
l 
/ 
d
ru
g
 u
s
e

S
e
x
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 

Type of concern

Child protection concerns for both parents

Father

Mother

 

 

Children protection concerns regarding mothers 

 

Child protection concerns regarding mother (one or many 

concerns can apply to each of the 43 cases)

5, 7%

8, 12%

12, 18%

3, 4%
8, 12%0, 0%

9, 13%

10, 15%

13, 19%

Poor parenting skills / very young mother - 5 Chaotic lifestyle / homelessness / anti social behaviours - 8

Risk of neglect - 12 Emotional abuse - 3

Physical abuse - 8 Sexual abuse - 0

Failure to protect - 9 Vulnerability / lack of understanding / rsk of preditory men - 10

Alcohol / drug use - 13

 

 

 

 

Children protection concerns regarding fathers / current partners 

 

Page 24



 

 

Child protection concerns regarding father (one or many 

concerns can apply to each of the 43 cases)

1, 2% 3, 7%

4, 9%

18, 42%

6, 14%

2, 5%

1, 2%

5, 12%

3, 7%

Chaotic lifestyle / homelessness / anti social behaviours Risk of neglect 

Emotional abuse Physical abuse 

Sexual abuse Failure to protect

Vulnerability / lack of understanding Alcohol / drug use 

Sex offending 

 

 

Previous children 

The table below shows the number and age range of mothers where this is their first child 

or an additional child.  For 16 (37%) out of 43 mothers this is their first child. There are 27 

(63%) out of 43 mothers who have had 64 previous children between them. 

8

1

4

8

3

16

1
1

01
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
h
il
d
re
n

16 - 19 20 - 24 25 - 34 35 - 44 > 45

Age group in years

First and previous children born to mothers

Previous children

First child

 

 

The situation is less clear for fathers / partners as there is less known information about 

these men than with mothers.  There are 24 previous children paternally.  This provides a 

total number of 88 children (born from the current or from past relationships that can be 

Page 25



 

 

considered as previous children).  Out of the 43 households studied, 27 (63%) of those 

households have had previously born children removed. 

 

All previous children from both parents (88)

1, 1% 14, 16%

21, 24%

19, 22%

18, 20%

15, 17%
Live at home

Live with other birth parent

Adopted

In foster care

Live with relatives

Unknown or adults now

 

 

As with the age differences shown earlier between mothers and fathers, there are age 

differences between the sets of previous children born to parents.   The average age of 

previous maternal children is 6yrs old with an age range between 15mths and 19 years.  

The average age of previous paternal children is 15 years with an age range of seven 

years to 20+  

Ages of previous children 

0

5

10

15

20

25

0 10 20 30 40

Number of children / young people 

A
g
e
 i
n
 y
e
a
rs

Age of mother's children

Age of father's children 

 

Page 26



 

 

 

Referral 

31 (72%) children from the 43 households were referred to CSWS as unborn children.  12 

(28%) children from the 43 households were under the age of one year between 1st 

January and the 27th March 2012 when they came into care.  Below is a breakdown of 

when the unborn child was referred to CSWS – in which trimester and also weeks into 

pregnancy.  

 

Referral timescale

12, 28%

13, 30%

11, 26%

7, 16%

Baby already born

1st trimester

2nd trimesrer

3rd trimester

 

 

Referral time scale in weeks

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35

Number of pregnancies

W
e
e
k
 o
f 
g
e
s
ta
ti
o
n
 

Pregnancies

 

 

Page 27



 

 

 

Referrals were received from a variety of sources and in some instances more than one 

referral was made on the same day for a specific child by different referrers eg. Ambulance 

service and a neighbour.   

 

Referrer

3, 6% 1, 2%
5, 11%

2, 4%

4, 9%

6, 13%
2, 4%2, 4%2, 4%

13, 28%

3, 6%
4, 9%

GP / nurse at HC Adoption service 

Midwife Professional working with other family member 

Other LA Police 

Housing Neighbour 

Ambulance Internal to CSWS 

Drug agency incl LAU Hospital - A&E or paediatrics
 

 

Where a child had already been born the referring agent was more likely to be the police, 

hospital or a neighbour.     

 

Page 28



 

 

3
1

5

2
1

3
4

2

2 2
1
1

1

12

3 3

1

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
re
fe
rr
a
ls

G
P
 /
 n
u
rs
e
 a
t 
H
C
 

A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

M
id
w
if
e
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
fa
m
ily
 

O
th
e
r 
L
A
 

P
o
lic
e
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
r 

A
m
b
u
la
n
c
e
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
to
 C
S
W
S
 

D
ru
g
 a
g
e
n
c
y
 i
n
c
l 
L
A
U

H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
- 
A
&
E
 o
r 
P
a
e
d
s
 

Referring agency

Referring agency for pre-births and children already born

Pre-birth

Already born

 

 

Support and extended family 

20 (46%) out of 43 mothers were referred to a children’s centre, one mother self referred.  

Where a baby was subsequently removed from the parent and placed in care the support 

from the children’s centre stopped.   Social work practitioners raised this as an issue in 

that pro-active parenting work could be done for children rather than waiting for the next 

pregnancy before resuming support.  

 

Nine (21%) out of the 43 families were referred to or had involvement with family group 

conferencing. 

 

The extended family was approached in 35 (81%) of the 43 families. 

33 approaches to maternal relatives were made for 29 of the 35 families and 15 

approaches to paternal relatives were made for 13 of the 35 families. On the paternal side 

there were less relatives being approached or coming forward.  This may be due to CSWS 

and other agencies having less involvement / contact / knowledge about fathers.  The 

outcomes from maternally generated approaches were more positive than paternally 

generated approaches as shown below. 

Page 29



 

 

 

Outcomes from maternal family coming forward

7, 21%

4, 12%

10, 31%

10, 30%

2, 6%

Already carers for other children

Withdrew

Failed viability / kinship

assessments

Awaiting assessment 

Sucessful

 

 

 

 

Outcomes from paternal family coming forward

1, 7% 1, 7%

8, 53%

2, 13%

2, 13%
1, 7%

Already carers for other children

Withdrew

Failed viability / kinship

assessments or not suitable

Awaiting assessment 

Did not respond 

Became a PWP with birth father

 

 

Summary and initial conclusions 

Age 

Although the average ages of mothers and fathers / current partners was similar 26 and 

28, the spread of ages between genders showed older men and younger women.  For 

example, are there are 18 men and only 11 women aged 30 years and plus.  There is one 

man age 20 years or under compared with 13 women in this age group.    

Page 30



 

 

 

Parental factors 

Of the 24 households that use drugs / alcohol 19 households (79%) experience one or 

more other factors.  The main ‘other’ presenting factor is domestic violence in 17 (71%) of 

these 19 households. Ten parents in six households are receiving support from addiction 

services to reduce / withdraw from Class A drug use ie Heroin and or Cocaine. 

 

Of the 16 households that experience mental health issues 14 households (87%) 

experience one or more other factors.  The main ‘other’ factor is domestic violence which 

features in all of these 14 households. Nearly one third (14) of the women from the original 

cohort of 43 households experiences a mental health issue, with this taking the form of 

depression and self harming behaviours.  Support mainly comes from the GP or not at all. 

 

Of the 25 households that have or continue to experience domestic violence 24 

households (96%) experience one or more factors.  The main ‘other’ presenting factor is 

drugs / alcohol use in 17 of these 24 households.   In all 25 of these households the father 

of the baby or the current partner is a perpetrator of domestic violence and in seven of 

these households’ police or court / prison has been involved.   

 

Of the 12 households that experience learning disabilities nine households (75%) 

experience one or more other factors.  The main ‘other’ presenting factor is domestic 

violence within seven of these 12 households.  More than twice as many women (9) 

experience a mild learning disability compared to fathers / partners (4) and nearly one fifth 

of the women from the original cohort of 43 households experiences a learning disability.  

Further investigation is required to establish what specific if any support is available to this 

group of mothers to care for and protect babies considering their own vulnerability to sex 

offenders and drugs / alcohol culture.   

 

Two (5%) out of the 43 households experience all four factors of drugs / alcohol, mental 

health issues, learning disabilities and  domestic violence. 

 

Child protection concerns 

The most prevalent child protection concerns are split by gender.  When looking at 

mothers the main concerns that social work practitioners have focus on: 

Page 31



 

 

 

• The impact of drugs / alcohol  

• Vulnerability, poor relationship choices and a failure to protect the child 

• Neglect 

 

For fathers and/or current partners the main areas for concern are physical abuse and 

previous sex offending history. 

 

Previous children 

For mothers under 20 years old this is likely to be their first child.  Older mothers between 

25 and 34 years are very likely to have had one or two previous children.  Of all the 27 

mothers who have had previous children only one child still lives at home.  All other 

previous children are either placed in foster care, have been adopted or are with the other 

birth parent / extended family.   

 

One mother has had her eleventh child as part of this cohort and all 11 children have been 

individually removed from her care over previous years.  Based on the outcomes for the 

older group of mothers it is entirely feasible that the youngest group of mothers will repeat 

these outcomes unless change can be made. 

 

Fathers and current partners have also had a number of previous children removed from 

their care.  This group of children tend to be older than for the cohort of mothers and are 

now adults.  The data concerning fathers / partners is less robust due to the lack of 

engagement that these men have with families and services. 

 

Referrals  

31 (72%) children from the 43 households were referred to CSWS as unborn children.  

Seven (23%) were referred during the third trimester, 11 (35%) were referred during the 

second trimester and 13 (42%) were referred in the first trimester.  The earliest referral 

was five weeks into pregnancy and the latest four referrals were made after 35 weeks.  

Several of the later referrals to CSWS were made following concealed pregnancies or 

failed appointments with the Leeds Addiction Unit midwife.  The most extreme scenario 

was that of a referral made at 28 weeks following 18 missed appointments. 

Page 32



 

 

 

Referrals were received from a variety of sources.  Those made by the police (following 

incidents of domestic violence), ambulance service, neighbours, A&E and paediatric 

services related to children already born.  Only 5 (11%) of referrals came from midwifery 

services and only 3 (6%) came from drug / alcohol agencies.  The majority of referrals at 

13 (28%) were made by internal CSWS staff.   

 

These findings highlight that referrals are not made early enough for effective pre-birth 

assessment and planning to take place.  Further investigation of the data is required to 

assess how early pro-active support is being put into place for these families.  For example 

access to children’s centres and intensive family support.  There are indications from the 

initial data that parenting foster care placements are having good outcomes.   

 

Support and extended family 

20 (46%) of the 43 mothers were referred to a children’s centre.  Where a baby was 

subsequently removed from the parent and placed in care the support from the children’s 

centre stopped.  Where this support has included parenting skills work the implication is 

that the mother will not be prepared or more adequately equipped to parent for likely future 

children.   

 

Only 9 (21%) out the 43 families were referred to family group conferencing services.  

However, contact with extended family members is taking placing outside this arena by 

social work practitioners.  When looking at where a child can be placed whilst parenting 

assessments are undertaken or as a permanency option / alternative to adoption.   

 

Most of the contacts made with extended family are with maternal family members rather 

than paternal family.  Again this could be due to the lack of long term involvement from 

fathers / partners and lack of data.   

 

Most placements made with the extended family are with maternal grandparents then 

maternal aunts.  In some families, grandparents are already caring for other children in 

their family. This raises an issue that the burden of care is being taken up by an older and 

potentially less economically well off section of society that will require more ongoing support and 

access to funding as these children grow older. 

Page 33



 

 

 

From the data gathered so far, it shows that many viability and kinship care assessments 

are being undertaken.  However, the conversion rate is low and is more likely to positive 

on the maternal side of the extended family.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



R
e
d

u
c
in

g
 i

n
e
q

u
a
li

ti
e
s
 i

n
 i

n
fa

n
t 

m
o

rt
a
li

ty
 i
n

 L
e
e
d

s

D
r 

S
h

a
ro

n
 Y

e
lli

n
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
t 

in
 P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

 
M

e
d

ic
in

e

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

Page 35



W
h

y
 i
n

fa
n

t 
m

o
rt

a
li

ty
?

IN
F

A
N

T
 M

O
R

T
A

L
IT

Y
:

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
d

e
a

th
s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

g
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

o
n

e
 y

e
a

r 
p

e
r 

1
0

0
0

 l
iv

e
 b

ir
th

s

S
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
o

f 
a

 b
ro

a
d

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
fa

c
to

rs
 a

ff
e

c
ti
n

g
 c

h
ild

re
n

’s
 h

e
a

lt
h

“T
ip

 o
f 

th
e

 i
c
e

b
e

rg
”

o
f 

c
h

ild
 h

e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

b
le

m
s

Im
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
h

e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

b
le

m

Page 36



1
6

0
.3

S
ie

rr
a

 L
e

o
n

e
1

9
5

1
5

7
.0

A
fg

h
a

n
is

ta
n

1
9

4

4
4

.8
S

o
u

th
 A

fr
ic

a
1

3
0

2
9

.3
E

g
y
p

t
1

1
5

2
3

.0
C

h
in

a
1

0
3

1
6

.1
R

u
s
s
ia

8
1

1
3

.4
A

rg
e

n
ti

n
a

7
1

1
0

.6
T

h
a

il
a

n
d

5
8

8
.2

U
n

it
e

d
 A

ra
b

 E
m

ir
a

te
s

4
8

6
.3

U
S

A
3

3

4
.8

C
a

n
a

d
a

2
3

4
.8

E
n

g
la

n
d

2
2

4
.3

G
e

rm
a

n
y

1
4

4
.2

F
ra

n
c

e
1

2

3
.3

N
o

rw
a

y
5

3
.2

J
a

p
a

n
3

2
.9

Ic
e

la
n

d
1

IM
 R

A
T

E
 /
1

0
0

0
 L

IV
E

 B
IR

T
H

S
C

O
U

N
T

R
Y

R
A

N
K

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 I

M
 R

A
T

E
S

: 
C

O
M

P
A

R
IS

O
N

 B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 S

E
L

E
C

T
E

D
 C

O
U

N
T

R
IE

S
 2

0
0

5
-1

0

Page 37



Page 38



5
.7

4
.2

4
.9

L
E

E
D

S
 P

C
T

5
.7

5
.0

5
.4

Y
O

R
K

S
H

IR
E

 A
N

D
 T

H
E

 

H
U

M
B

E
R

4
.6

4
.5

4
.5

E
N

G
L

A
N

D
 &

 W
A

L
E

S

U
C

I
L

C
I

R
a
te

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 l
iv

e
 

b
ir
th

s

IN
F

A
N

T
 M

O
R

T
A

L
IT

Y
 R

A
T

E
S

 2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
0

 F
O

R
 

L
E

E
D

S
, 

Y
O

R
K

S
H

IR
E

 &
 H

U
M

B
E

R
, 

A
N

D
 

E
N

G
L

A
N

D
 &

 W
A

L
E

S

S
o

u
rc

e
: 

N
C

H
O

D

L
e
e
d

s
 r

a
te

 i
s
 n

o
t 

s
ta

ti
s
ti

c
a
ll
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a
n

 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 &
 W

a
le

s

4
6

 L
e

e
d

s
 b

a
b

ie
s

 a
g

e
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
1

 y
e

a
r 

d
ie

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
0

Page 39



INF
AN

T M
OR

TA
LIT

Y T
RE

ND
S F

OR
 LE

ED
S, 

YO
RK

SH
IRE

 &
 HU

MB
ER

, E
NG

LA
ND

 19
99

-20
10

01234567

19
99

-2
00

0
20

00
-2

00
2

20
01

-2
00

3
20

02
-2

00
4

20
03

-2
00

5
20

04
-2

00
6

20
05

-2
00

7
20

06
-2

00
8

20
07

-2
00

9
20

08
-2

01
0

Rateper1000livebirths

En
gla

nd
Y 

& 
H

Le
ed

s

Page 40



N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
s
ta

ti
s
ti

c
s
 a

n
d

 e
th

n
ic

it
y

C
a

ri
b

b
e

a
n

 a
n

d
 P

a
k
is

ta
n

i 
b

a
b

ie
s
 a

re
 m

o
re

 

th
a

n
 t

w
ic

e
 a

s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 d
ie

 b
e

fo
re

 a
g

e
 o

n
e

 

th
a

n
 W

h
it
e

 B
ri
ti
s
h

 o
r 

B
a

n
g

la
d

e
s
h

i 
b

a
b

ie
s

F
o

r 
C

a
ri

b
b

e
a

n
 b

a
b

ie
s
, 

in
 p

a
rt

 d
u

e
 t

o
 h

ig
h

e
r 

p
re

v
a

le
n

c
e

 o
f 

p
re

-t
e

rm
 d

e
liv

e
ry

F
o

r 
P

a
k
is

ta
n

i 
b

a
b

ie
s
, 

in
 p

a
rt

 d
u

e
 t

o
 h

ig
h

e
r 

p
re

v
a

le
n

c
e

 o
f 

c
o

n
g

e
n

it
a

l 
a

n
o

m
a

lie
s

Page 41



T
h

e
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
in

e
q

u
a
li

ti
e
s
 t

a
rg

e
t

S
ta

rt
in

g
 w

it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
 u

n
d
e
r 

o
n
e
 y

e
a
r,

 b
y
 

2
0
1
0
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 b

y
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
1
0
%

 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 i
n
 

m
o

rt
a

lit
y
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 r

o
u

ti
n

e
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
u

a
l 

g
ro

u
p

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

. 
T

h
e

 
b

a
s
e

lin
e

 i
s
 1

9
9

7
-9

.

R
o
u
ti
n
e
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
u
a
l 
g
ro

u
p
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 l
o
w

e
r 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
o
ry

 
a
n
d
 t

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l,
 s

e
m

i-
ro

u
ti
n
e
 a

n
d
 r

o
u
ti
n
e
 o

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
s
 e

g
p
o
rt

e
rs

, 
c
le

a
n
e
rs

, 
b
a
r 

s
ta

ff
, 

w
a
it
e
rs

, 
s
a
le

s
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
ts

, 
c
a

te
ri
n

g
 a

s
s
is

ta
n

ts
, 

tr
a

in
 d

ri
v
e

rs
, 

c
a

ll 
c
e

n
tr

e
 w

o
rk

e
rs

, 
e
le

c
tr

ic
ia

n
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
w

in
g
 m

a
c
h
in

is
ts

Page 42



Page 43



W
h

a
t 

c
a
n

 w
e
 s

a
y
 a

b
o

u
t 

in
e
q

u
a
li
ti

e
s
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
L

e
e
d

s
?

S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
p

ro
b

le
m

s

S
m

a
ll 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

D
if
fi
c
u

lt
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
a

re
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
a

re
a

s
 w

it
h

in
 

L
e

e
d

s
 –

c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

c
e

 i
n

te
rv

a
ls

 a
re

 w
id

e

Page 44



In
fa

n
t 

M
o

rt
a

li
ty

 1
0
 Y

e
a

r 
A

g
g

re
g

a
te

 R
a

te
s

0
.0

0

2
.0

0

4
.0

0

6
.0

0

8
.0

0

1
0
.0

0

1
2
.0

0

1
4
.0

0

1
6
.0

0

G
e

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

a
l 
A

re
a

Rate Per 1000 Live Births

L
C

I 
(9

5
%

)

A
v
e
ra

g
e

U
C

I 
(9

5
%

)

IN
F

A
N

T
 M

O
R

T
A

L
IT

Y
 B

Y
 W

A
R

D
: 

1
0
 Y

E
A

R
 A

G
G

R
E

G
A

T
E

D
 D

A
T

A

Page 45



A
 l

o
c
a
l 

ta
rg

e
t:

 T
o

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 I

M
 r

a
te

 i
n

 “
d

e
p

ri
v
e
d

 

L
e

e
d

s
”

to
 5

.5
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
0

 l
iv

e
 b

ir
th

s
 b

y
 2

0
1

3
 

(b
a

s
e

li
n

e
 2

0
0

8
-1

0
)

In
fa

n
t 

M
o

rt
a

li
ty

 5
 y

e
a

r 
A

g
g

re
g

a
te

 R
a

te
s

0123456789

1
0 Rate Per 1000 Live Births

D
e

p
ri

ve
d

N
o

t 
D

e
p

ri
v
e

d

L
e

e
d

s

Page 46



In
fa

n
t 

M
o

rt
a

li
ty

 3
 y

e
a

r 
A

g
g

re
g

a
te

 R
a

te
s

0123456789

1
0

Rate Per 1000 Live Births

D
e

p
ri

ve
d

N
o

t D
e

p
ri

ve
d

L
e

e
d

s

N
a

tio
n

a
l L

e
e

d
s

 S
ta

ts
.

Page 47



L
o

w
 b

ir
th

w
e
ig

h
t

ra
te

: 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
a
b

ie
s
 w

e
ig

h
in

g
 

u
n

d
e

r 
2

5
o

o
g

 a
s

 a
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
to

ta
l 

b
ir

th
s

L
o

w
 B

ir
th

 W
e

ig
h

t 
5
 y

e
a

r 
A

g
g

re
g

a
te

 R
a

te
s

02468

1
0

1
2

Rate Per 100 Total Births (with stated weight)

D
e

p
ri

v
e

d

N
o

t 
D

e
p

ri
v
e

d

L
e

e
d

s

Page 48



L
o

w
 B

ir
th

w
e

ig
h

t

C
lo

s
e

ly
 l
in

k
e

d
 w

it
h

 i
n

fa
n

t 
m

o
rt

a
lit

y

T
w

o
 t

h
ir
d
s
 o

f 
in

fa
n
t 

d
e
a
th

s
 a

re
 a

m
o
n
g
 L

B
W

 

b
a

b
ie

s

S
im

ila
r 

ri
s
k
 f
a

c
to

rs
 t
o

 i
n

fa
n

t 
m

o
rt

a
lit

y
: 

c
o

n
g

e
n

it
a

l 
a

n
o

m
a

ly
, 

m
u

lt
ip

le
 p

re
g

n
a

n
c
y
, 

s
o

c
io

-e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 d
e

p
ri

v
a

ti
o

n
, 
te

e
n

a
g

e
 

p
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
, 

o
ld

e
r 

m
o

th
e

rh
o

o
d

, 
p

o
o

r 
n

u
tr

it
io

n
, 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 
&

 d
ru

g
 u

s
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 p

re
g

n
a

n
c
y
, 

s
m

o
k
in

g
 d

u
ri

n
g

 p
re

g
n

a
n

c
y

Page 49



T
h

e
 L

e
e
d

s
 I
n

fa
n

t 
M

o
rt

a
li
ty

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 “
S

c
a

rf
”

d
ia

g
ra

m
 –

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 

b
a

s
e

d
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 i
n

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

.

A
s
s
is

te
d

 b
y
 N

S
T

 v
is

it
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
0

9

T
a

rg
e

te
d

 i
n

to
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
g

re
a

te
s
t 

n
e

e
d

“D
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
ti
o

n
 s

it
e

s
”

in
 C

h
a

p
e

lt
o

w
n

a
n

d
 

B
e

e
s
to

n
 H

ill

Page 50



Page 51



A
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 L

e
e
d

s
 I
M

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 (

1
)

B
re

a
s

tf
e

e
d

in
g

6
7

%
 i
n

it
ia

ti
o

n
4

7
%

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

-
F

o
o

d
4

L
if
e

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

-
B

a
b

y
 F

ri
e

n
d

ly
 I

n
it
ia

ti
v
e

 –
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 &

 h
o

s
p

it
a

l

-
S

o
c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 S
o

u
th

 L
e

e
d

s

-
P

e
e

r 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

M
a

te
rn

it
y

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

9
7

%
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 1

2
 w

e
e

k
s

-
H

e
a

lt
h

 e
q

u
it
y
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
e

a
rl
y
 b

o
o

k
in

g

-
B

M
E

 m
id

w
if
e

-
A

s
y
lu

m
 s

e
e
k
e
r 

p
a
th

w
a
y
, 
G

&
T

 p
a
th

w
a
y

-
C

a
s
e

lo
a

d
 m

id
w

if
e

ry

Page 52



A
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 L

e
e
d

s
 I
M

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 (

2
)

S
c
re

e
n

in
g

9
9
%

 u
p
ta

k
e
 o

f 
H

e
p
a
ti
ti
s
 B

 s
c
re

e
n
in

g

-
C

o
m

b
in

e
d

 D
o

w
n

’s
 S

y
n

d
ro

m
e

 s
c
re

e
n

 D
e

c
 2

0
1

0

-
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a

n
te

n
a

ta
l 
h

a
e

m
o

g
lo

b
in

o
p

a
th

y
s
c
re

e
n

-
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
b

lo
o

d
s
p

o
t 

p
a

th
w

a
y
s

C
h

il
d

 P
o

v
e
rt

y

-
L

e
e

d
s
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 G

ro
u

p
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d

-
C

h
ild

 p
o

v
e

rt
y
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
c
o

m
p

le
te

-
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 b
e

in
g

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

Page 53



A
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 L

e
e
d

s
 I
M

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 (

3
)

R
e
d

u
c
in

g
 o

b
e
s
it

y
 i
n

 w
o

m
e
n

 o
f 

c
h

il
d

 b
e
a
ri

n
g

 a
g

e

-
B

M
I 

d
a

ta
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
. 

1
9

%
 w

it
h

 B
M

I 
>

3
0

-
M

in
is

tr
y
 o

f 
F

o
o

d
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d

-
D

ie
te

ti
c
 p

o
s
t 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
e

d
 w

it
h

 m
a

te
rn

a
l 
o

b
e

s
it
y

-
C

a
re

 p
a

th
w

a
y
 f

o
r 

o
v
e

rw
e

ig
h

t 
p

re
g

n
a

n
t 

w
o

m
e

n
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 b

e
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d

R
e
d

u
c
in

g
 s

m
o

k
in

g
 i
n

 p
re

g
n

a
n

c
y

1
1

-1
2

%
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
d

e
liv

e
ry

-
M

a
n

d
a

to
ry

 t
ra

in
in

g
 f
o

r 
m

id
w

iv
e

s
, 
C

O
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g

-
S

m
o
k
e
 F

re
e
 H

o
m

e
s
, 
S

O
S

 s
c
h
e
m

e
, 
M

L
A

S
S

-
F

re
s
h
 A

ir
 B

a
b
ie

s

Page 54



A
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 L

e
e
d

s
 I
M

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 (

4
)

S
u

d
d

e
n

 u
n

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 d

e
a
th

 i
n

 i
n

fa
n

c
y

-
L

o
c
a

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 v
is

it
in

g
 p

o
lic

y
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d

-
S

o
c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

re
a

s

-
E

a
rl
y
 S

ta
rt

 P
a

th
w

a
y
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

R
e
d

u
c
in

g
 o

v
e
r-

c
ro

w
d

in
g

-
W

o
rk

 i
n
 D

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
o
n
 S

it
e
s

-
T

ra
in

in
g
 f
o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s

ta
ff

, 
a
n
d
 f
o
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

ta
ff

-
P

a
th

w
a
y
 f

o
r 

re
fe

rr
a
l 
o
f 

te
e
n
a
g
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

Page 55



A
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 L

e
e
d

s
 I
M

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 (

5
)

R
e
d

u
c
in

g
 t

e
e
n

a
g

e
 c

o
n

c
e
p

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 
te

e
n

a
g

e
 p

a
re

n
ts

R
a

te
 4

4
.5

 c
o

n
c
e

p
ti
o

n
s
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
0

 w
o

m
e

n
 a

g
e

d
 1

5
-1

7
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 1

2
%

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 i
n

 1
9

9
8

-
W

id
e

 r
a

n
g

in
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 u

n
d

e
r 

T
P

P
 B

o
a

rd

-
T

e
e

n
a

g
e

 p
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
 p

a
th

w
a

y

-
F

a
m

ily
 N

u
rs

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n

C
o

u
s
in

 m
a
rr

ia
g

e

-
L

in
k
s
 w

it
h
 B

ra
d
fo

rd
 &

 K
ir
k
le

e
s
, 

e
v
e
n
t 

h
e
ld

 M
a
y
 ‘
1
2

-
In

fl
u

e
n

c
e

d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
G

e
n

e
ti
c
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s

-
T

ra
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

fr
o
n
tl
in

e
 s

ta
ff

-
S

o
c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
it
h

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

Page 56



D
e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
ti

o
n

 S
it

e
s

S
m

a
ll 

a
re

a
s
 w

it
h

 h
ig

h
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
n

e
e

d

C
h

a
p

e
lt
o

w
n

a
n

d
 B

e
e

s
to

n
 H

ill

“F
lo

o
d

”
th

e
 a

re
a

s
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 d

ra
w

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 

b
a
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
a
rf

 d
ia

g
ra

m

P
o

s
it
iv

e
 e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n

L
o
c
a
l 
w

o
rk

 o
n
 a

ll 
a
s
p
e
c
ts

: 
h
o
u
s
in

g
, 

p
o
v
e
rt

y
, 

D
V

, 
c
o

-

s
le

e
p
in

g
, 

m
a
te

rn
it
y
 a

c
c
e
s
s
, 

S
m

o
k
e
 F

re
e
 H

o
m

e
s
, 

b
a
b
y
 c

a
fe

s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
y
 S

ta
rt

C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 e

x
p

lo
ri
n

g
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
it
e
s

Page 57



“
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 o

f 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s
”

L
a

rg
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

re
a

s

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g

Im
m

u
n

is
a

ti
o

n

T
e

e
n

a
g

e
 p

re
g

n
a

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 p
a

re
n

ti
n

g

E
a

rl
y
 S

ta
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 F
N

P

T
h

e
 I

M
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 a
im

s
 t

o
 a

d
d

 v
a

lu
e

 o
v
e

r 
a

n
d

 a
b

o
v
e

 o
th

e
r 

o
n

g
o

in
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

Page 58



P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

B
ir
th

 a
n
d
 B

e
y
o
n
d
 

Page 59



P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

B
ir
th

 a
n
d
 B

e
y
o
n
d
 

•
P

re
g

n
a

n
c
y
, 

B
ir
th

 &
 B

e
y
o

n
d

 i
s
 a

 n
e

w
 a

n
te

n
a

ta
l 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
fi
rs

t 
ti
m

e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 s
ta

rt
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
  
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

tr
e

s
 

•
B

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 n
e

w
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 b
y
 a

n
 e

x
p

e
rt

 
p
a
n
e
l 
s
e
t 

u
p
 b

y
 t

h
e
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

H
e
a
lt
h

•
D

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
ti
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
n

te
n

a
ta

l 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 h

ig
h

ly
 

v
a

ri
a

b
le

 (
M

c
M

ill
a

n
 e

t 
a

l 
2

0
0

9
):

-
it
 t
e
n
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 h

ig
h
ly

 m
e
d
ic

a
lis

e
d

&
 f
o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e

  
  
  
  

b
ir
th

.

-
it
 o

ft
e
n
 f

a
ils

 t
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 m

e
n
.

-
s
o
m

e
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 f

in
d
 c

la
s
s
e
s
 h

a
rd

 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
.

Page 60



A
 c

ri
ti
c
a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

 o
f 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
(1

) 

•
R

e
c
e

n
t 

in
s
ig

h
ts

 f
ro

m
 n

e
u

ro
s
c
ie

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ta

l 
p

s
y
c
h

o
lo

g
y
 h

ig
h

lig
h

t 
th

e
 c

ri
ti
c
a

l 

im
p

o
rt

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

p
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
.

•
G

ro
w

in
g

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a

s
e

 t
h

a
t 

s
h

o
w

s
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

in
g

 

e
a

rl
y
 i
s
 t

h
e

 m
o

s
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 w
a

y
 t

o
  
p

ro
m

o
te

 g
o

o
d

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ta

l 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 

p
re

v
e

n
t 

m
a

lt
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 n
e

g
le

c
t

–
A

lm
o

s
t 

h
a

lf
 (

4
5

%
) 

o
f 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
 c

a
s
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
s
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 a
 

c
h

ild
 u

n
d

e
r 

o
n

e
.

Page 61



A
 c

ri
ti
c
a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

 o
f 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 (

2
) 

•
P

re
g

n
a

n
c
y
 i
s
 a

 t
im

e
 m

o
s
t 

p
a

re
n

ts
 a

re
 h

ig
h

ly
 

re
c
e

p
ti
v
e

 t
o

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 t

h
e

ir
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r.

•
In

te
rv

e
n

in
g

 d
u

ri
n

g
 p

re
g

n
a

n
c
y
 c

a
n

 s
e

t 
th

e
 

te
m

p
la

te
 f

o
r 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 p

a
re

n
ti
n

g
.

•
A

n
te

n
a

ta
l 
c
la

s
s
e

s
 c

a
n

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 c

ri
ti
c
a

l 
ri
s
k
s
 

fa
c
to

rs
 f

o
r 

p
o

o
r 

 p
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 m
a

lt
re

a
tm

e
n

t:

-
la

c
k
 o

f 
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 o
f 

c
h

ild
  

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

-
u

n
re

a
lis

ti
c
 e

x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
b

a
b

ie
s
/p

a
re

n
th

o
o

d
 

-
p

a
re

n
ta

l 
c
o

n
fl
ic

t 

Page 62



W
h

a
t 

p
a

re
n

ts
 w

a
n

t

•
R

e
c
e

n
t 

re
s
e

a
rc

h
 h

a
s
 r

e
v
e

a
le

d
 k

e
y
 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 t

h
a

t 
p

a
re

n
ts

 v
a

lu
e

 f
ro

m
 a

n
te

n
a

ta
l 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
:

-
h

e
lp

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 t

ra
n

s
it
io

n
 t

o
 p

a
re

n
th

o
o

d
.

-
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
v
e

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

.

-
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 t

a
lk

 t
o

 o
th

e
r 

p
a

re
n

ts
.

-
lo

c
a

l 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 

Page 63



L
e
e
d
s
 P

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

b
ir
th

 a
n
d
 

B
e
y
o
n
d
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

•
F

o
c
u
s
 o

n
: 

-
th

e
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 t
o
 p

a
re

n
th

o
o
d
.

-
th

e
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 p

a
re

n
ts

. 

-
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 p

a
re

n
t-

in
fa

n
t 
re

la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip

.

T
h

e
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
:

–
O

u
r 

b
a
b
y
’s

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

–
C

h
a
n
g
e
s
 f
o
r 

m
e
 a

n
d
 u

s
.

–
G

iv
in

g
 b

ir
th

 a
n
d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o

u
r 

b
a
b
y
.

–
C

a
ri
n
g
 f
o
r 

o
u
r 

b
a
b
y
.

–
O

u
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
.

–
P

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 t

h
e
re

 f
o
r 

u
s
.

•
H

ig
h
ly

 i
n
te

ra
c
ti
v
e
, 
n
o
t 
d
id

a
c
ti
c
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
.

•
D

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 E

a
rl
y
 S

ta
rt

 T
e
a
m

s
 i
n
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
. 

Page 64



A
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 d

a
te

 

•
E

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

 w
o

rk
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
 t

o
 d

ri
v
e

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

P
B

B
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 ,

re
p
o
rt

in
g
  
to

 E
a
rl
y
 S

ta
rt

 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

B
o
a
rd

•
D

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 p

ilo
t 

P
B

B
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
 i
n

 3
 a

re
a

s
 

B
ra

m
le

y
, 

B
e
e
s
to

n
, 

C
it
y
 a

n
d
 H

o
lb

e
c
k
.

•
In

v
o

lv
e

d
 I

n
fa

n
t 

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 (
IM

H
)S

e
rv

ic
e

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
‘U

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 y

o
u

r 
B

a
b

y
’
tr

a
in

in
g

 t
o

 a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 

•
U

s
in

g
 t

h
e

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 p
ilo

t 
to

 i
n

fo
rm

 t
h

e
 w

id
e

r 
ro

ll 
o

u
t 

p
la

n
.

•
Id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 3

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

te
a
m

s
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 I
M

H
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

a
n

d
 p

ilo
t 

s
it
e

s
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 t

h
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 a
re

a
s
. 

Page 65



S
o
m

e
 i
n
it
ia

l 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 

•
B

o
n

d
in

g
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

h
a

p
p

e
n

 s
tr

a
ig

h
t 

a
w

a
y
 –

s
e

n
s
e

 o
f 

re
lie

f 

•
A

s
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 m

u
m

s
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

 w
a
s
 h

e
lp

fu
l 
a
s
 w

e
 d

id
n
’t
 k

n
o
w

 
it

•
I 
th

o
u
g
h
t 
it
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

s
e
le

s
s
 b

u
t 
it
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

s
e
fu

l

•
I 
fe

lt
 r

e
la

x
e
d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 n

e
w

 p
e
o
p
le

 ,
I 

a
m

 n
o
t 

n
o
rm

a
lly

 
c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

t

•
D

a
d

’s
 g

o
t 

v
e

ry
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 

•
F

e
e

l 
m

y
 h

u
s
b

a
n

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
s
 m

e
 b

e
tt

e
r 

•
M

y
 h

u
s
b

a
n

d
 b

ro
u

g
h

t 
h

o
m

e
 a

w
is

h
 b

o
x
 h

e
 h

a
d

 m
a

d
e

 (
fo

r 
th

e
 b

a
b
y
) 

•
T

o
 k

n
o
w

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 t

h
in

g
s
 o

u
t 

th
e
re

 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 

fo
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 

Page 66



 
   

 
 

 
 

NHS LEEDS 
CLINICAL MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVE 

 
 

Date of Meeting:   
 

Category of Paper   
Tick(üüüü ) 

Executive Director Lead: Phil Corrigan 
 

Decision & Approval 
 √ 

Paper Author: Jane Mischenko 
Head of Commissioning Children & Families 

Position Statement 
  

Paper Title: 
Family Nurse Partnership – small scale permanence 
 

Information 
 

 

Confidential Discussion 
 

 

SUMMARY 
  

The Family Nurse Partnership (FNP) is an intensive preventive programme through pregnancy until the 
child is aged 2 years and is offered specifically to vulnerable first time teenage mothers. Teenage mothers 
are a vulnerable group needing additional support to improve outcomes for both mother and child. 
This programme is only one of two identified in a recent Lancet review as able to prevent child abuse and 
maltreatment.

1
 

 
Leeds was successful in developing a FNP team as part of the national randomised control trial (RCT), 
which commenced in 2009. The Department of Health fully funds the team for the duration of the RCT; this 
completes in January 2013. 
 
The 2011-15 Comprehensive Spending Review and subsequent Operating Framework (2011/12) committed 
to doubling the capacity of FNP in the UK by 2015; this includes the securing of existing provision and the 
expansion of existing sites. In Leeds this has resulted in a trajectory of 4.5wte additional family nurses by 
2015. In 2011/12 NHS Leeds funded an additional 2 family nurses, the plan is for an additional one in 
2012/13 and a further one in 2013/14 and 0.5wte in 2014/15. 
 
The vision is for Leeds to offer the FNP model to all first time mothers aged 17 and under, plus all Looked 
After Children (LAC) who are first time mothers aged 19 and under. All mothers will have to be 20 weeks 
gestation or less to be eligible for the programme, as this maximises the ability for the full programme to be 
delivered. It is recommended that the eligibility criteria are reviewed periodically against recruitment 
performance.  
 
Following consultation with the FNP National Team, the Leeds FNP service and key strategic and 
operational stakeholders, the above criteria were agreed as offering maximum benefit for vulnerable women 
in Leeds in use of the anticipated available resource. These criteria reflect the intention to expand the team 
to 9.5wte family nurses by 2015 in line with the Operating Framework. The current team has 5 family nurses 
and a supervisor (from the original team), plus 2 family nurses recruited in 2011/12. Data analysis has 
indicated that 286 women currently meet the above criteria to be offered the service in Leeds. 
 
Members of the CME are requested to; 
§ Note the strength of the evidence base underpinning this model 
§ Note the alignment to strategic priorities for children and families in Leeds 
§ Note the cost effectiveness of this model 

 
ACTION REQUIRED 
1. Approve the proposed FNP model for Leeds and gradual expansion of the team 

2. Approve the required additional investment required in 2012/13 (£50k additional FN plus £90k tapered 
contribution from DH) 
 

                                            
1 MacMillan, H.L., Wathen, C.N., Barlow, J., Fergusson, D., Leventhal, J.M. and Taussig, N (2009) Interventions to prevent child 

maltreatment and associated impairment. Lancet 373: pp250-266 

AGENDA ITEM: 

Page 67



 
   

 
 

 
1.   Purpose 
 This paper provides background information on the value and impact of investing into the Family Nurse 
Partnership model; it proposed how the Leeds service can be extended, in line with DH expectations, to meet 
the needs of the most vulnerable young mothers in Leeds and to fit with strategic service developments across 
Children’s Services in Leeds. 

 
 
2. Background  
‘Current knowledge about brain and child development, as well as empirical data from cost-benefit studies, 
presents a compelling case for early, public investments targeted preferentially toward those children who are 
at greatest risk of failure in school, in the workplace and in society at large.’  

A Science-Based Framework for Early Childhood Policy 

 
The Family Nurse Partnership (FNP) works with first time teenage mothers. Poor outcomes related to teenage 
mothers include: 

• Infant mortality rates are 60% higher for children of teenage mothers than for those with mothers aged 
20-39 

• Teenage mothers are 3 times more likely to smoke though out their pregnancy than older mothers 

• Children of teenage mothers have a 63% increased risk of being born into poverty 

• Children of teenage mothers have lower educational attainment 

• Teenage mothers have 3 times the rate of postnatal depression  

• Teenage mothers are 50% less likely to breastfeed 

• Daughters of teenage mothers are more likely to become teenage mothers themselves 
 
The FNP is an intensive preventive programme through pregnancy until the child is aged 2 years and is offered 
specifically to vulnerable first time teenage mothers. It is an intensive, in depth programme that works with families 
to achieve change and is delivered by specially trained Family Nurses. The FNP is the ‘intensive care’ end of the 
Healthy Child Programme and meets the evidenced based requirements for a progressive universal service.  It is 
part of the preventive pathway for the most disadvantaged and vulnerable infants.  

 
The FNP is a licensed programme with quality and programme measures to ensure the fidelity of the model 
provided, which is built on 30 years of evidence in the United States. This US research evidences that FNP 
improves parenting and reduces child abuse, improves maternal health in pregnancy and birth outcomes, reduces 
attendance to A&E and hospitalisation for injuries and ingestions, improves the child’s emotional and behavioural 
development, children’s cognitive development and school readiness. In addition it improves mother’s life course 
and economic self-sufficiency and reduces child’s involvement in crime and anti-social behaviour, all of which result 
in significant cost savings. This programme is only one of two identified in a Lancet review as able to prevent child 
abuse and maltreatment.

2
 

 
Leeds was successful in developing a FNP team as part of the national randomised control trial (RCT), of which 
there are 18 sites that commenced in 2009. The Department of Health fully funds the team for the duration of the 
RCT; this completes in January 2013, which is when the last Leeds infant recruited to the trial reaches 2 years. The 
central funding is £360k and resources 5 family nurses, a supervisor and an administrator. 

 
The (2011-15) Comprehensive Spending Review committed to doubling the capacity of FNP in the UK by 2015; 
this includes securing of existing provision and the expansion of existing sites. In Leeds this has resulted in a 
trajectory of 4.5wte additional family nurses by 2015. In 2011/12 NHS Leeds funded an additional 2 family nurses, 
the plan is for an additional one in 2012/13 and a further one in 2013/14 and 0.5wte in 2014/15. 
 
The Operating Framework 2012/13 will reiterate the DH commitment to sustain and expand FNP. Delivery against 
this is the responsibility of PCT Clusters and the SHA within 2012/13; in 2013/14 and 2014/15 commissioning will 
be transferred to the NHS Commissioning Board. From 2015 responsibility will be with Public Heath England via 
health and wellbeing boards locally. 

 
 

Vision:  
The vision is for Leeds to offer the FNP model to all first time mothers aged 17 and under, plus all Looked After 
Children (LAC) who are first time mothers aged 19 and under. All mothers will have to be at 20 weeks gestation or 
less to be eligible for the programme, as this maximises the ability for the full programme to be delivered.  
 

                                            
2 MacMillan, H.L., Wathen, C.N., Barlow, J., Fergusson, D., Leventhal, J.M. and Taussig, N (2009) Interventions to 

prevent child maltreatment and associated impairment. Lancet 373: pp250-266 

Page 68



 
   

 
 

Following consultation with the FNP National Team, the Leeds FNP service and key strategic and operational 
stakeholders, the above criteria were agreed as offering maximum benefit for vulnerable women in Leeds by use of 
the available anticipated resource. These criteria reflect the intention to expand the team to 9.5wte family nurses by 
2015 in line with the Operating Framework. The current team has 5 family nurses and a supervisor (from the 
original team), plus 2 family nurses recruited in 2011/12. Data analysis has indicated that 286 women currently 
meet the criteria to be offered the service in Leeds. 
 

 
Outcomes:  
Advances in research in neuroscience and infant development have identified the criticalness of neurological 
developments during pregnancy and early childhood for future development and outcomes. 
 
An economic evaluation in the US showed that for low-income and unmarried mothers the cost of the programme 
was recovered by the child’s fourth birthday

3
 

 
UK formative evaluation is positive in the areas that are measured in the early years of the programme e.g.,  
 

• Reduced smoking in pregnancy (20% relative reduction),  

• Maternal health and improved birth outcomes,  

• Increased breastfeeding (63% vs. national rate for same age group of 53%),  

• Children’s development (FNP children appear to be developing in line with the population in general – this 
group usually fare much worse),  

• Participation in employment and education  
 
All of which indicates that the model is replicable in the UK and is currently producing outcomes in line with US 
evidence. In addition young parents like and value the programme and report greater confidence in their parenting 
skills. 

 
3. Cost of the Service 

 
 Core team - DH 

funded 
Core team Additional posts as 

per SHA trajectory 
Family nurses

4
 

2010/11 £360k N/A  5  
 

2011/12 £360k  £100k recurrent 7 

2012/13 £270k £90k recurrent £50k recurrent 8 

2013/14 N/A £270k recurrent £50k recurrent 9 

2014/15 N/A  £25k recurrent 9.5 

     

     

Total cost of service by 2015:                                                                                                                         £585k 

 
 
4. Summary Proposal 
To commission and extend the capacity of the existing FNP team to deliver to the new specification and eligibility 
criteria, whist maintaining all quality standards and fidelity measures of the national licensed programme, therefore 
maximising impact and outcomes for vulnerable children and families in Leeds.  

   
5. Engagement 
Young parents are involved in the service delivery and planning of the FNP. All recruitment to the team involves 
young parents and the provider regularly holds service user events. Plans are in place to establish service user 
representation on the FNP Advisory Board.  
 
Key stakeholders from partners across the city are represented on the FNP Advisory Board. 

 
 

6. NHS Leeds strategic Objectives 
The Family Nurse Partnership model contributes to 3 of NHS Leeds strategic objectives; 
 
Objective 1: We will improve your health and wellbeing and protect the health of the population 
Objective 2: We will work with others to reduce inequalities in health 

                                            
3
 http:/www.wsipp.wa.gov/rptfiles/04-07-3901.pdf 

4 Costs also cover supervisor, administrator, training, and oncosts 

Page 69



 
   

 
 

Objective 5: We will help you make choices and feel in control of your healthcare 
 
 
7. Outcomes related to Leeds Children and Young People Plan  

A key outcome that FNP contributes to in the Leeds Children and Young People Plan is for children and young 
people to be safe from harm; within this outcome is the priority is to help children to live in safe and supportive 
families. 
 
A second key outcome FNP contributes to is for children and young people to do well at all levels of learning 
and have the skills for life: priorities within this outcome are an increase in numbers in employment, education 
and training (EET) and to support children to be ready for learning. 
 
This programme is therefore part of the Leeds response to 2 of the 3 Obsessions, to reduce the number of LAC 
and to reduce the number of NEET. 

 
  
8. Contracting 
The service specification for delivery of the Leeds FNP model is complete and the proposal would be for this to be 
contracted and performance managed through existing NHS Leeds - NHS LCHT contract governance structures  
 
 
9. Key Risk Assessment 
Delivery is high on the national agenda; future commissioning plans place it to be funded through public health 
monies and commissioned via the Local Authority. 
  
 
10. Recommendations 

 
§ Approve the proposed FNP model for Leeds and gradual expansion of the team 

§ Approve the additional investment required in 2012/13 (£50k additional FN plus £90k tapered contribution from 
DH) 

 

Page 70



 

INFANT MENTAL HEALTH SERVICE – DRAFT SERVICE MODEL - 
VERSION 4 
 

1.0 Purpose 
The overall aim in commissioning the infant mental health service is to 
increase the universal, targeted and specialist support for 0-2 year olds and 
their parents and carers. A key route for delivering this will be by increasing 
existing staffing capability. 
 
This service supports the Leeds Children and Young People’s Plan key 
priorities of  

• Helping children live in safe and supportive families 

• Ensure that the most vulnerable are protected 
 
And will support the citywide obsession to reduce the number of Looked After 
Children 
 
 
2.0 Planned outcomes 
§ Increased numbers of parents who have been identified as vulnerable in 

the antenatal period feel that they are emotionally supported and develop 
confidence in their parenting abilities 

§ Increased numbers of parents/carers of pre-school children (0-2yrs in the 
first instance) are capable of providing a secure, containing and reciprocal 
environment 

§ More infants and children are able to remain at home with their parents in 
safe and nurturing circumstances 

§ Increased numbers of children entering school with secure attachment, 
and relationships which support healthy development and readiness to 
learn 

 
 
3.0 Aim, Rationale and Evidence1 Base 
The aim of the Infant Mental Health Service is to promote awareness of the 
importance of infant mental health in Leeds, to advise and support with regard 
to the development of coherent strategies to meet the needs of infants and 
pre-school children and to directly support practitioners and parents to best 
meet the emotional needs of this population.  
 
‘The essence of infant mental health lies within the parent-child relationship’ 
[Solchany & Barnard, 2001) 

 
Babies are born pre-programmed to seek out and adapt to the relationship 
that they have with their parents. The child’s first relationship with the primary 
care giver, acts as a template for all subsequent relationships. The quality and 
content of this primary relationship has a physical effect on the 

                                                 
 
1
 The evidence of a case to invest in the service and the model of delivery is summarised within An 

Infant Mental Health Service: The importance of the early years and evidence-based practice (The 

Child Psychotherapy Trust, 2002) 

Page 71



 

neurobiological structure of the child’s brain that will be enduring. The brain is 
at its most adaptable, or plastic, for the first two years after birth. Secure 
attachment is a protective factor conferring confidence and adaptability, 
although not a total guarantee of future mental health, and without this 
resource neither child nor adult will be free to make the most of life’s 
possibilities. 
 
Children with problems related to insecure attachment begin to soak up 
statutory resources from early on when ‘externalising’ behaviour (aggression, 
non-compliance, negative and immature behaviours, etc) demands a 
response. The most sensible and economic time to put in therapeutic 
resources is into promoting and supporting the primary relationship.  
 
Evidence supports the principle that proactive, strength based programmes 
beginning either pre-natally or at birth, have the greatest and most sustained 
effect. 
 
It has been noted that there has been an inverse relationship between 
investment into resources for mental health interventions and age (Getting It 
Right for Children and Young People, Kennedy Review 2010). Hence whilst 
infants and young children have the most potential to benefit from appropriate 
interventions, they receive the least resources. This anomaly has informed the 
conclusions of the Graham Allen’s recent independent report which charges 
Government to establish an Early Intervention Foundation (Early Intervention: 
The Next Steps 2011).  
 
The IMH service would play a central part in the local delivery of services that 
the Early Intervention Foundation is seeking to promote.  
 
The IMH service can be seen as one key part of the specialist end of the 
continuum, which will support and promote good practice in universal and 
targeted service delivery through the provision of training and consultation 
(i.e., the Early Start Service) and undertake some direct (specialist) clinical 
delivery.  
 
 
4.0 The service will provide: 
The Infant Mental Health Service will ensure support is provided for all 0-2 
year olds and their parent/ carers by both supporting universal and targeted 
services to develop their knowledge and skills (capability) in infant mental 
health and through holding a small specialist caseload (as per referral criteria 
and infant mental health pathway – see appendix 1). 
 
The service will: 
 

§ Provide a training programme to community midwifes and the Early 
Start Service workforce on promoting infant mental health/ attachment, 
and on early identification of attachment problems and support 

§ Provide consultation/supervision to Early Start Teams and joint visits 
as appropriate 

Page 72



 

§ Provide specialist clinical assessment and intervention; Psy 
 
 
5.0 Target Population: 
In the first instance the target population is 0-2 year old infants and their 
parents/carers 
 
6.0 Activity: 
For 2012/13 the team will consist of: 

§ Consultant Clinical Psychologist 0.4wte; Specialist Health Visitor 1wte, 
Infant Mental Health Practitioners 1.6wte, Child & Adolescent 
Psychotherapist 0.2wte. 

§ p 
 
 
For 2012/13 the activity will be: 
 

1. 30 training days will be delivered in the 6 months (20 working 
weeks).This equates to 1.5 training days per week.  (3 days per week if 
training delivered by 2 trainers). 

 
(It is anticipated that 12-15 training days will be delivered in the year 2013-
2014.) 

 
2. Leeds IMH service will offer approximately (52) team consultations in 

2012/13  
 
3. Leeds IMH team will offer individual case consultation to approximately 

(104) phone consultations in 2012/13 and approximately (52) one to 
one case consultations in 2012/13  

 
4. Leeds IMHT will offer approximately 20% of resources to direct work 

with families. This will amount to approximately (208) sessions in 
2012/13 Interventions will range from brief (1-2 contacts) to long term 
(20 plus contacts, to be reviewed every 6 contacts) 

 
5. “Sessions” will include patient contact and time spent writing up reports 

and other substantial pieces of case work 
 
 

6.  
 
The resource will be used flexibly in response to need; for example in the first 
year it is anticipated that more training will be delivered to Early Start teams; 
consultation will be available to teams once they have received the initial 
training programme. 
 
Activity levels will be re-profiled with commissioners for 2013/14 
 
 

Page 73



 

7.0 Pathways: 
The infant mental health service supports pathways from prevention, 
assessment, identification, intervention and on-going care/ discharge. The 
service offered at each stage will be tiered as 
 

• Universal – training and consultancy to the Early Start service 

• Targeted – joint working as appropriate with the Early Start service 

• Specialist – direct clinical assessment and intervention 
 

It may be that any individual may move from universal to specialist and back 
to universal. Initial contact with the team will be practitioner (Health Visitor) to 
practitioner, via a phone consultation and no direct work to families will take 
place unless a face-to-face professional consultation has taken place. 
 
 
8.0 Eligibility criteria for targeted or specialist tiers:  
Pregnant women and infants (24 months and under) where there are serious 
concerns about the attachment relationship between infant and primary carer.   
 
In essence the attachment relationship is the ‘client’ for the IMH service and 
will be the main focus of the therapeutic intervention(s).  When individual work 
is undertaken with one or both parents it will be in order to address barriers or 
impediments to the healthy emotional development of the infant and of the 
attachment relationship.  Thus issues such as domestic abuse, past history of 
abuse and neglect, low mood etc may be appropriate to refer to the IMH 
service in some cases and not in others.  In practice teenage parents and 
their infants are likely to be considered as suitable for referral to the service, 
but not inevitably. 
 
8.1 Referral pathway: 
Referrals are accepted from health visitors (Early Start Teams), midwives 
(including specialist midwives), family nurses from the FNP team, school 
nurses, and CAMHS practitioners. 
 
All referrals are to be initiated by the referrer contacting the IMH service (the 
manager, specialist HV for IMH, or one of the IMH practitioners) for discussion 
(face to face or telephone) of potential referral and suitability of referral.  The 
IMH service manager will have the final decision on acceptance or not of 
referrals. Where the referral is not deemed suitable support and advice will be 
provided to the referrer to assist in case-management. 
 
If the referral is accepted as suitable, a formal referral will be made in writing 
on IMH referral form (paper or electronic version).  Incomplete referrals will be 
returned to referrer for full completion. 
 
 
9.0 IMH Intervention: 
The team may contribute to assessments of infant-parent relationships 
alongside other professionals where appropriate.The team do not have the 

Page 74



 

resources to undertake numerous stand alone parenting capacity 
assessments within a child protection plan.  
 
Key interventions are one or a combination of: 
 
Universal 

§ Early attachment psycho/education training (‘Understanding Your 
Baby,’ etc) and consultation (see detail below) 

 
Targeted/Specialist 

§ Specialist assessment and formulation 
§ Parent/carer video feedback 
§ Parent infant psychotherapy (e.g., Watch, Wait, Wonder) 
§ Psychometric assessment of parent or infant functioning/ development 

 
9.1 Consultation/ supervision 
Consultation and supervision will be provided to Early Start teams and other 
groups of prioritised practitioners e.g., the Family Nurse Partnership teams. 
Regular meetings (4-6 weekly) will take place for case discussion and topic 
based discussion as appropriate. Each IMH practitioner will be aligned to 
specific teams and will meet regularly with each team/group. Evaluation of 
effectiveness will be monitored through the use of CHI, in addition to tools to 
capture helpfulness and increased knowledge and confidence. 
 
9.2 Training Programme: 
The training programme delivered will consist of: 
 

1. ‘Supporting Parents to Understand their Baby: Applying Attachment 
Theory’ (full day – accessed via the CAMHS Training Offer) 

2. Introduction to Attachment Theory (half day– accessed via the CAMHS 
Training Offer) 

3. ‘Understanding Babies and Promotion Secure Attachment 
Relationships’ (full day for Early Start Teams): 

o Early Brain development 
o Attachment Theory 
o Understanding Babies (Infant State/ Infant Behaviour/ Infant 

Cues) 
 
10 Potential Evaluation Tools/ Measures: 
Training 

1. Training evaluation feedback form (CAMHS standard form) 
 
Consultation 

2. Feedback from practitioners on consultation using tailor made measure 
 
Clinical Intervention 

3. Feedback from practitioners using CHI (CORC measure) 
4. Quality of Interaction using NCAST (with or without video record) 
5. Goals based outcomes  
6. Session by session monitoring  

Page 75



 

7. Infant measure (e.g., Ages and Stages questionnaire) 
8. Parental measure (e.g., parenting stress or mood/ anxiety measure 

 
 
11 Service current resource 
For 2012/13 the team will consist of: 

§ Consultant Clinical Psychologist 0.4wte; Specialist Health Visitor 1wte, 
Infant Mental Health Practitioners 1.6wte, Child & Adolescent 
Psychotherapist 0.2wte. 

 
Grow service by 1wte HV (band 6) in 2013/14 and a further 1wte (band 6) in 
2014/15 (part of planned investment into HV workforce) 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 76



 

 

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) 

Date: 11 October 2012 

Subject: Leeds Safeguarding Childrens Board 2012 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

 
1.0     Purpose of this report 

1.1  Leeds Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) is a statutory body established under 
the Children Act 2004 and ‘Working Together to Safeguard Children (2010)’. It is 
independently chaired and consists of senior representatives of all the principle 
stakeholders working together to safeguard children and young people in the City. 

 
Its statutory objectives are to: 

• Co-ordinate local work to safeguard and promote the welfare of children 

• To ensure the effectiveness of that work 
 
1.2 Attached is the annual report of Leeds Safeguarding Children Board 2012 for 

consideration by the Scrutiny Board (Children and Families). It describes covering 
a year that has been characterised by the consolidation of significant changes and 
development in the governance, structure, membership, and operation of the Board 
that took place during the previous year. At the same time the national 
Safeguarding agenda, through a series of proposed reforms and developments, is 
driving significant change and this is reflected in the further changes that have 
been initiated during this year in how local child protection services are organised 
and provided. 

2.0      Recommendations 

2.1  The Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) is recommended to:  

• Consider and note the information contained within the LCSB Annual Report 
report and make recommendations as deemed appropriate.   

 Report author:  Sandra Newbould 

Tel:  0113 2474792 

Agenda Item 8

Page 77



 

 

3.0 Background documents1  

None 

  

 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 
 

Page 78



 
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

L
S

C
B

 A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1

2
 

D
a
v
id

 R
a
d
fo

rd
  
- 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
A

d
v
is

o
r 

to
 t
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 

 
 

H
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 f
ro

m
 t
h
is

 R
e
p
o
rt

: 
 In

 O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1

1
 O

fs
te

d
 p

u
b

lis
h
e

d
 t
h

e
ir
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 a

n
n

o
u

n
c
e

d
 r

e
-i
n

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
S

a
fe

g
u
a

rd
in

g
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
. 
 T

h
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 r
e

c
o
g

n
is

e
d

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n
ts

 m
a
d

e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
. 
T

a
k
e
n
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 t
h

e
ir
 u

n
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
d
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
n
ta

c
t,
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
a
n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n
 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0
1

1
 -

 w
h

e
n

 O
fs

te
d

 n
o

te
d

 ‘
re

m
a
rk

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
re

s
s
iv

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

’ 
- 

th
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 e

n
d

o
rs

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
. 

 W
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
-o

rg
a
n

is
e

d
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n
s
. 
D

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 a

 n
e
w

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 w
it
h

in
 L

e
e

d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

w
a
s
 c

re
a

te
d

 f
o

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 t
o
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
T

e
a

m
s
 t
h

a
t 
p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 w
o
rk

e
d

 w
it
h
in

 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d

s
, 
E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e

 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d

 Y
o
u
th

 
S

u
p

p
o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e

, 
C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n
d

 Y
o
u
n
g

 P
e
o
p
le

’s
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 U

n
it
, 
b
e

c
a
m

e
 a

n
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 t
h
a
t 
is

 b
e
tt
e

r 
p
la

c
e
d
 

to
 r

e
s
p
o

n
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 g
ro

w
in

g
 u

p
 i
n

 L
e

e
d
s
. 
 

 T
h

e
 L

S
C

B
 a

n
d

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 j
o

in
tl
y
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 a

n
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
e

 t
o

 r
e
q

u
e
s
ts

 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

 m
a
d
e

 t
o
 t
h
e
 ‘
fr

o
n
t 
d
o
o
r’
 d

u
ty

 s
y
s
te

m
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 b

y
 P

ro
fe

s
s
o
r 

D
a
v
id

 T
h

o
rp

e
. 
A

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

u
ty

 s
y
s
te

m
 i
s
 v

ie
w

e
d

 a
s
 a

 k
e
y
 t
a
s
k
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g
 t

o
 t
h
e
 ‘
re

b
a

la
n
c
in

g
’ 
o

f 
th

e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d

 a
 n

e
w

 d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 m

u
lt
i-

a
g
e
n
c
y
 D

u
ty

 a
n
d
 A

d
v
ic

e
 T

e
a
m

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n
tr

e
 f
ro

m
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
2
. 

 C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 ‘
E

a
rl
y
 S

ta
rt

‘ 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 t

o
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 a

lig
n
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n
d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
’s

 
P

la
n
. 
T

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
n
 E

a
rl
y
 S

ta
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 b

ri
n

g
in

g
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
 V

is
it
o
rs

 a
n
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
 s

ta
ff

 w
o
rk

in
g
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

in
 l
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d

 t
e

a
m

s
 l
in

k
e

d
 

to
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
‘C

lu
s
te

rs
’ 
o
f 
o
th

e
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

ls
 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 e

a
rl
y
 h

e
lp

. 
 In

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
tt
e
rn

 o
f 
u
s
a
g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 (
C

A
F

) 
w

a
s
 f
u

lly
 u

n
d

e
rs

to
o
d

 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 C

A
F

 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 u

s
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 ‘
re

b
a
la

n
c
in

g
’ 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
th

e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 T
ru

s
t 
B

o
a
rd

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

e
d
 a

 

Page 79



m
a
jo

r 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
in

 L
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 M

a
rk

 P
e
e
l 
fr

o
m

 L
e
ic

e
s
te

r 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

. 
T

h
e
 w

o
rk

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 

th
a
t 
in

 f
a
c
t 
in

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
C

A
F

s
 b

e
in

g
 i
n

s
ti
g
a
te

d
 h

a
d

 c
o
m

p
a

re
d

 w
e

ll 
w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

s
im

ila
r 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
. 

 In
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
1
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 a

n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n

t 
a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 e

x
te

n
t 
to

 w
h
ic

h
 i
t 
w

a
s
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e
ly

 c
a
rr

y
in

g
 o

u
t 
th

e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

s
c
ri
b
e
d

 t
o
 i
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
. 
O

v
e
ra

ll,
 t
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 a

t 
th

a
t 
ti
m

e
 t
h
a
t 
a
lm

o
s
t 
a
ll 

o
f 
th

e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 b
e
in

g
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d

 t
o
 a

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
r 

b
e
tt
e
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 

c
le

a
r 

p
la

n
s
 w

e
re

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
w

h
e

re
 n

e
e

d
e
d

. 
T

h
is

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

a
s
 e

n
d
o
rs

e
d

 b
y
 a

n
 O

fs
te

d
 i
n
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 r
e

p
o
rt

 p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 

 O
v
e

ra
ll 

g
o
o

d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 s

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

in
 a

n
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
 L

S
C

B
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
. 

 T
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 h

a
s
 i
n
p
u
tt
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p

le
 P

la
n
 (

C
Y

P
P

) 
2
0
1
1
-1

5
 a

n
d
 s

e
t 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 t
o

 t
h
e
 C

T
B

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 t
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
T

h
e
 L

S
C

B
 C

h
a
ir
 i
s
 c

o
-s

p
o
n
s
o
r 

o
f 
o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 5

 k
e
y
 C

Y
P

P
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
: 
th

a
t 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

a
n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
re

 s
a
fe

 f
ro

m
 h

a
rm

. 
 T

h
e
 n

e
w

 L
S

C
B

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
S

y
s
te

m
 (

P
M

S
),

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 B

a
s
e
d
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
, 
w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 f

o
r 

g
ra

d
u
a

l 
im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
. 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 o

f 
c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 (

C
P

) 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 
P

e
o
p
le

 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
o
r 

s
u
ff
e
ri
n
g

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
h
a

rm
: 

 

 
A

 n
e

w
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 c
h

ild
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 c
o
n

fe
re

n
c
e
s
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
d

 o
v
e
rw

h
e
lm

in
g
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

 a
s
 a

 m
u

c
h

 m
o
re

 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 w

a
y
 o

f 
e
x
p
lo

ri
n
g
 r

is
k
, 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 p
la

n
s
 a

n
d

 e
n

g
a

g
in

g
 f
a

m
ili

e
s
. 

 

 
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
In

it
ia

l 
C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
fe

re
n

c
e
s
 h

e
ld

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

h
a
s
 f
a
lle

n
 s

te
a
d
ily

 f
ro

m
 a

 p
e
a
k
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
1

. 
 

 
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 a
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 h

a
s
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f
ro

m
 1

0
1
9

 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
 t
o
 9

2
4
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
. 
T

h
e
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 t
o
 8

9
3
 s

u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 d

o
w

n
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d
 i
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
. 
 

  
 

 

Page 80



1
.0

 
     1
.1

 
   1
.2

 
   1
.3

 
    1
.4

 
    1
.5

 
  1
.6

 
       1
.7

 
  

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
: 

T
h

e
 L

S
C

B
 h

a
s
 a

 k
e
y
 r

o
le

 i
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 h

ig
h

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 i
n

 s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 
a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 w
e
lf

a
re

, 
n

o
t 

ju
s
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti

n
g

 b
u

t 
b

y
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 
a
n

d
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
o

u
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t.
’ 
W

o
rk

in
g

 T
o

g
e
th

e
r 

to
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 C
h

il
d

re
n

, 
2
0
1
0
, 
p

a
g

e
 9

3
. 

L
e
e
d
s
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
 B

o
a
rd

 (
L
S

C
B

) 
is

 a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 b
o
d
y
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 u

n
d
e

r 
th

e
 C

h
ild

re
n

 A
c
t 
2

0
0

4
 a

n
d

 ‘
W

o
rk

in
g

 T
o

g
e

th
e
r 

to
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 
C

h
ild

re
n

 (
2

0
1
0

)’
. 
It

 i
s
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

tl
y
 c

h
a

ir
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o
n

s
is

ts
 o

f 
s
e

n
io

r 
re

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
a
ll 

th
e
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 w
o
rk

in
g
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

to
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
. 
 

 It
s
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 t
o
: 

 
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 l
o

c
a
l 
w

o
rk

 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 w

e
lf
a
re

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

 
T

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

a
t 
w

o
rk

 
 

T
h
e
 f
u
ll 

B
o
a
rd

 c
u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 m

e
e
ts

 b
i-
m

o
n
th

ly
 a

n
d
 a

n
 E

x
e

c
u
ti
v
e
 G

ro
u
p
 m

e
e
ts

 o
n
 t
h
e
 a

lt
e
rn

a
te

 m
o

n
th

s
 i
n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 m
a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 m

o
m

e
n
tu

m
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 t
h
e

 B
o

a
rd

’s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
w

o
rk

lo
a

d
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
s
. 
T

h
e

 B
o

a
rd

 h
a
s
 a

 s
e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
s
u

b
-g

ro
u
p
s
, 
e
a

c
h

 w
it
h

 i
ts

 o
w

n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
, 
fo

c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 k

e
y
 

e
le

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

’s
 w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

is
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
e
d
 b

y
 a

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it
 w

h
ic

h
, 
c
o
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 b

y
 r

e
c
e
n
t 
a
d
d
it
io

n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t,
 i
s
 

a
b
le

 t
o
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 v

a
ri
e
d
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

’s
 w

o
rk

. 
(S

e
e
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
, 

S
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
) 

 
 T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
L
e
e
d
s
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

 C
h
ild

re
n
 B

o
a
rd

 c
o
v
e

rs
 a

 y
e
a
r 

th
a
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 c
h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
o

lid
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
, 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

, 
a
n
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

 t
h
a
t 
to

o
k
 p

la
c
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 A
t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t
im

e
 

th
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 a
g

e
n

d
a

, 
th

ro
u
g

h
 a

 s
e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 r
e
fo

rm
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
, 
is

 d
ri
v
in

g
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 i
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

c
h
a
n

g
e

s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
it
ia

te
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

in
 h

o
w

 l
o
c
a
l 
c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
d
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 w

o
rk

s
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 T

ru
s
t 
B

o
a
rd

 (
C

T
B

).
 T

h
e
 C

T
B

 i
s
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 a
c
c
o
u

n
ta

b
le

 f
o

r 
o

v
e

rs
e

e
in

g
 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 &

 Y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

’s
 P

la
n
 (

C
Y

P
P

).
 

 T
h

is
 R

e
p

o
rt

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e
s
 f
o

r 
b

o
th

 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 a

n
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 T
ru

s
t 
B

o
a
rd

. 
T

h
e
 C

T
B

 m
u
s
t 
c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 i
n
 p

re
p

a
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 r

e
fr

e
s
h

in
g

 
th

e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 &

 Y
o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p

le
’s

 P
la

n
. 
T

h
e
 M

u
n
ro

 R
e
v
ie

w
, 
a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 s

y
s
te

m
, 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
o
n
c
e
 p

u
b

lis
h
e

d
 t
h

e
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 s
h
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 t

h
e
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 L

e
a
d
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
P

o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 C

ri
m

e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

r 
(w

h
e
n

 i
n

 p
la

c
e
) 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

. 
It

 i
s
 e

n
v
is

a
g
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
f 
W

o
rk

in
g
 T

o
g
e
th

e
r 

g
u
id

a
n

c
e
, 
th

e
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 

in
 t
h
e
 l
a
tt
e
r 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
2
0
1
2
, 
w

ill
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d

a
ti
o

n
. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 l
o
c
a
l 
a
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 s
u
b
m

it
 i
t 
to

 t
h

e
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 b

o
d
ie

s
 o

f 
a
ll 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
ir
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
s
a
fe

g
u
a

rd
in

g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
. 

  In
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

a
t 
a
d
o
p
te

d
 f
o
r 

th
is

 r
e
p
o

rt
 i
s
 s

im
ila

r 
to

 t
h
e
 o

n
e
 u

s
e
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.

 T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t
h
a
t 
is

 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g
u
id

a
n

c
e
. 
 

  

Page 81



2
.0

 
 2
.1

 
  2
.2

 
  2
.3

 
    2
.4

 
         2
.5

 
                

L
S

C
B

 V
is

io
n

, 
V

a
lu

e
s
 a

n
d

 P
ri

n
c
ip

le
s
 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
th

e
ir
 w

e
lf
a
re

, 
p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 b

e
s
t 
in

te
re

s
ts

 a
re

 a
t 
th

e
 h

e
a
rt

 o
f 
e
v
e
ry

th
in

g
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 d

o
e
s
. 
T

h
e

 e
x
is

te
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 

p
ro

m
in

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
w

h
a
t 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

 s
ta

n
d
s
 f
o
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 h
o
w

 i
t 
c
a
rr

ie
s
 o

u
t 
it
s
 w

o
rk

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 c

ru
c
ia

l.
 

 T
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

ro
u
g

h
 t
h

e
 L

S
C

B
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 w
o
rk

in
g

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
a
t 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 c

re
a

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 

2
0

1
1
-1

5
. 

O
u

r 
V

is
io

n

Is
 f
o

r 
L

e
e
d

s
 t
o

 b
e

 a
 c

h
ild

 f
ri
e

n
d

ly
 c

it
y
 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

re
 s

a
fe

 f
ro

m
 h

a
rm

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
, 
th

e
ir
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 

n
e

ig
h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d

s
. 
 

O
u

r 
V

a
lu

e
s

W
e
 w

ill
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
s
e
 v

a
lu

e
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 o

u
r 

b
e

h
a
v
io

u
rs

 j
o
in

tl
y
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 T

ru
s
t 
B

o
a
rd

  

 
C

e
le

b
ra

ti
n
g

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 

 
E

n
g
a
g
in

g
 c

it
iz

e
n
s
 l
o
c
a
lly

 

 
B

e
in

g
 o

p
e
n

 a
n

d
 h

o
n
e

s
t 

 
W

o
rk

in
g

 a
s
 a

 t
e

a
m

 f
o

r 
L

e
e

d
s
 

 
S

p
e

n
d

in
g

 m
o

n
e

y
 w

is
e

ly
 

O
u

r 
p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s

W
e
 a

re
 a

s
 a

 B
o
a
rd

: 
 

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
d

 t
o
 p

u
tt
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

 /
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
 a

t 
th

e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 o

f 
a
ll 

th
a
t 
w

e
 d

o

 
F

o
c
u

s
e
d

 o
n

 g
e

tt
in

g
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 r
ig

h
t 
fo

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
, 
y
o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 f
a
m

ili
e

s
 

 
C

le
a

r 
a
b
o
u
t 
w

h
a
t 
w

e
 e

x
p
e
c
t 

o
f 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 
In

fo
rm

e
d

 a
b
o
u
t 
h
o
w

 w
e
ll 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p

le
 a

re
 i
n

 L
e

e
d
s
 

 
O

p
e

n
 a

b
o
u
t 
w

h
a
t 
w

e
 d

o
 a

n
d
 w

h
y
 

 
C

o
-o

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
 a

n
d

 c
o

ll
a
b

o
ra

ti
v
e

 w
it
h

 e
a
c
h

 o
th

e
r 

 
C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
in

g
o
f 
e
a
c
h
 o

th
e

r 
a

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 e

a
c
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 

 
E

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 

 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

e
o
p

le
 o

f 
L
e
e
d
s
 f
o
r 

h
o

w
 w

e
 i
n
v
e
s
t 
o
u
r 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
  

 
A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d

 b
y
 c

h
ild

re
n
, 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
, 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 t
h
e
y
 l
iv

e
 i
n
, 
th

e
 s

ta
ff

 i
n
 o

u
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a

t 
s
e

rv
e
 

th
e
m

, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 T

ru
s
t 

 
L

e
a
rn

in
g

fr
o
m

 e
v
e
ry

th
in

g
 w

e
 d

o
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
n
g

in
g

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 

 
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p

le
 

Page 82



 2
.5

1
 

 
A

ll 
o

u
r 

w
o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d
e

rp
in

n
e
d

 b
y
 a

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 s
e

t 
o

f 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
e

s
, 
s
h

a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 T

ru
s
t 
B

o
a
rd

, 
s
o
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 a

ll 
w

o
rk

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

im
p

ro
v
e
d
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 f
o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 –
  

 
T

h
e
 c

h
ild

 I
S

 t
h
e
 c

lie
n
t 

 
T

a
lk

in
g

 a
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 l
a

n
g

u
a
g

e
 

 
U

s
in

g
 ‘
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 b

a
s
e
d

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

ili
ty

’ 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n

 e
a
c
h

 l
o
c
a

lit
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

e
e
d

s
 

 
D

o
in

g
 t
h
in

g
s
 W

IT
H

 c
h
ild

re
n

 a
n
d

 f
a
m

ili
e

s
, 
n

o
t 
T

O
 o

r 
F

O
R

 t
h

e
m

 

 
D

o
in

g
 t
h

e
 s

im
p

le
 t
h

in
g
s
 b

e
tt
e

r 
–

 n
e
v
e

r 
d
o

in
g

 n
o

th
in

g
 

 
S

u
p

p
o
rt

in
g

 s
tr

o
n

g
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
, 
s
e

tt
in

g
s
, 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

 
In

v
o

lv
in

g
 e

v
e
ry

o
n

e
 w

h
o

 h
a
s
 a

 p
a

rt
 t
o

 p
la

y
 –

 a
 w

h
o

le
 c

it
y
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 

 
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 

 
T

a
rg

e
ti
n

g
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 t
o

 m
a

k
e
 t
h
e
 b

ig
g

e
s
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o

n
 o

u
r 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
 

 
3
.0

 
 3
.1

 
     3
.2

 
     3
.3

 
 3
.4

 

T
h
e
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

o
n
te

x
t 

 L
e
e

d
s
 i
s
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d

 l
a
rg

e
s
t 
c
it
y
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

in
 E

n
g
la

n
d
. 
T

h
e

 p
o
p
u

la
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

a
p
id

ly
 i
n
 r

e
c
e
n
t 
y
e
a
rs

. 
T

h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 i
s
 

7
9
8
,8

0
0
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n

ti
n
g

 a
 1

2
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
1
0

 y
e
a

rs
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e

 r
e
g
io

n
a
lly

 a
n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a

lly
. 
T

h
e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

a
n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
g
e
d
 0

-1
9

 i
s
 a

lm
o
s
t 
1
8
0
,0

0
0
. 
W

it
h
in

 t
h
is

, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
v
e
ry

 y
o
u
n
g
 c

h
ild

re
n
 (

0
-4

 y
e
a
r 

o
ld

s
) 

h
a

s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f
a
s
te

r 
w

it
h
 o

v
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 

c
h

ild
re

n
 b

o
rn

 i
n

 L
e

e
d
s
 i
n

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

. 
L

e
e

d
s
 h

a
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 h

ig
h

e
r 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

 o
f 
1
5
–

2
5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
 r

e
g
io

n
a
l 
a
n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
s
, 
w

it
h

 a
 t
o
ta

l 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
2
8
9
,0

0
0
 0

-2
5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
. 
 

 L
e
e
d
s
 i
s
 a

 v
e
ry

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 c

it
y
, 
w

it
h
 o

v
e
r 

1
3
0
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lit

ie
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 a

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
ju

s
t 
le

s
s
 t
h
a
n
 1

7
.4

%
. 
T

h
e

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

 o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 

L
e

e
d
s
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 o

f 
m

in
o

ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 h
e

ri
ta

g
e

 h
a
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 s

ix
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
 s

in
c
e

 2
0
0
5
 t
o
 2

2
.5

%
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 2

0
1
1
. 
A

 h
ig

h
e
r 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

 o
f 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 t
h
a
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 p
u
p
ils

 a
re

 o
f 
m

in
o

ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 h
e
ri
ta

g
e
. 
S

o
m

e
 1

4
%

 o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 h
a

v
e
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

s
 a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
la

n
g
u

a
g

e
 a

n
d

 o
v
e
r 

1
7

0
 

la
n
g
u
a
g
e
s
 a

re
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

s
 s

p
o
k
e
n
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

. 
T

h
e
 l
a
rg

e
s
t 

m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 a

re
 t
h
e
 I
n
d
ia

n
 a

n
d
 P

a
k
is

ta
n
i 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 b

u
t 
m

o
re

 
re

c
e
n
tl
y
 t
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n

 a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 m

ig
ra

ti
o
n
, 
m

a
in

ly
 f
ro

m
 E

a
s
te

rn
 E

u
ro

p
e

. 
  T

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 s

o
m

e
 r

u
ra

l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 d

e
n
s
e
ly

 p
o
p
u
la

te
d

 i
n
n
e
r 

c
it
y
 a

re
a
s
 w

h
e
re

 p
e
o
p
le

 c
a
n
 f

a
c
e
 m

u
lt
ip

le
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
. 

  T
h
e
 I
n
d
ic

e
s
 o

f 
M

u
lt
ip

le
 D

e
p
ri

v
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 
1
9
%

, 
o
r 

o
v
e

r 
1
5
0
,0

0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 L

e
e
d

s
, 
liv

e
 i
n
 a

re
a
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 r
a
n
k
e
d
 a

m
o
n
g
s
t 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 
d

e
p

ri
v
e

d
 1

0
%

 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

. 
A

ro
u
n
d
 3

0
,0

0
0
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
2
3
%

 o
f 
a
ll 

th
o
s
e
 a

g
e
d
 0

-1
6

, 
liv

e
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
. 
 

4
.0

 
 4
.0

1
 

 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 A

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
. 

 T
h
is

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 R

e
p
o
rt

 d
ra

w
s
 t
o
g
e

th
e
r 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 a

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
ic

tu
re

 o
f 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
t 
th

e
 p

re
s
e
n
t 

ti
m

e
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 i
n

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
lle

c
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
te

rp
re

t 
th

e
 d

a
ta

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 c
o
m

m
o
n
 p

ic
tu

re
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
tr

y
. 
A

s
 a

 

Page 83



      4
.0

2
 

                       4
.0

3
 

   4
.0

4
 

     

re
s
u
lt
 o

f 
re

c
e
n
t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 h

o
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 i
n
s
p

e
c
te

d
 t
h
e
re

 w
ill

, 
in

 t
h
e
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 f
u
tu

re
, 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
m

o
v
e
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 g

re
a
te

r 
s
e
p
a

ra
ti
o
n

 o
f 
th

e
 q

u
a
n
ti
ty

 o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 (

h
o
w

 m
u
c
h
 a

re
 w

e
 d

o
in

g
?
) 

th
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 (
h
o
w

 w
e
ll 

a
re

 w
e
 d

o
in

g
 i
t?

) 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 (
w

h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 a

re
 w

e
 m

a
k
in

g
?
) 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 r

ig
h
tl
y
 g

iv
e

 a
n

 e
m

p
h
a

s
is

 a
n

d
 g

re
a

te
r 

fo
c
u

s
 o

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n

g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 –
 a

n
d
 o

n
 b

e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
h

is
. 
B

o
th

 t
h
e
 C

T
B

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 h

a
v
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 m

a
d
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 
m

o
v
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
is

 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 B

a
s
e
d
 A

c
c
o
u
n

ta
b

ili
ty

 (
O

B
A

) 
Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 
 T

h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 T
ru

s
t 
B

o
a
rd

 i
s
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
, 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

Y
P

P
, 
fo

r 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
. 
T

h
e

 L
e

e
d
s
 C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g

 P
e

o
p
le

’s
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
1
-1

5
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
y
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 T
ru

s
t 
B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

1
, 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

re
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 f
ir
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

o
f 
im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

. 
T

h
e

 C
T

B
 h

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 f
o
u
r 

g
u
id

in
g
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 a

ll 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 

c
h
ild

re
n

, 
y
o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 p

re
d
ic

a
te

d
 o

n
 a

 ‘
re

s
to

ra
ti
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
’ 
b
u
ilt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
ic

 p
re

m
is

e
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
o

p
le

 a
re

 h
a
p
p
ie

r,
 m

o
re

 
c
o
-o

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
, 
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 m

o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 w

h
e
n

 t
h
o
s
e
 i
n
 p

o
s
it
io

n
s
 o

f 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 d
o
 t
h
in

g
s
 w

it
h

 t
h
e
m

 r
a
th

e
r 

to
 t
h
e
m

 o
r 

fo
r 

th
e
m

. 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 a
 f
u
n
d
a
m

e
n
ta

l 
re

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 T
ru

s
t 
a
n
d
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 l
o
c
a
l 

c
it
iz

e
n

s
. 

 
1
) 

T
h
e
 d

e
fa

u
lt
 b

e
h
a
v
io

r 
o
f 
C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 T
ru

s
t 
a
n
d
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 a

ll 
d
e
a

lin
g
s
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
it
iz

e
n
s
 /
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 /
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 r
e
s
to

ra
ti
v
e
 o

n
e
, 
c
o
m

b
in

in
g
 h

ig
h
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
 h

ig
h
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
. 

 
2
) 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 T
ru

s
t 
a
n
d
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
h
o
u

ld
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
fa

m
ili

e
s
, 
w

h
o
s
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 m

ig
h
t 
o
th

e
rw

is
e
 b

e
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

ir
 

h
o
m

e
s
, 
a
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 s
a
fe

 a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 p

la
n
 b

e
fo

re
 s

u
c
h
 a

c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
. 

 
3

) 
F

o
r 

a
ll 

o
th

e
r 

fa
m

ili
e

s
 w

h
e
re

 a
 p

la
n

 o
r 

d
e
c
is

io
n

 n
e

e
d
s
 t
o

 b
e

 m
a
d
e
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 w

e
lf
a
re

 o
f 
a
 c

h
ild

, 
o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
, 
th

e
 

fa
m

ily
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 d
e
c
id

e
 w

h
a
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 h

a
p
p
e
n
. 

C
o

n
d
it
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t 
b
e
 c

re
a
te

d
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 t
o
 s

a
fe

ly
 h

e
lp

 
th

e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
. 

 
4
) 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 T
ru

s
t 
a
n
d
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 m
u
s
t 
s
e
e
 a

ll 
lo

c
a

l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

s
s
e
ts

 a
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 a

 c
le

a
r 

ro
le

 i
n
 h

o
ld

in
g

 t
h

o
s
e

 
in

s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 a

c
c
o
u
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
y
 m

a
k
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
, 
re

g
a

rd
le

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 
in

 p
la

c
e
. 

 
T

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

A
F

 a
n
d
 F

a
m

ily
 G

ro
u
p
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 a

re
 s

e
e

n
 a

s
 k

e
y
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

e
s
 i
n

 u
n

d
e

rp
in

n
in

g
 t
h

e
s
e

 g
u
id

in
g

 p
ri
n

c
ip

le
s
. 

 S
a

fe
g

u
a
rd

in
g
 c

h
ild

re
n

 i
n

 L
e

e
d
s
 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

la
n
: 
‘t
h

a
t 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

re
 s

a
fe

 f
ro

m
 h

a
rm

’ 
is

 o
n
e
 o

f 
5
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

s
o
u
g
h
t;

 a
n
d
 o

f 
1
1
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 ‘
h
e
lp

 c
h
ild

re
n
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n

 s
a

fe
 a

n
d
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

iv
e
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
’ 
is

 o
n
e
 o

f 
3
 t
h
a
t 
is

 s
e
e
n
 a

s
 a

 k
e
y
 s

ta
rt

in
g
 p

o
in

t.
  
O

f 
1
6
 k

e
y
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 o

f 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 ‘
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
lo

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
’ 
is

 o
n

e
 o

f 
3

 “
o

b
s
e

s
s
io

n
s
” 

th
a
t 
a
re

 s
e
e
n
 a

s
 k

e
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

la
n
. 

 L
e
e
d
s
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
b
u
t 
d
is

ti
n

c
ti
v
e

 r
o

le
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 T
ru

s
t 
B

o
a

rd
 i
n

 k
e

e
p

in
g

 c
h

ild
re

n
 s

a
fe

. 
W

h
ils

t 
th

e
 C

T
B

 i
s
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

o
v
e
rs

e
e
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 &

 Y
o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

’s
 P

la
n
. 
T

h
e
 L

S
C

B
 i
s
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 i
n
 t
u
rn

 f
o
r 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g

 t
h

e
 C

T
B

 o
n

 t
h
e

ir
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 k

e
e

p
in

g
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n
d

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 s
a
fe

. 
T

h
e
 t
w

o
 B

o
a
rd

s
 h

a
v
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 a
n
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

ir
e

c
t 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

, 
w

it
h
 r

e
g
u

la
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n

s
, 
s
e
e
k
in

g
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 d

u
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 n

o
 u

n
h
e
lp

fu
l 
g
a
p
s
 i
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 o
r 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n

a
l 

p
o
lic

ie
s
, 
p
ro

to
c
o
ls

, 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

r 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
. 
T

h
e
 L

S
C

B
 h

a
s
 a

 s
e
p
a
ra

te
 i
d
e
n
ti
ty

 a
n
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
v
o
ic

e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 T
ru

s
t;

 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 
s
u
b
o
rd

in
a
te

 t
o
 o

r 
s
u
b
s
u
m

e
d
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 C

T
B

. 

Page 84



 4
.0

5
 

  4
.0

6
 

     4
.0

7
 

   4
.0

8
 

    4
.0

9
 

     4
.0

1
0
 

   4
.0

1
1
 

          

 T
h
e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
e

a
c
h
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
th

e
 o

th
e

r 
B

o
a
rd

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
lo

s
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

 g
o
o
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

s
h

ip
. 

A
g

e
n

d
a
s
 f
o

r 
e
a
c
h
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 r

o
u
ti
n
e
ly

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 

u
p
d
a
te

s
 o

n
 k

e
y
 m

a
tt
e
rs

 d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 o

th
e
r 

B
o
a
rd

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 

 T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
s
 o

f 
th

e
 t
w

o
 B

o
a
rd

s
 m

e
e
t 
p
e
ri
o
d

ic
a
lly

 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

n
d

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
lo

s
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 t
h
e
 t
w

o
 B

o
a
rd

s
. 

T
h

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
a

c
ili

ta
te

s
 t
h
e

s
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 
T

h
e
 L

S
C

B
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 a

n
d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 w

e
re

 p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e

 C
T

B
 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
1

. 
 

T
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
w

a
s
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

T
B

 i
n

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
1
. 
L
S

C
B

 P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 a
n
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
s
u
b

 g
ro

u
p
s
 

a
re

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

T
B

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 r

e
fo

rm
 s

u
b
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 v

a
lu

e
s
, 
a
tt

it
u
d
e
s
 a

n
d
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

 t
o
 u

n
d
e

rp
in

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

w
o
rk

in
g
. 

 T
h

e
 L

S
C

B
 h

a
s
 i
n

p
u

tt
e

d
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 P

la
n

 2
0

1
1
-1

5
 a

n
d
 s

e
t 
c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

T
B

 f
o

r 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
T

h
e
 L

S
C

B
 C

h
a
ir
 i
s
 c

o
-s

p
o
n
s
o
r 

o
f 
o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 5

 k
e
y
 C

Y
P

P
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
: 
th

a
t 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 s
a

fe
 f
ro

m
 h

a
rm

. 
 W

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
-o

rg
a
n

is
e

d
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n
s
. 
D

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 a

 n
e
w

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 w
it
h

in
 L

e
e

d
s
 C

it
y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
a
s
 c

re
a

te
d

 f
o

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
. 
T

h
is

 b
ro

u
g

h
t 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
te

a
m

s
 a

n
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 w
o
rk

e
d
 w

it
h
in

: 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

L
e
e
d
s
; 
E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 Y

o
u
th

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
: 
C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

’s
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

: 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 U

n
it
, 

to
 c

re
a
te

 a
 n

e
w

 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
is

 b
e
tt

e
r 

p
la

c
e
d

 t
o
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 g

ro
w

in
g

 u
p

 i
n

 L
e

e
d
s
. 
 

 A
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 h

a
s
 t
a

k
e
n

 p
la

c
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
: 

 
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
o
 c

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 n

e
e
d

 
 

c
h

ild
re

n
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 c
h

ild
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
s
 

 
c
h

ild
re

n
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 c
a
re

 p
ro

c
e
e

d
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 c
h

ild
re

n
 l
o
o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e
r 

b
y
 L

e
e

d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

  
 T

h
e

s
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 t
it
le

 o
f 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

C
S

W
S

).
  
U

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 c

h
ild

re
n
’s

 s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 t
e

a
m

s
 a

re
 

lo
c
a
lly

 b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 l
o

c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

s
 o

th
e
r 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

u
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

lu
s
te

r 
m

o
d
e
l 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
g

ro
u

p
s
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 s

o
 t
h
e
y
 c

a
n
 w

o
rk

 m
o
re

 
c
lo

s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
h
e
a
lt
h
 v

is
it
in

g
 t
e
a
m

s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e

r 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 
 T

h
e

 n
e
w

 t
e

a
m

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

 
L

o
o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 t
e

a
m

s
 -

 a
ll 

th
re

e
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

tw
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
a
g
e
 g

ro
u
p

s
, 
a
g
e
 1

2
 a

n
d
 u

n
d

e
r 

a
n

d
 1

3
 

p
lu

s
. 
 T

h
e
s
e

 t
e

a
m

s
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 n
e

e
d
s
 o

f 
lo

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 p

la
n
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
m

o
re

 c
h
ild

re
n
 e

x
p
e
ri
e

n
c
e
 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
c
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

d
o
p
ti
o
n
, 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
g
u
a
rd

ia
n
s
h
ip

, 
re

tu
rn

 t
o
 t
h

e
ir
 f
a
m

ily
 o

r 
in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
. 
 

 
S

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 t
e

a
m

s
 -

 s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 t
e

a
m

s
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 c
h

ild
re

n
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
n
e
e
d
, 
c
h
ild

re
n
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

o
s
e

 
c
h

ild
re

n
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 c
a
re

 p
ro

c
e
e

d
in

g
s
. 
L
o

c
a

lit
y
-b

a
s
e

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 t
e
a
m

s
 n

o
w

 w
o
rk

 v
e
ry

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
ta

rg
e
te

d
 a

n
d
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 

h
e

lp
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
c
h
o

o
ls

, 
h

e
a

lt
h

 v
is

it
in

g
 t

e
a

m
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 t
h
a
t 
s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 m
a

n
a

g
e
rs

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h
. 
 T

h
e
 a

im
 

is
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 m

o
re

 i
n
-d

e
p

th
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
lia

is
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
h

a
ri
n
g

 o
f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
fo

r 
th

e
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
  

Page 85



4
.0

1
2
 

         4
.0

1
3
 

      4
.0

1
4
 

   4
.0

1
5
 

      

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
tr

a
n
d
s
 t
o
 t
h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
: 

 
 

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

a
rl
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
n
d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 t
o
 r

e
d
u

c
e
 f
a
m

ily
 b

re
a

k
d

o
w

n
, 
in

 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
th

e
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
L
e

e
d
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
in

g
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 ‘
fr

o
n
t 
d
o
o
r’
 a

rr
a
n
g
e

m
e
n
ts

 (
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
o
 a

n
d

 
a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 b

y
 C

S
W

S
);

 
 

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

 b
a
s
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
p

re
v
e

n
t 
fa

m
ily

 b
re

a
k
d
o
w

n
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
h
ild

re
n
 t
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

ir
 f
a
m

ily
 u

n
d
e
rp

in
n
e

d
 b

y
 

R
e
s
to

ra
ti
v
e

 P
ra

c
ti
c
e

, 
F

a
m

ily
 G

ro
u

p
 C

o
n

fe
re

n
c
in

g
 a

n
d

 M
u
lt
i 
S

y
s
te

m
ic

 T
h
e
ra

p
y
; 

 
S

tr
e

n
g

th
e
n

in
g

 c
a

re
 p

la
n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
lo

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 t
h

ro
u

g
h
 t
h
e
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 t
e
a
m

s
. 

  T
h

e
 L

S
C

B
 a

n
d

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 j
o

in
tl
y
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 a

n
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
e

 t
o

 r
e
q

u
e
s
ts

 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

 m
a
d
e

 t
o
 t
h
e
 ‘
fr

o
n
t 
d
o
o
r’
 d

u
ty

 s
y
s
te

m
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 b

y
 P

ro
fe

s
s
o
r 

D
a
v
id

 T
h
o
rp

e
. 
P

ro
fe

s
s
o

r 
T

h
o

rp
e

’s
 

re
s
e
a
rc

h
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
, 
th

e
 t
h
e
n
, 
C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 i
n
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 ‘
re

q
u
e
s
ts

 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
’ 
a
n
d
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 f
ro

m
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
is

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 w

o
rk

lo
a
d
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

m
a
tc

h
e
d
 b

y
 a

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a

te
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
. 
M

o
re

o
v
e
r,

 t
h
e

 r
e
s
e
a
rc

h
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

ra
l 
a

n
d

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
is

s
u
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o
n

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 D

u
ty

 R
o
o
m

. 
 A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n

g
 t
h
e

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 d

u
ty

 s
y
s
te

m
 i
s
 v

ie
w

e
d
 a

s
 a

 k
e
y
 t
a
s
k
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 ‘
re

b
a
la

n
c
in

g
’ 
o
f 
th

e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

 s
y
s
te

m
 i
n

 
L
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 a

 n
e
w

 d
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 D

u
ty

 a
n
d
 A

d
v
ic

e
 T

e
a
m

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n
tr

e
 f
ro

m
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
2
. 
T

h
e
 t
e
a

m
 w

ill
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h

 s
ta

ff
. 

 C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 ‘
E

a
rl
y
 S

ta
rt

‘ 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 t

o
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 a

lig
n
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

Y
P

P
. 
T

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

a
n
 E

a
rl
y
 S

ta
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 b

ri
n

g
in

g
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
 V

is
it
o
rs

 a
n
d
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

tr
e

 s
ta

ff
 w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o
g

e
th

e
r 

in
 l
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d

 t
e

a
m

s
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

‘C
lu

s
te

rs
’ 
o
f 
o
th

e
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 
p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 e

a
rl
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n

ti
o
n
. 
 

  

4
.1

 
 4
.1

1
 

    4
.1

2
 

  4
.1

3
 

 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
In

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 

In
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1

1
 O

fs
te

d
 p

u
b

lis
h
e

d
 t
h

e
ir
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 a

n
n

o
u

n
c
e

d
 r

e
-i
n

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
S

a
fe

g
u
a

rd
in

g
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
. 
 T

h
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 r
e

c
o
g

n
is

e
d

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
d
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
. 
O

v
e
ra

ll,
 f
iv

e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

in
e
 c

a
te

g
o
ri
e

s
 t
h
a
t 
O

fs
te

d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 w

e
re

 r
a

te
d
 a

s
 ‘
g
o
o
d
’ 
a

n
d

 f
o

u
r 

w
e
re

 r
a

te
d

 a
s
 

‘a
d
e
q
u
a
te

’ 
- 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 n
o
 c

a
te

g
o

ri
e
s
 r

a
te

d
 a

s
 i
n
a
d
e
q
u

a
te

. 
T

h
e
 k

e
y
 j
u
d
g
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
‘o

v
e
ra

ll 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
’ 
o
f 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 w

e
re

 r
a
te

d
 a

s
 

‘a
d
e
q
u
a
te

’ 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 ‘
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
’ 
w

a
s
 r

a
te

d
 a

s
 ‘
g
o
o
d

’.
  
  

  T
a

k
e
n

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
ir
 u

n
a

n
n
o

u
n
c
e

d
 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

c
o

n
ta

c
t,

 r
e

fe
rr

a
l 
a

n
d

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 J
a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

1
 -

 w
h

e
n

 O
fs

te
d

 n
o
te

d
 

‘r
e
m

a
rk

a
b
le

 a
n
d
 i
m

p
re

s
s
iv

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
’ 
- 

th
is

 l
a
te

s
t 
in

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

s
tr

o
n
g

 e
n
d
o

rs
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 L
e

e
d
s
. 

  T
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 e
n
d
o
rs

e
d
 t
h
e
 v

ie
w

 t
h
a
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

re
 m

a
k
in

g
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w

e
ll 

b
e
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 

L
e
e
d
s
. 
T

h
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
u
n
d

 t
h
a
t 
‘a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 c
h
ild

re
n

 a
re

 s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
e

d
 a

re
 n

o
w

 s
e
c
u

re
’.
 I
t 
h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 ‘
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

Page 86



  4
.1

4
 

       4
.1

5
 

         4
.1

6
 

  4
.1

7
 

 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
’.
 T

h
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
to

rs
 d

id
 n

o
t 
id

e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
y
 c

h
ild

re
n
 l
e
ft
 a

t 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
h
a
rm

, 
a
n
d
 n

o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

a
s
e
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 w
e
re

 d
e
e

m
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

. 
   A

m
o
n
g
s
t 
th

e
 o

th
e
r 

a
re

a
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
to

rs
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 w

e
re

: 
 

  
  

  
  

 T
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
m

o
re

 c
h
ild

 c
e
n
tr

e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 w

a
y
 t
h
a
t 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

re
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 

c
o

n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 s

o
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
ir
 w

is
h

e
s
 a

n
d

 v
ie

w
s
 a

re
 f
u
lly

 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t.
 

  
  

  
  

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

a
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a

rd
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

o
rk

s
, 
e
s
p
e

c
ia

lly
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
s
h
a

re
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

, 
v
is

io
n
 

a
n
d
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g
 t
h
a
t 
in

 L
e

e
d
s
, 
‘s

a
fe

g
u
a

rd
in

g
 i
s
 e

v
e
ry

o
n

e
’s

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
’.
 

  
  

  
  

 T
h
a
t 
th

e
 L

e
e
d
s
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
 B

o
a
rd

 i
s
 m

u
c
h
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
. 

  T
h

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 n
o

te
d

 a
re

a
s
 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

n
e

e
d
s
 t
o

 t
a

k
e
 p

la
c
e

: 
    

  
  
  

 T
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 e

le
c
tr

o
n

ic
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 r
e
c
o

rd
 s

y
s
te

m
 (

E
S

C
R

) 
–
 u

s
e
d

 b
y
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 S
e
rv

ic
e
. 

  
  

  
  

 C
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
 f
o
r 

in
it
ia

l 
c
h
ild

re
n
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
fe

re
n

c
e
s
. 

  
  

  
  

 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 a
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

  
  

  
  

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
. 

 A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
a
m

o
u
n
t 
o
f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 m

a
d
e

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 f
in

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

is
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
h

is
 v

ie
w

, 
th

e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
re

m
o
v
e
d
 t
h
e
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
N

o
ti
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 p

la
c
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 2

0
0
9
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

 t
o
 i
ts

 S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
  

 In
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

T
B

 h
a

v
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
o
f 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t
h
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

B
o

a
rd

 t
h

a
t 
w

a
s
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h

e
 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 
2
0

0
9
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 s

e
t 
u

p
 a

 B
i-

A
n

n
u
a

l 
C

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 B
o

a
rd

 o
f 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 
e
x
p
e
rt

s
. 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir

 o
f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 w

ill
 s

it
 

o
n
 t
h
a
t 
B

o
a
rd

. 

4
.2

 
 4
.2

1
 

    4
.2

2
 

    

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
a
n
d
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 o

f 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 A
s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 a

b
o
v
e
, 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
d
e
s
ir
e
d
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

Y
P

P
; 
th

a
t 
‘C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u

n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 a
re

 S
a
fe

 f
ro

m
 H

a
rm

’,
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 t
w

o
 

k
e
y
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
s
 c

a
p
tu

re
d

, 
tr

a
c
k
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

T
B

. 
F

o
r 

th
e
 k

e
y
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

, 
‘h

e
lp

 c
h

ild
re

n
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 s

a
fe

 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

iv
e
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
’ 
th

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 i
s
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o

 a
re

 L
o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

b
y
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
F

o
r 

th
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 ‘
e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
re

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
’ 
th

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 i
s
 ‘
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 a
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
. 

 T
h
e
 n

e
w

 L
S

C
B

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
S

y
s
te

m
 (

P
M

S
),

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 B

a
s
e
d
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
, 
w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 f

o
r 

g
ra

d
u
a
l 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
. 
K

e
y
 t
o
 j
u
d
g
in

g
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 L
e

e
d
s
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
a

ri
s
o

n
 w

it
h

 d
a

ta
 f
ro

m
 o

th
e

r 
L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
. 
T

h
e
 

L
S

C
B

 u
s
e

s
 a

s
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

to
rs

 a
v
e
ra

g
e

 d
a

ta
 f
ro

m
 ‘
C

o
re

 C
it
ie

s
’ 
(C

C
) 

a
n
d
 ‘
S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

.’
(S

N
).

 I
t 
is

 n
o
te

w
o
rt

h
y
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 C

T
B

, 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
it
s
 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

 L
e
e
d
s
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 a

 ‘
C

h
ild

 F
ri

e
n
d
ly

 C
it
y
’ 
h
a

s
 c

h
o
s
e

n
 a

 h
ig

h
e
r 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

; 
th

a
t 
o

f 
c
o
m

p
a

ri
n

g
 L

e
e

d
s
’ 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 i
n
 o

th
e
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
, 
a
im

in
g
 t
o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 5

0
%

. 

Page 87



 4
.2

3
 

       4
.2

4
 

  4
.2

5
 

 4
.2

6
 

                   4
.2

7
 

   4
.2

8
 

 

 K
e
y
 d

a
ta

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
w

o
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
 w

a
s
 p

re
s
e
n

te
d
 i
n
 d

e
ta

il 
to

 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

. 
In

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
c
lim

a
te

 o
f 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 s

o
m

e
 k

e
y
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 p
o

in
ts

 w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 s

y
s
te

m
, 
a
 s

m
a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

s
c
o

re
c
a

rd
s
 h

a
v
e

 
b
e
e
n
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 t
o
 r

e
p
o

rt
 o

n
 k

e
y
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
s
e

 c
o
n
c
e
n

tr
a
te

 o
n
 t
h

re
e
 a

re
a

s
: 

 
1
. 

E
n
tr

y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 s
y
s
te

m
 (

N
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 a
n
d
 C

P
P

s
, 
C

A
F

s
, 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
S

4
7
s
, 
s
p
e
e
d
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
) 

2
. 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

n
g
a
g
e

m
e
n
t 
(N

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
c
h

ild
re

n
/p

a
re

n
ts

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n

g
 i
n

 c
o

n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
s
) 

3
. 

R
e
fe

rr
a
ls

 a
n
d
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
fo

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 t
o

 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

 It
 i
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
s
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 w

ill
 o

n
ly

 b
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
a
l 
p
e
ri
o
d
. 
O

n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p

s
 a

re
 

w
e

ll 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t
h

e
re

 s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e

 n
o

 r
e
q

u
ir
e

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
. 
 

 A
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
th

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 f
o

r 
p
ri
o

ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

Y
P

P
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u

te
 t
o
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
s
a
fe

g
u
a

rd
in

g
 i
s
 a

s
 f
o

llo
w

s
: 

 C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 a

 C
h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n

 (
C

P
P

):
 

 

 
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
In

it
ia

l 
C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
fe

re
n

c
e
s
  
(I

C
P

C
s
) 

in
it
ia

te
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

h
a
s
 f
a
lle

n
 s

te
a
d
ily

 f
ro

m
 a

 p
e
a
k
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 a
n

d
 1

2
4
1

 c
h

ild
re

n
 

e
n
d
e
d
 a

 C
P

P
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 1
4
.7

%
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 w

h
e
n
 1

0
8
2
 c

h
ild

re
n
 e

n
d
e
d
 a

 C
P

P
. 

 

 
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
C

&
Y

P
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 a
 C

P
P

 h
a
s
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f
ro

m
 1

0
1
9
 (

6
7
.1

/1
0
,0

0
0
) 

in
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
1
 t
o
 9

2
4
 (

5
8
.0

/1
0
,0

0
0

)
b
y
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
9
5
 (

9
.3

%
).

  
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 o

u
t 
tu

rn
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
9
8
4
 (

6
4
.8

/1
0
,0

0
0
) 

C
&

Y
P

 s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 a
 C

P
P

, 
m

a
rk

in
g

 a
 

d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
6
0

 o
r 

6
.0

%
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r.

  
C

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n

 w
it
h
 C

C
s
 (

5
8
.5

 /
 1

0
,0

0
0
) 

a
n
d
 S

N
s
 (

3
9
.0

 /
 1

0
,0

0
0
) 

s
u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 d

o
w

n
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d

 i
s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
 

 
P

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
d
a

ta
 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
C

P
 P

la
n
s
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 s

u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 d

o
w

n
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d
 i
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 (

8
9
3
, 
5
6
.0

/1
0
,0

0
0
).

 
 

 
T

h
e
s
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
re

n
d
s
 a

re
 a

 v
in

d
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 A

u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
1
 o

f 
th

e
 ‘
S

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
’ 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o

 C
P

 C
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e
s
 

a
n

d
 a

 m
o
re

 r
ig

o
ro

u
s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 C

P
 P

la
n
s
. 

 

 
T

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 s

te
a
d
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 C

P
 P

la
n
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 b

e
g
in

n
in

g
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 c

a
n
 b

e
 v

ie
w

e
d

 a
s
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
a
n

 
a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 m

o
re

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

re
s
h
o
ld

s
 f
o
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
in

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 O

fs
te

d
 u

n
a

n
n
o

u
n
c
e
d

 
in

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n

 i
n
 2

0
0
9
. 

   A
 b

re
a
k
d

o
w

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
a
s
o

n
s
 c

h
ild

re
n

 w
e
re

 o
n

 C
P

P
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 J

u
n
e

 2
0

1
1

 a
n
d

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
2

 s
h

o
w

s
 t
h

a
t 
o

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e

 6
7
.9

%
 w

e
re

 d
u
e
 t
o
 m

u
lt
ip

le
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
, 

2
.8

%
 s

e
x
u
a
l 
a
b
u
s
e
, 
1
1
.6

%
 n

e
g
le

c
t,
 1

1
.6

%
 e

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
a

b
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 5

.8
%

 p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
b
u
s
e
. 
T

h
e
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
‘m

u
lt
ip

le
 c

a
te

g
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
’ 
h
a

s
 a

 l
im

it
in

g
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
w

h
y
 C

&
Y

P
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 C
P

 p
la

n
s
. 
S

in
g
le

, 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
te

g
o

ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
. 

 T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
C

&
Y

P
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 C
P

 p
la

n
s
 f
ro

m
 b

la
c
k
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 (
B

M
E

) 
b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 f

lu
c
tu

a
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

fr
o
m

 1
6
 –

 2
0
%

 -
, 
a
v
e

ra
g
in

g
 

Page 88



   4
.2

9
 

        4
.2

1
0
 

     4
.2

1
1
 

    4
.2

1
2
 

        4
.2

1
3
 

    4
.2

1
4
 

  

1
9
%

. 
T

h
is

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 b

ro
a
d
ly

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 B

M
E

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 r

o
lls

 o
f 
L
e
e
d
s
 s

c
h
o
o

ls
 (

2
1
.4

%
) 

a
n
d
 B

M
E

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

ll 
a
g
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 (

1
6
%

).
 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 o

f 
C

P
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

C
&

Y
P

 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
o
r 

s
u
ff
e
ri
n
g
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
h
a
rm

 f
ro

m
: 

 
 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
IC

P
C

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 f

ro
m

 3
1
.9

%
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 t
o
 5

4
.0

 i
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
; 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
is

 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
r 

(S
N

) 
c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

a
t 
7
0
%

. 
 

 
T

h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
C

P
P

 r
a
te

 b
y
 6

.8
/1

0
,0

0
0
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

fr
o
m

 6
4
.8

/1
0
,0

0
0
 i
n
 (

y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
) 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t
o
 5

8
.0

/1
0
,0

0
0
 i
n

 (
(y

e
a
r 

e
n

d
) 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
re

 C
it
ie

s
 (

C
C

) 
c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 
5
8

.5
/1

0
,0

0
0
 a

n
d

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n

 S
N

 2
0

1
0
/1

1
 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 

3
9
.0

/1
0
,0

0
0
. 

 T
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 A

u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
1
 o

f 
th

e
 ‘
S

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
’ 
m

o
d

e
l 
fo

r 
c
h

ild
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 c

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e
s
 f
o

c
u

s
e
s
 o

n
 r

is
k
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

, 
s
h
a

re
d

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 t
im

e
ly

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o

r 
c
h
ild

re
n
. 
 B

e
tt
e
r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 C

&
Y

P
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 ‘
re

s
to

ra
ti
v
e
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
’ 
a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

 m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
in

te
rv

e
n
ti
o
n
 i
s
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
re

 p
la

n
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 t
h

is
 i
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 

c
o
rr

e
c
te

d
 a

t 
a
n

 e
a
rl
y
 p

o
in

t.
  
T

h
e
 n

e
w

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 c
o
n

fe
re

n
c
e
s
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 o

v
e
rw

h
e
lm

in
g

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 a
s
 a

 m
u
c
h
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 w

a
y
 o

f 
e
x
p

lo
ri
n

g
 r

is
k
, 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 p
la

n
s
 a

n
d

 e
n

g
a

g
in

g
 f
a

m
ili

e
s
. 

 In
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 A

u
d
it
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 m

o
re

 q
u
a
lit

a
ti
v
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
s
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 t
w

o
 s

tr
a

n
d

s
: 

 
 

(S
1
) 

T
o
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
re

 a
n
d
 a

u
d
it
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

a
n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

C
&

Y
P

 s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 C
P

 P
la

n
s
 

 
(S

2
) 

T
o
 a

u
d
it
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
 f
o
r 

c
a
lli

n
g
 C

P
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
, 
re

v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
re

 g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 r

e
a
s
o
n

s
 f
o
r 

d
e
la

y
s
. 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p

le
 w

h
o
 a

re
 L

o
o

k
e
d

 A
ft

e
r  

(L
A

C
):

 

O
v
e
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 t
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

L
A

C
 (

b
y
 1

.8
%

 t
o
 1

4
7
4
 o

n
 t
h
e
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
).

 T
h
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
, 

9
6
.9

/1
0
,0

0
0
, 
is

 a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
a
t 
o
f 
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e

ig
h
b
o
u
rs

 o
f 
7
4

/1
0
,0

0
0
 b

u
t 
it
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

 f
o
r 

C
o
re

 C
it
ie

s
 9

5
/1

0
,0

0
0
, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 s

im
ila

r 
d
e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
ic

s
 t
o
 L

e
e
d
s
. 
It

 s
h
o
u

ld
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
s
e
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

fi
g
u
re

s
 a

re
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

re
g
io

n
a
l 
d
a
ta

 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 r

a
te

 o
f 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 r

e
g

io
n

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

1
/1

2
 w

a
s
 4

.4
%

. 
H

a
d
 L

e
e

d
s
 h

a
d

 a
 s

im
ila

r 
ra

te
 o

f 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
re

 w
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 1

5
5
0
 l
o
o
k
e
d

 a
ft

e
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
. 

In
d
ic

a
ti
o
n

s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
2
 m

o
n
th

s
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
, 

a
lt
h
o
u

g
h
 o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 
th

e
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

 f
o
r 

th
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

, 
a
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
lo

o
k
e
d

 a
ft

e
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 h

a
s
 s

in
c
e

 
re

d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
a
t 
in

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
. 

 T
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
L
A

C
 o

c
c
u
rr

e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 –
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

2
 d

u
ri
n

g
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 C

S
W

S
. 
D

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
is

 p
e
ri

o
d
 1

0
3
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

b
e
c
a
m

e
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r.

 O
f 
th

e
s
e
 4

7
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

e
re

 a
g
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

o
n

e
 a

n
d
 7

0
 w

e
re

 5
 o

r 
u
n
d
e
r.

 T
h
is

 m
a
y
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 a
 s

h
if
t 
in

 t
h
e
 m

a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o

n
 i
n

 L
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
e

a
rl

y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 f
o
r 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 w

it
h
 y

o
u
n
g
 c

h
ild

re
n
, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 E

a
rl
y
 S

ta
rt

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

F
a
m

ily
 N

u
rs

e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
 

 C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 a

 m
ix

e
d
 h

e
ri
ta

g
e
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 a

re
 o

v
e
r-

re
p
re

s
e
n

te
d

 i
n

 c
a
re

 m
a

k
in

g
 u

p
 1

2
%

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
h

o
rt

, 
w

h
e

re
a
s
 t
h

o
s
e

 f
ro

m
 a

n
 

A
s
ia

n
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
 a

re
 u

n
d
e

r-
re

p
re

s
e
n

te
d

 c
o

m
p
ri
s
in

g
 4

%
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
h
o

rt
. 
 T

h
o
s
e
 f
ro

m
 a

 B
la

c
k
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 a

ls
o
 m

a
k
e
 u

p
 4

%
 o

f 
th

e
 L

o
o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
. 

Page 89



 4
.2

1
5
 

    4
.2

1
6
 

    4
.2

1
7
 

   4
.2

1
8
 

   4
.2

1
9
 

   4
.2

2
0
 

      4
.2

2
1
 

 4
.2

2
2
 

  4
.2

2
3
 

  4
.2

2
4
 

 

 L
e
e
d
s
 h

a
s
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 a
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e

l 
o

f 
a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n

 o
f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 t
o

 L
A

C
 (

9
9
 –

 1
0
0
%

) 
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r.

  
A

lm
o
s
t 
1
4
%

 o
f 
lo

o
k
e
d

 a
ft
e
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
ir
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 a

 f
a
m

ily
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 c
a
re

r.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

it
h

 t
h
e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ild

re
n

 
A

c
t 
1
9
8
9
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 t
h
a
t 
d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h
a
t 
c
h
ild

re
n
 t
h

a
t 
a
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m

ily
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 b

e
tt

e
r 

o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
. 
9

%
 a

re
 

‘p
la

c
e
d
 w

it
h
 p

a
re

n
ts

’ 
a
n
d
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
 g

o
in

g
 w

it
h
 C

A
F

C
A

S
S

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

, 
w

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
th

e
 r

e
v
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
a
re

 o
rd

e
rs

. 
 2
0
1
1
/1

2
 h

a
s
 s

e
e
n

 a
 3

1
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

fo
s
te

ri
n
g
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 (

IF
A

) 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n

ts
 f
ro

m
 2

0
6
 t
o
 2

7
0
 a

n
d
 o

f 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 7

6
 t
o
 8

9
; 
a
 1

7
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
. 
 I

n
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

it
h
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 f
o
s
te

r 
c
a
re

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 r

e
g
io

n
. 

T
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
ta

ry
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

is
 t
re

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

 m
a
tt

e
r 

o
f 
in

te
re

s
t 

to
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 a

s
 i
t 
s
e
e
k
s
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 ‘
v
a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
’ 
o
f 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

fr
o
m

 2
0
1
2
/1

3
. 

 T
h

e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 d
o
w

n
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
L
A

C
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 w

it
h
in

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
, 
9
5
.1

%
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
s
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
 w

e
re

 w
it
h

in
 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
, 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 t
o
 8

1
.1

%
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n

 t
h
e
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
7

5
.7

%
. 
 T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
L

A
C

 w
h
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i
n

 
th

e
ir
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 h

a
s
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
d

 o
v
e

r 
a

 r
o

lli
n
g

 1
2

 m
o

n
th

 p
e

ri
o

d
 f
ro

m
 9

2
.0

%
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
to

 8
1
.0

%
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
8
2
.2

%
. 

 T
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

Y
P

P
 o

f 
a
n
 ‘
o
b
s
e
s
s
io

n
’ 
fo

c
u
s
s
e
d
 o

n
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
C

&
Y

P
 w

h
o
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
h
a
s
 u

n
d
e
rp

in
n
e
d
 t
h
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
th

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

 s
y
s
te

m
 i
n

 L
e

e
d
s
 a

n
d

 l
a

id
 t
h

e
 g

ro
u
n

d
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
it
s
 ‘
re

b
a

la
n

c
in

g
’ 
to

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 
p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
‘t
u
rn

in
g
 t

h
e
 c

u
rv

e
’ 
h
a
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 w

it
h
 m

u
c
h
 w

o
rk

 b
e
in

g
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
 s

ta
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
o
v
e

ra
ll 

L
A

C
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 d
u

ri
n

g
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 
T

h
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 
a
 t
re

n
d
 o

f 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
L
A

C
 J

a
n

 –
 M

a
r 

2
0
1

2
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 i
n

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

. 
P

ro
v
is

io
n
a

l 
fi
g

u
re

s
 f
o

r 
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
2

 o
f 

1
4

6
3

 L
A

C
 w

o
u

ld
 s

u
g

g
e
s
t 
th

a
t 
th

is
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 s

ta
b

ili
s
e
d

. 

T
h

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 
k
e

y
 L

A
C

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 c
o
n

c
e
rn

. 
L

A
C

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 h
a
v
e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 m

a
y
 b

e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 a

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

2
/1

3
 g

iv
e

n
 t
h

e
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

in
g

 s
u
c
h
 a

 h
ig

h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 

a
ft

e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 
o
f 
a
n
 a

p
p

ro
p
ri
a
te

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 l
o

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r.

 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
L
S

C
B

 A
u
d
it
 s

tr
a
n
d

 3
 (

to
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
re

 a
n
d
 a

u
d
it
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

 c
a
re

 p
la

n
s
 f
o
r 

lo
o
k
e
d

 a
ft

e
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
C

&
Y

P
’s

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
) 

w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 f
u

lle
r 

p
ic

tu
re

 o
f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

in
g

 p
e

ri
o
d

. 
  C

h
ild

re
n
 M

is
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 C

h
ild

 S
e
x
u
a
l 
E

x
p

lo
it
a
ti
o
n
:

T
h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 t
h
ir
d
 c

a
te

g
o
ry

 o
f 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 f
o
c
u
s
in

g
 a

tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 o

n
. 
D

a
ta

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
lla

te
d

 o
n

 t
h

is
 

c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 g

ro
u
p
in

g
 o

f 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 C
&

Y
P

 s
in

c
e
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 a

n
d
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 f

o
c
u
s
 o

n
 t
h
is

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
 B

e
tw

e
e

n
 1

4
/0

9
/2

0
1

1
 a

n
d

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

2
 t
h

e
re

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 6
4

3
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d

 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 u
n

d
e
r 

1
8

 g
o

in
g

 m
is

s
in

g
, 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
s
e

 2
8
5

 
w

e
n
t 
m

is
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
it
s
, 
5
3
 f
ro

m
 f
o
s
te

r 
c
a
re

, 
3
1

5
 m

is
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 h

o
m

e
 (

in
 c

a
re

 o
f 
p
a
re

n
ts

) 
a
n
d
 2

 w
e
re

 m
is

s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 o

th
e
r 

re
s
id

e
n

c
e

s
. 
  

  
  

R
e
tu

rn
 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p
le

 m
is

s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 b

o
th

 h
o
m

e
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

 a
re

 a
 c

ru
c
ia

l 
e

le
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
e
x
p
lo

ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 t
h
e
y
 r

a
n
 a

w
a
y
 a

n
d
 

in
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 C

A
F

s
, 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
o
 C

S
W

S
, 
o
r 

lin
k
in

g
 i
n
to

 c
a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
 E

v
e
ry

 c
h
ild

 a
n
d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

rs
o

n
 w

h
o

 i
s
 

Page 90



    4
.2

2
5
 

    4
.2

2
6
 

   4
.2

2
7
 

    4
.2

2
8
 

   4
.2

2
9
 

 4
.2

3
0
 

   4
.2

3
1
 

   4
.2

3
2
 

  4
.2

3
3
 

    

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 m

is
s
in

g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

o
lic

e
 h

a
s
 a

 r
e
tu

rn
 h

o
m

e
 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
 b

y
 t

h
e
 p

o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 d

e
ta

ils
 a

re
 f
o

rw
a
rd

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

S
 I
n
d
e
p

e
n
d
e
n
t 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 U

n
it
 

(I
S

U
).

  
If

 a
 c

a
s
e
 i
s
 o

p
e
n
 a

n
d

 h
a
s
 a

n
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
r 

th
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 r

e
s
p
o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

e
tu

rn
 h

o
m

e
 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
. 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 r

e
tu

rn
 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
. 

 T
h

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 e

n
a
b

le
d

 g
re

a
te

r 
tr

a
n

s
p
a

re
n

c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 f
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 w

it
h
 w

h
ic

h
 c

h
ild

re
n
 i
n

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
it
s
 h

a
v
e

 o
r 

a
re

 g
o

in
g

 m
is

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 
fo

r 
h
o
w

 l
o
n
g
. 
 T

h
is

 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

llo
w

s
 t
h
e
 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 U

n
it
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

re
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
d
 i
f 
a
 y

o
u
n
g

 p
e
rs

o
n
 m

e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 

c
ri
te

ri
a
 o

f 
fo

u
r 

ti
m

e
s
 i
n
 a

 m
o
n
th

 o
r 

s
ix

 t
im

e
s
 i
n
 a

 t
w

o
 m

o
n
th

 p
e
ri
o
d
. 
 A

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
s
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 h

a
v
e
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
 a

c
ti
v
e
 p

la
n
s
 p

u
t 
in

 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 b

o
th

 w
it
h
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 a
n
d
 t
h

e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a

rd
in

g
 p

o
lic

e
. 

 L
in

k
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 
u
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 y

o
u
th

 t
e
a
m

s
 w

h
o
 a

s
s
is

t 
in

 m
o
n
it
o

ri
n
g
 t
h

o
s
e
 a

t 
h
ig

h
 r

is
k
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d

 i
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 r

e
tu

rn
 h

o
m

e
 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
s
. 
 T

h
is

 e
n
s
u
re

s
 t
h
a
t 
lin

k
s
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

re
a
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 c

h
ild

 o
r 

y
o
u
n

g
 p

e
rs

o
n
 l
iv

e
s
 a

n
d
 f
o
llo

w
 u

p
 

w
o
rk

 c
a
n
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
a
t 
c
h
ild

 o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
. 

 A
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 W

e
s
t 
Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 P

o
lic

e
 h

a
d
 f
la

g
g
e
d
 9

8
 C

&
Y

P
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 a
t 
ri
s
k
 f
ro

m
 s

e
x
u
a
l 
e
x
p
lo

it
a
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 U

n
it
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 3

1
 C

&
Y

P
 b

e
lie

v
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 a

n
d
 2

1
 b

e
lie

v
e
d
 t
o

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
p
lo

it
e
d
. 
C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o
u
t 
4

 C
&

Y
P

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 w

e
re

 n
o

 l
o
n
g
e
r 

h
e
ld

. 
 W

o
rk

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

t 
th

e
 b

e
g
in

n
in

g
 o

f 
2
0
1
2
/1

3
 t
o

 s
h

a
re

 r
e
le

v
a
n
t 
d
a
ta

 a
b
o
u
t 
c
h
ild

 s
e
x
u
a
l 
e
x
p
lo

it
a
ti
o
n
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 W

e
s
t 
Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 P

o
lic

e
, 
C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 I

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 U

n
it
, 
G

e
n
e
s
is

 a
n
d
 B

la
s
t.

 
  T

h
e
 d

a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 i
n
 Q

3
 &

 Q
4
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u
e

s
 p

o
s
e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
s
e

 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
 o

f 
C

&
Y

P
 c

a
n
 b

e
 g

a
u
g
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
. 

   O
p

e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
R

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 a
n
d
 r

e
q
u
e
s
ts

 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
:

A
 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 
1
3
,7

5
4
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 w
e
re

 m
a
d
e

 t
o
 C

S
W

S
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 1

3
,6

4
3
 i
n

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
1
1
1
 (

0
.8

%
).

  
T

h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
th

re
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 o
f 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 s

a
w

 a
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 f
ro

m
 3

6
9
1
 i
n
 Q

1
 t
o

 3
2

2
9

 i
n

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3
. 
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
4

 s
a
w

 a
 s

lig
h

t 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
o
 3

3
5
9
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 

th
is

 w
a
s
 s

ti
ll 

a
 9

.8
%

 d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 f
ro

m
 Q

1
. 
  

 R
e

fe
rr

a
ls

 m
a
d

e
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 D

e
c
e

m
b
e

r 
2
0
1

1
 a

n
d

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

2
  
s
h
o

w
 t
h

a
t 
o

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 3

3
%

 o
f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 c
a
m

e
 f
ro

m
 P

o
lic

e
, 
1
7
%

 h
e
a
lt
h
, 
1
7
%

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

3
3
%

 o
th

e
r 

re
fe

rr
a
l 
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 
 O

v
e
r 

th
a
t 

ti
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 m
a
d
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n

 n
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 (

5
.0

%
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r,

 2
.6

%
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

, 
6
.1

%
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 a
n
d
 7

.7
%

 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
) 

 G
iv

e
n
 t
h
e

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 s

te
a
d

ily
 r

is
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 b
e

in
g

 a
c
c
e

p
te

d
 b

y
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 i
t 
is

 r
e
a
s
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 

th
is

 t
re

n
d
 w

a
s
 

s
ta

b
ili

s
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
. 
 T

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

 o
f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 D
u
ty

 a
n
d
 A

d
v
ic

e
 ‘
fr

o
n
t 
d
o
o
r’
 t
e
a
m

 w
ill

 b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 i
n
 2

0
1
2

/1
3
. 

 D
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 t
h

e
re

 h
a

v
e
 b

e
e

n
 8

6
4

 C
A

F
s
 i
n
s
ti
g

a
te

d
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 w
it
h

 1
0

9
8

 i
n

 2
0

1
0

/1
1
. 
 T

h
e
 f
a
c
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
C

A
F

s
 i
n

it
ia

te
d
 i
n

 2
0
1

1
/1

2
 w

a
s
 

lo
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 i
s
, 
o
n

 t
h
e
 f
a
c
e
 o

f 
it
, 
a
 c

a
u
s
e
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

. 
In

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
C

A
F

s
 w

a
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t

h
e
 C

T
B

 i
n
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
1
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 A

u
g

u
s
t 
2
0

1
1

 a
n
d

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
2

 t
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 6

2
1

 C
A

F
s
 i
n
s
ti
g

a
te

d
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

n
 e

n
c
o
u

ra
g

in
g

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
th

a
t 

th
e
 t
re

n
d
 i
s
 n

o
w

 s
h
o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 s

o
u
g
h
t 
a
ft

e
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 C

A
F

 u
s
a
g
e
. 

 

Page 91



4
.2

3
4
 

   4
.2

3
5
 

    4
.2

3
6
 

    4
.2

3
7
 

In
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
tt
e
rn

 o
f 
u
s
a
g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

A
F

 w
a
s
 f
u
lly

 u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 C

A
F

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 u
s
e
d
 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 ‘
re

b
a

la
n
c
in

g
’ 
o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
p
re

v
e
n

ti
o
n
, 
th

e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 T
ru

s
t 
B

o
a
rd

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
in

 L
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 M

a
rk

 P
e
e

l 
fr

o
m

 L
e
ic

e
s
te

r 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

. 
  

 T
h
e
 w

o
rk

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
in

 f
a
c
t 
in

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 
C

A
F

s
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
s
ti
g
a
te

d
 h

a
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

e
ll 

w
it
h
 o

th
e
r 

s
im

ila
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
. 
W

h
a
t 

a
p
p
e
a
re

d
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 
p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

re
fl
e
c
te

d
 s

o
m

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
u
n

c
e
rt

a
in

ty
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 f
u
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 n
o
t 
to

 p
ro

c
e
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e

 e
 C

A
F

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

c
e
rn

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
 o

v
e
r 

c
o
m

p
lic

a
te

d
 a

n
d
 t
im

e
 

c
o
n
s
u
m

in
g
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 

 T
h

e
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
re

c
o
rd

 u
s
e

d
 i
n
 L

e
e

d
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 s
im

p
lif

ie
d
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 f

e
e

d
b

a
c
k
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
v
is

e
d
. 
 T

h
e
 

C
A

F
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
-l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S

u
m

m
e
r 

o
f 
2
0
1
2
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d

 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
L
C

C
 E

S
C

R
 s

y
s
te

m
 (

d
u
e
 

in
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
).

  
T

h
is

 i
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 e

m
b
e
d
 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
lit

y
 o

f 
C

A
F

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
C

&
Y

P
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
 

‘t
h
e
 r

ig
h
t 
h
e
lp

 a
t 
th

e
 r

ig
h
t 
ti
m

e
.’
 

 T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
In

it
ia

l 
C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
fe

re
n

c
e
s
 h

e
ld

 i
n

 2
0
1

1
/1

2
 w

a
s
 1

1
9
1
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
4
9
2
 (

2
9
%

) 
fr

o
m

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 w

h
e
n

 1
6
8
3
 I
C

P
C

s
 w

e
re

 
h

e
ld

. 
 I
C

P
C

s
 h

e
ld

 e
a
c
h

 q
u
a

rt
e

r 
h
a

v
e

 r
e
d

u
c
e

d
 f
ro

m
 3

5
6

 i
n

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 t
o

 2
3

8
 i
n

 q
u
a

rt
e

r 
4

 (
3

2
7

 i
n

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 a

n
d

 2
7

0
 i
n

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
).

 T
h
is

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 w

o
u
ld

 
s
u
g
g
e
s
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 ‘
c
u
rv

e
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 t
u
rn

e
d
’ 
in

 t
h
e
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

h
e
th

e
r 

C
&

Y
P

 a
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 s

u
ff
e
ri
n
g
 o

r 
a
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
s
u
ff
e
ri

n
g
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
h
a
rm

. 
 

 

4
.3

 
 4
.3

1
 

    4
.3

2
 

         4
.3

3
 

   

‘S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

1
 D

u
ty

 t
o
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

’ 
C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

T
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 A

c
t 
2
0
0
4
 i
s
 t
h
e
 l
e
g
is

la
ti
v
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 w

e
lf
a
re

 o
f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 s

.1
1
 p

la
c
e
s
 a

 d
u
ty

 o
n
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n

ts
 f
o
r 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a

t 
th

e
ir
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
ir
 b

e
h
a

lf
, 
a
re

 d
is

c
h
a

rg
e
d
 h

a
v
in

g
 r

e
g
a

rd
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 

to
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 w

e
lf
a
re

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
. 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
o
u

t 
to

 o
th

e
rs

 s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 h

a
v
in

g
 r

e
g
a

rd
 t
o
 t
h
a
t 

n
e
e
d

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

is
 d

u
ty

 w
ill

 v
a
ry

 a
c
c
o
rd

in
g
 t
o

 t
h
e

 n
a
tu

re
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 a

g
e
n

c
y
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

 F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

 a
n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
th

e
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 s

.1
1
 S

e
lf
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
T

o
o
l 
(S

A
T

),
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d
 t
o
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 b

y
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
, 

a
 s

a
m

p
le

 a
u
d
it
 

o
f 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t,
 s

e
le

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
e

rv
is

io
n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

a
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

 w
it
h
 f
o
u
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
. 
A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 m
a
d
e
 a

s
 f
o

llo
w

s
 t
o

 
im

p
ro

v
e

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 i
n

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

re
a

s
 a

n
d

 a
g

e
n

c
ie

s
 a

s
k
e

d
 t
o

 s
u

b
m

it
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n

s
. 
E

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
a
re

a
s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w

e
re

: 

 
E

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
w

e
b
s
it
e
s
 a

re
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 f
ro

m
 a

 u
s
e
r’

s
 p

e
rs

p
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
ir

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
s
 m

o
re

 t
ra

n
s
p

a
re

n
t.
 

 
E

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 a

re
 e

x
p
lic

it
 o

n
 a

ll 
jo

b
 d

e
s
c
ri
p

ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

c
o
n

tr
a
c
ts

 w
it
h

in
 a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
. 

 
C

o
n
s
id

e
r 

fr
e
q
u
e
n
c
y
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 f
o

r 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
p
a

n
e
l 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 h

o
w

 t
h
e

 p
a
n
e
l’s

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 c

a
n
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

c
u
lt
u
re

 r
a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 i
f 
th

e
re

 a
re

 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
. 

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
ir
 n

e
w

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
e

 i
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
th

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
th

e
 m

e
n
to

ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
it
 m

e
e
ts

 n
e
w

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
e

’s
 n

e
e
d
s
. 

 F
o
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 u

s
e
d

 t
h
e
 W

e
s
t 
Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n

 C
o

n
s
o
rt

iu
m

 s
.1

1
 s

e
lf
- 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
to

o
l.
 T

h
is

 h
a
s
 h

a
d

 a
n

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
m

p
a

ri
s
o

n
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 2
0

1
0

 a
n

d
 2

0
1
1

 d
a

ta
 d

u
e

 t
o

 d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rd

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
 t
h
e

 s
c
o
ri

n
g

 s
y
s
te

m
 

a
d
o
p
ts

 a
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
fo

rm
a
t 
s
o
 i
t 
h
a
s
 o

n
ly

 b
e
e
n
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 m
a
k
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
ra

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 c
o
m

p
a
ri

s
o
n
s
. 
 

Page 92



 4
.3

4
 

 4
.3

5
 

         4
.3

6
 

 4
.3

7
 

          4
.3

8
 

   

 T
w

e
n
ty

 p
a
rt

n
e

r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 w

e
re

 a
s
k
e
d
 t
o
 s

u
b

m
it
 t
h

e
ir
 s

.1
1
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

. 
N

in
e
te

e
n
 w

e
re

 r
e
tu

rn
e
d

 o
n
 t
im

e
. 

 T
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
s
e

lf
-a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

e
re

 r
e
p

o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e

 L
S

C
B

. 
O

v
e
ra

ll 
th

e
 p

ic
tu

re
 e

m
e
rg

in
g

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
is

 s
e
lf
-a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

a
s
 v

e
ry

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
. 
N

o
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

e
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 k

e
y
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

s
 w

e
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
: 
 

 
‘S

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 c

h
ild

re
n
’s

 w
e

lf
a
re

’:
  

 
‘T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 c
le

a
r 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
’:
  

 
‘A

 c
le

a
r 

lin
e
 o

f 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 e

x
is

ts
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

w
o
rk

 o
n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 w

e
lf
a

re
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
’:
  

 
‘S

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
ta

k
e
s
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h

e
 w

e
lf
a

re
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 i
s
 i
n
fo

rm
e

d
 w

h
e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
b
y
 t
h
e
 

v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
’:
  

 
‘S

ta
ff

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
is

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 w

e
lf
a
re

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 o

r 
in

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h
 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
’:
 

 W
h

e
re

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

e
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 v
ie

w
 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 c

h
a
n
g
e

s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

 A
re

a
s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
w

e
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

re
a
s
: 

 

 
P

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

e
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 E
d

u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
a
 d

is
c
re

p
a
n
c
y
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d

 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o

ls
 

(‘
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

 C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

  
S

a
fe

r 
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
in

 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 J

a
n

 2
0
0
7
) 

a
n
d
 s

(1
1

) 
o
f 
th

e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 A

c
t 
2
0
0
4
 w

it
h
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
to

 C
R

B
 c

h
e
c
k
s
 b

e
in

g
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

n
 s

ta
ff
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 T
e
a
m

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 h

a
rm

o
n
is

e
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

  
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
, 
c
la

ri
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 s

o
u
g

h
t 
a

n
d

 r
e
c
e

iv
e

d
 f
ro

m
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

n
u

m
b
e

r 
o
f 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
b

o
u
t 
th

e
 i
d
e

n
ti
ty

 o
f 

th
e
ir
 s

e
n
io

r 
o

ff
ic

e
r 

w
h

o
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a

t 
a

lle
g
a
ti
o

n
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
s
ta

ff
 a

re
 p

a
s
s
e
d
 t
o
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 D
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
A

D
O

) 
  O

v
e
ra

ll 
it
 i
s
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 S

1
1
 a

u
d
it
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 v

e
ry

 h
e
lp

fu
l 
to

 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
, 
b
u
t 
a
ls

o
 t
h
e
 s

h
a
ri

n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 m
a
k
e
s
 a

n
 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
. 

 

4
.4

 
 4
.4

1
 

      

S
e

ri
o

u
s
 C

a
s
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 L

e
s
s
o

n
s
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
 

 T
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 i
s
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
it
ia

ti
n
g
 a

 S
e
ri
o
u
s
 C

a
s
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 (

S
C

R
) 

in
 c

ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h

e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 a
 d

e
a

th
 o

f 
a
 c

h
ild

 a
n
d

 a
b
u

s
e
 o

r 
n
e
g
le

c
t 

is
 s

u
s
p
e

c
te

d
, 
o

r 
w

h
e

re
 t
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 s
e

ri
o

u
s
 i
n
ju

ry
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 c
o

n
c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o

u
t 
in

te
ra

g
e
n

c
y
 w

o
rk

in
g

. 
 T

h
e

 p
u
rp

o
s
e

 o
f 
s
u

c
h

 a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
s
 t
o
: 

 
E

s
ta

b
lis

h
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
re

 a
re

 a
n
y
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
 t
o
 b

e
 l
e
a
rn

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e

 c
a

s
e
 a

n
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 w

a
y
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 l
o

c
a
l 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 a
n
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
 w

o
rk

e
d
 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 w

e
lf
a
re

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
. 
 

 
Id

e
n
ti
fy

 c
le

a
rl
y
 w

h
a
t 
th

o
s
e
 l
e

s
s
o
n
s
 a

re
, 
h
o
w

 t
h
e
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
te

d
 o

n
, 
w

h
a
t 
is

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
in

 w
h
a
t 
ti
m

e
s
c
a

le
 a

n
d

 

 
a
s
 a

 c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
, 
im

p
ro

v
e
 i
n
te

r-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t
o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 w

e
lf
a
re

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

 

Page 93



 4
.4

2
 

    4
.4

3
 

 T
h
re

e
 S

C
R

 w
e
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 r
e
c
u
rr

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 t
ra

in
in

g
, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n

, 
m

u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 L
A

C
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 

in
 a

ll 
th

re
e
 S

C
R

s
. 
In

 t
w

o
 o

f 
th

e
 c

a
s
e
s
 t
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
 t
o
 L

A
C

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 S

C
R

 g
u
id

a
n
c
e
. 
T

h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
 w

ill
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h
e
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
. 
T

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 i
s
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
s
e

 S
C

R
s
 

in
to

 t
h
e
 n

e
w

ly
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

u
d
it
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
. 

 O
f 
th

e
 t
h
re

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 S

C
R

s
, 
O

fs
te

d
 j
u
d
g
e
d
 o

n
e
 t
o
 b

e
 ‘
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

’,
 o

n
e
 t
o
 b

e
 ‘
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
’ 
(f

o
llo

w
in

g
 r

e
m

e
d
ia

l 
w

o
rk

) 
a
n
d
 o

n
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

fe
e

d
b

a
c
k
 (

fo
llo

w
in

g
 a

 c
h
a

n
g

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
  
w

a
y
 O

fs
te

d
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
s
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
S

C
R

s
 

  

4
.5

 
 4
.5

1
 

   4
.5

2
 

  4
.5

3
 

  4
.5

4
 

   4
.5

5
 

   4
.5

6
 

       

M
a

n
a

g
in

g
 A

lle
g

a
ti
o

n
s
 A

g
a

in
s
t 
P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

ls
 

D
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 a

lle
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e

 a
g
a

in
s
t 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

ls
 i
s
 t
h
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
a
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
in

g
 a

g
e
n
c
y
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e

d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 
c
o
o
rd

in
a

ti
n
g
 r

o
le

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 D
e

s
ig

n
a
te

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r,

 o
r 

‘L
A

D
O

’.
 I
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

re
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 n
o
ti
fy

 t
h
e

 L
A

D
O

 o
f 
a
n
y
 

a
lle

g
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
. 
 

 T
h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 
th

e
 L

A
D

O
 i
s
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 t
o

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 a
n
d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
, 
to

 l
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p

o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 
m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

f 
c
a
s
e
s
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 d

e
a
lt
 w

it
h
 a

s
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

it
h
 a

 t
h
o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 f
a
ir
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 A
n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 o

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 b

y
 t
h
e

 L
A

D
O

 d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
. 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o

rt
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
, 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 p

la
n

s
 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

2
0
1
2
-2

0
1
3
. 
 

 T
h

e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
fu

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
a

 s
e
c
o
n

d
 L

A
D

O
 p

o
s
t 
w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 I
n

te
g
ra

te
d

 S
a

fe
g

u
a
rd

in
g
 U

n
it
, 
b
u
t 
a
t 
th

e
 

ti
m

e
 o

f 
w

ri
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 s

ti
ll 

to
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
In

 t
h
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
, 
th

o
s
e
 L

A
D

O
 p

o
s
ts

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 h

a
v
e
 l
in

e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 p
o
s
ts

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 I
S

U
. 
 

 T
h
e
 e

x
is

te
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
s
t 
o
f 
L
A

D
O

 h
a
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
re

s
p
o

n
s
e
s
 t
o

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

, 
b

u
t 
c
o

m
e

s
 u

n
d

e
r 

s
o

m
e

 s
tr

a
in

 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 L

A
D

O
 i
s
 

o
n
 l
e
a
v
e
. 
T

h
a
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 w

h
e
n

 t
h
e
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e

s
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
p
o
s
t 
is

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 g

re
a
tl
y
 a

s
s
is

te
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 S

in
c
e

 2
0
0

6
-2

0
0

7
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
o

 t
h

e
 L

A
D

O
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 g

ro
w

in
g
 w

it
h
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
tw

o
 y

e
a
rs

: 
 2

0
0

6
-2

0
0

7
 -

 6
3

  
2

0
0

7
-2

0
0

8
 -

 8
0

  
2

0
0

8
-2

0
0

9
 -

 1
1

9
  

2
0

0
9
-2

0
1

0
 -

 1
2

6
  

2
0

1
0
-2

0
1

1
 2

4
9

  
2

0
1

1
-2

0
1

2
 4

0
5

Page 94



 4
.5

7
 

   4
.5

8
 

    4
.5

9
 

  4
.5

1
0
 

    4
.5

1
1
 

     4
.5

1
2
 

     4
.5

1
3
 

   

3
0
4
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 w
e
re

 a
b
o
u
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 c
h
ild

re
n
 p

o
s
s
ib

ly
 b

e
in

g
 h

a
rm

e
d
 b

y
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

ls
, 
o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 j
u
s
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

a
 t
h
ir
d
 (

9
4
) 

w
e
re

 L
o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
. 

N
o
t 
a
ll 

o
f 
th

e
m

 a
re

 L
e
e
d
s
 c

h
ild

re
n
; 
s
e
v
e
ra

l 
a
re

 p
la

c
e
d

 b
y
 o

th
e
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
 i
n
 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
F

o
s
te

ri
n

g
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 (

IF
A

) 
o
r 

P
ri
v
a
te

 R
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
it
s
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 a

re
a
. 

 O
n
ly

 a
b
o
u
t 
a
 t
h
ir
d
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 l
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
v
e
n

in
g
 o

f 
a
n
 i
n
te

r 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 a

lle
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 s

im
ila

r 
to

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n

 i
n
 

th
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 A
g
a
in

, 
th

e
 v

a
s
t 
m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
a
ll 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 t
a
k
in

g
 a

c
ti
o
n

 u
s
in

g
 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n

 c
o

d
e

s
 o

f 
c
o

n
d

u
c
t 

fo
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
, 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 L

A
D

O
. 
C

ri
te

ri
a

 f
o
r 

c
o
n
v
e
n
in

g
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 a

re
 w

h
e
n

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 j
u
d
g

m
e
n
t 
e
it
h
e
r 

th
a
t 
a
 c

h
ild

 m
a

y
 b

e
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

h
a
rm

 o
r 

th
e
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

o
f 
a
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
m

a
y
 p

o
s
e
 a

 r
is

k
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
h
a
rm

 t
o
 c

h
ild

re
n

.

4
6
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

A
D

O
 i
n

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

le
d
 t
o
 P

o
lic

e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o

n
s
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 l
o
w

 b
u
t 
s
im

ila
r 

to
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 e

v
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 i
n
 a

lle
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 c

h
ild

re
n
 t

h
a
t 
a
re

 d
e
n
ie

d
 b

y
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 m

a
y
 b

e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
c
o
rr

o
b
o
ra

ti
n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
(o

v
e
r 

th
re

e
fo

ld
) 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 f
ro

m
 W

e
th

e
rb

y
 Y

O
I.

 T
h
is

 i
s
 i
n
 p

a
rt

 r
e
la

te
d
 t
o
 g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 a
n
d
 l
ia

is
o
n

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 Y

O
I 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 L

A
D

O
. 
T

h
e
 L

A
D

O
 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
ta

c
te

d
 r

o
u
ti
n
e
ly

 b
y
 t
h
e
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 T

e
a
m

 a
t 
W

e
th

e
rb

y
 w

h
e

n
e

v
e

r 
a

 
tr

a
in

e
e
 m

a
k
e
s
 a

n
 a

lle
g
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
ill

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t,

 w
h
e
n
e

v
e
r 

a
n
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

u
s
e
s
 r

e
s
tr

a
in

t 
th

a
t 
is

 u
n
w

a
rr

a
n

te
d

 a
n

d
 w

h
e
n

 a
 t
ra

in
e

e
 s

u
s
ta

in
s
 a

n
 i
n
ju

ry
 i
n
 r

e
s
tr

a
in

t.
  

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 s
im

ila
r 

p
o
s
it
iv

e
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 w
it
h
 E

a
s
tm

o
o
r 

S
e
c
u
re

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
. 

 T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 p

o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 f
ro

m
 h

e
a
lt
h
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 l
o

w
. 
O

f 
th

e
 1

1
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

, 
n
o
n
e
 w

e
re

 a
b
o
u
t 
a
 h

e
a
lt
h
 c

a
re

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
h
a
rm

in
g

 a
 c

h
ild

 
w

h
ils

t 
a
t 
w

o
rk

, 
b
u
t 
w

e
re

 a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e

ir
 w

o
rk

 g
iv

e
n

 s
a

fe
g
u
a
rd

in
g
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 i
n

 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m

ily
 l
if
e
 (

o
w

n
 c

h
ild

re
n
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 
p

la
n
s
 a

n
d

 d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 b
e

in
g

 e
x
a
m

p
le

s
).

 T
h

is
 f
e
a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 s

e
e
n

 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

0
1
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

A
D

O
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 
a
b
o
u
t 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 c
h

ild
re

n
. 
W

o
rk

in
g

 T
o

g
e

th
e
r 

(2
0
1

0
) 

is
 v

e
ry

 c
le

a
r 

th
a
t 
th

e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 a
lw

a
y
s
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 p

e
rs

o
n
’s

 s
u
it
a
b
ili

ty
 t
o

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h

 c
h
ild

re
n
 i
f 
th

e
re

 
a
re

 s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 o

u
ts

id
e
 o

f 
th

a
t 
p
e
rs

o
n
’s

 w
o
rk

p
la

c
e
 o

r 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
. 
 

 A
n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 L

A
D

O
 r

o
le

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 f
u
rt

h
e

r 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 
th

e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 p

o
s
t,
 i
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e
 L

A
D

O
 i
s
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 o

n
 w

o
rk

 a
ro

u
n
d
 s

a
fe

r 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
ta

ff
, 
s
e
le

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
a
re

rs
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 a

 c
u
lt
u
re

 o
f 
v
ig

ila
n
c
e
. 
 

B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 f
o
r 

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 o

n
 t
h
e

 L
A

D
O

 r
o
le

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 
a

lle
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
s
ta

ff
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o
 m

a
n
y
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
: 
S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t,
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 C

h
a
ir
s
, 
In

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
R

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

, 
F

o
s
te

ri
n
g
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

, 
th

e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 a
 

m
o
n
th

ly
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 o

f 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 f
o
s
te

r 
c
a
re

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

 g
ro

u
p
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
 L

A
D

O
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 m
a
k
in

g
 L

e
e
d
s
 a

 s
a
fe

r 
c
it
y
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
, 
a
n
d
 f
u
tu

re
 w

o
rk

 w
ill

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 h

o
w

 b
e

s
t 
to

 e
n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 

c
h
ild

’s
 v

o
ic

e
 t
o
 b

e
 h

e
a
rd

 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 L

A
D

O
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 a

ro
u

n
d

 h
o

w
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
re

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
d

 w
it
h

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
y
 m

a
k
e

 r
e
fe

rr
a
ls

. 

 
4
.6

 
 4
.6

1
 

   

S
in

g
le

 a
n
d
 M

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 A

u
d
it
in

g
 A

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

 A
 L

S
C

B
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 a

u
d
it
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
it
ia

te
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t
o

 c
h
e

c
k
 t
h

e
 e

m
b

e
d
d

in
g

 o
f 
c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 f
ro

m
 l
e

s
s
o

n
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 S

C
R

s
 a

n
d
 L

L
L
R

s
. 
S

ix
 s

tr
a
n
d

s
 w

e
re

 a
g

re
e
d
 a

s
 s

u
b
je

c
ts

 f
o
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u

ra
n
c
e

 a
u
d
it
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h

e
 L

S
C

B
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
a
s
p
e

c
ts

 o
f 
s
a

fe
g
u

a
rd

in
g

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 w

e
lf
a
re

 i
n

 L
e

e
d
s
: 

 

Page 95



                  4
.6

2
 

  4
.6

3
 

 4
.6

4
 

 4
.6

5
 

 
(S

1
)T

o
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
re

 a
n
d
 a

u
d
it
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p
le

 s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n

s
. 

 
 

(S
2
) 

T
o
 a

u
d
it
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
 f
o
r 

c
a
lli

n
g
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 c
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
, 
re

v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

re
 g

ro
u
p
s
 a

n
d
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

n
y
 r

e
a

s
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
d
e
la

y
. 

 
 

(S
3
) 

T
o
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
re

 a
n
d
 a

u
d
it
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
a
n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
C

h
ild

 C
a
re

 P
la

n
s
 f
o
r 

L
o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 

in
 L

A
C

 R
e

v
ie

w
s
. 

 
 

(S
4
) 

T
o
 a

u
d
it
 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

p
o
lic

y
 o

n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 o

f 
te

e
n
a
g
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
re

fe
rr

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 T

e
e
n
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 P

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 P

a
th

w
a
y
. 
 

 
 

(S
5
) 

T
o
 a

u
d
it
 (

a
) 

th
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
re

v
is

e
d
 c

a
re

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
p
o

lic
ie

s
 i
n

 S
p

e
c
ia

l 
In

c
lu

s
io

n
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 C
e

n
tr

e
s
 (

S
IL

C
s
) 

a
n

d
 (

b
) 

w
h
e
n

 b
ro

u
g
h
t 
to

 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u

th
o
ri
ty

’s
 a

tt
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
th

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 w

h
e

re
 i
n
d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
a

d
v
o

c
a

te
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
re

 m
a
d
e
 b

y
 p

a
re

n
ts

 
a
n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
. 
 

 
 

(S
6
) 

T
o
 a

u
d
it
 t
h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 
to

 w
h
ic

h
 t
h
e
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n

fo
rm

 a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
’ 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
re

g
a
rd

in
g
 t
h
e
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 w

e
lf
a
re

. 
 S

tr
a
n
d
 (

1
):

 t
o
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
re

 a
n
d
 a

u
d
it
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p

le
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 c
h

ild
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
t 
u

p
 a

n
d
 

in
it
ia

te
d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
. 
E

m
e
rg

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
. 
 

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ta

l 
w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 f
o

r 
s
tr

a
n

d
s
 (

4
) 

&
 (

5
) 

a
n

d
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
s
 w

ill
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
6
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
2
0
1
2
/1

3
. 

 A
u
d
it
 t
o
o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f
o
r 

s
tr

a
n
d
s
 (

2
) 

&
 (

3
).

 T
h
e
s
e
 a

u
d

it
s
 w

ill
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
. 

 P
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 s

tr
a
n
d
 (

6
):

 t
o
 a

u
d
it
 t
h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 
to

 w
h
ic

h
 t
h
e
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 i
n

fo
rm

 a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
’ 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
re

g
a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

’s
 w

e
lf
a
re

.i
s
 a

w
a
it
in

g
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 C

&
Y

P
’s

 V
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

Page 96



4
.7

 
4
.7

1
 

  4
.7

2
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
n
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 
O

fs
te

d
’s

 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
s
c
h
o

o
ls

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 a
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 f
o

c
u
s
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
d
d
re

s
s
e
s
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
, 
p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e
ly

 a
n
d
, 
w

h
e
n

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

, 
in

 a
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
 w

a
y
. 

 T
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 a

 v
e
ry

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 p

ic
tu

re
 a

m
o
n
g
s
t 
th

o
s
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 t
h
a
t 
re

c
e
iv

e
d
 a

n
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

 

 

In
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

n
e

w
 

O
fs

te
d
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
In

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

o
ld

 
O

fs
te

d
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
T

o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

In
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n
s
 

 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 
1
8
 

3
3
 

5
1
 

 

S
e
c
o
n
d

a
ry

 
3
 

4
 

7
 

 

P
R

U
 

1
 

1
 

2
 

 

T
o

ta
l 

2
2

 
3

8
 

6
0

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

/B
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

J
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 -

 P
ri

m
a
ry

 S
c

h
o

o
ls

 
 

 

  
N

u
m

b
e
r 

P
e
rc

e
n
t 

 
 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d

in
g
 

5
 

1
0
%

 
 

 

G
o

o
d

 
3

5
 

6
9

%
 

 
 

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 

1
1
 

2
2
%

 
 

 

U
n
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 

0
 

0
%

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

/B
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

J
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 -

 S
e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

 
 

  
N

u
m

b
e
r 

P
e
rc

e
n
t 

 
 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d

in
g
 

1
 

1
4
%

 
 

 

G
o

o
d

 
3

 
4

3
%

 
 

 

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 

3
 

4
3
%

 
 

 

U
n
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 

0
 

0
%

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

/B
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

J
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 -

 P
R

U
s

 
 

 

  
N

u
m

b
e
r 

P
e
rc

e
n
t 

 
 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d

in
g
 

0
 

0
%

 
 

 

G
o

o
d

 
2

 
1

0
0

%
 

 
 

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 

0
 

0
%

 
 

 

U
n
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 

0
 

0
%

 
 

 

(T
h
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 u

s
e
 "

T
h
e
 E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

 P
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
" 

ju
d
g

e
m

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 u

n
d
e

r 
th

e
 o

ld
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 "

B
e

h
a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
" 

ju
d

g
e
m

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 u

n
d
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
w

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
.)

 

Page 97



4
.8

 
 4
.8

1
 

  4
.8

2
 

  4
.8

3
 

   4
.8

4
 

          4
.8

5
 

  4
.8

6
 

           

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 f
ro

m
 C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 

C
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

C
&

Y
P

 c
a
n
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 o

u
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

in
 L

e
e

d
s
.
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 w
e
ll 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
n
d
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
 T

h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 i
s
 d

ra
w

n
 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 d
e
a
lt
 w

it
h
 b

y
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
T

h
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 o

f 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 d
u

ri
n
g
 y

e
a
r 

2
0
1
1
/2

0
1
2
  
  
–

  
1
3

 
   W

h
o

 m
a
d

e
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 

 
 
H

o
w

 I
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 

N
u

m
b

e
r

A
d
o
p
ti
v
e
 P

a
re

n
t 

1
 

O
th

e
r 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 /
 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 

3
 

P
a
re

n
t 

6
 

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 
1
 

S
o
lic

it
o
r 

2
 

T
o

ta
l 

1
3

 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
/y

o
u
n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 r
e
q
u

ir
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

it
h

 a
d
v
o
c
a

c
y
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 -
 0

  
  T

y
p

e
 o

f 
c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
 

 
T

y
p

e
 o

f 
C

o
m

p
la

in
t 

N
u

m
b

e
r

C
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
 

2
 

S
ta

ff
 A

tt
it
u
d
e
 /

 C
o
n
d
u
c
t 

2
 

B
re

a
c
h
 o

f 
C

o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
lit

y
 

1
 

A
lle

g
e
d
 C

h
ild

 A
b
u
s
e
 

1
 

N
e

g
le

c
t 

1
 

P
ro

c
e

s
s
 

3
 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

3
 

T
o

ta
l 

1
3

 

Page 98



4
.8

7
 

          4
.8

8
 

  4
.8

9
 

  4
.8

1
0
 

 4
.8

1
1
 

   

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 o

f 
c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
 

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
 

N
u

m
b

e
r

L
o

c
a

lly
 R

e
s
o

lv
e

d
 

1
 

S
ta

g
e

 1
 

 
In

c
o

n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 

2
 

 
N

o
t 
U

p
h

e
ld

 
5

 
 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
1

 
 

P
a
rt

ia
lly

 U
p
h
e
ld

 
4
 

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
d
 t
o
 s

ta
g
e
 t
w

o
 –

 1
 

 T
h
e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 
is

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 a

re
a

 o
ff

ic
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 t
e
a
m

  
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
d
 t
o
 s

ta
g
e
 t
h
re

e
 –

 1
  

T
h
e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 
is

 a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
 w

a
y
 t
h
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

e
re

 d
e
a
lt
 w

it
h
. 
 

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o

m
b
u
d
s
m

a
n
 -

 0
 

 C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 s
u
rv

e
y
s
 a

re
 c

o
n
d
u

c
te

d
 w

it
h

 p
a
re

n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

a
re

rs
 w

h
o
s
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 a
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 
R

e
s
p
o

n
s
e

s
 a

re
 a

n
a

ly
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
te

a
m

 a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
ro

m
 f
o
rm

a
l 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

s
 i
n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

n
y
 s

h
o
rt

fa
lls

. 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
re

e
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
n
d
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 b

y
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 O
m

b
u
d
s
m

a
n
, 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a

s
 t
a
k
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
n

d
 r

o
b
u
s
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 t
o

 
d

ri
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t,

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
 i
n
q
u

ir
y
 b

y
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 b

o
a
rd

 i
n
to

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
n
e

e
d
s
 

a
n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
. 

4
.9

  
 4
.9

1
 

  4
.9

2
 

    4
.9

3
 

    

P
ri
v
a
te

 F
o
s
te

ri
n
g
 

W
o
rk

in
g
 T

o
g
e

th
e
r 

to
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 C
h
ild

re
n

 2
0
1
0
 s

e
ts

 o
u

t 
a
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
ra

l 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n

 f
o
r 

th
e
 L

S
C

B
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o

 p
ri
v
a
te

 f
o
s
te

ri
n
g

. 
T

h
e
 L

S
C

B
 r

o
le

 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

p
u
b
lic

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 i
s
 r

a
is

e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
p
ri
v
a
te

 f
o
s
te

ri
n
g
. 

 It
 i
s
 t
h
e
 d

u
ty

 o
f 
lo

c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 p
u
b
lic

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
th

o
s
e

 c
o
n

s
id

e
ri
n
g

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 p

ri
v
a
te

 f
o

s
te

ri
n

g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 t
o

 
n
o
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
T

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 a

 d
u
ty

 t
o
 s

a
ti
s
fy

 t
h

e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 w

e
lf
a
re

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 o

r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 m

a
y
 b

e
 p

ri
v
a
te

ly
 

fo
s
te

re
d

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
ir
 a

re
a
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ri
ly

 s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

e
d
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
. 
It
 i
s
 a

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 P

ri
v
a
te

 F
o
s
te

ri
n
g
 R

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
, 
2
0
0
5
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 

re
p
o
rt

 i
s
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
. 

 T
h

e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

 w
it
h

 1
5

 c
h

ild
re

n
 b

e
in

g
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 p

ri
v
a
te

ly
 f
o
s
te

re
d

 d
u
ri
n
g

 t
h
is

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a

r 
c
o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 1
0

 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 2

 y
e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 7

 i
n

 2
0
0
8
. 
S

ix
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

re
 a

g
e

d
 1

5
 o

r 
o
v
e

r,
 5

 a
re

 b
e
tw

e
e
n

 1
0
 a

n
d
 1

4
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

, 
3

 a
re

 a
g
e
d

 5
 t
o
 9

 a
n
d
 o

n
e
 

c
h
ild

 i
s
 a

g
e
d
 2

 y
e
a
rs

. 
C

o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s
 a

re
 o

n
ly

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
in

g
 2

0
1
0
. 
In

 2
0
1
0
 c

o
m

p
a
ri

s
o
n
 w

it
h
 C

o
re

 C
it
ie

s
 (

th
e
 n

e
a
re

s
t 

n
e

ig
h
b

o
u
rs

 i
n
 

te
rm

s
 o

f 
s
iz

e
) 

in
d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 a
n
d
 B

ir
m

in
g
h
a
m

 h
a
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 2

0
 p

ri
v
a

te
 f
o

s
te

ri
n
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 M

a
n
c
h
e
s
te

r 
1
5
. 
In

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 y

e
a

r 
L

e
e

d
s
 

h
a
d
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 1

0
. 
T

h
is

 c
o
m

p
a
re

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 1

5
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 c

a
s
e
s
 i
n

 L
e
e

d
s
 a

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

2
. 
 

Page 99



 4
.9

4
 

    4
.9

5
 

  

 P
ri
v
a
te

 f
o
s
te

ri
n
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 w

e
re

 i
n
s
p
e
c
te

d
 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 a

n
d
 w

e
re

 j
u
d
g
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

. 
In

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
1
, 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

a
s
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 
S

o
m

e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 w

a
s
 m

a
d
e

 i
n
 a

ll 
a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 p

la
n
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

in
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
la

c
k
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 r
e

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 l
o
w

 r
a
te

 o
f 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

 o
f 
p
ri
v
a
te

 f
o
s
te

ri
n
g
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
lb

e
it
 w

it
h
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
. 

 A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 f
o

s
te

ri
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 h

e
a

d
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 f
o

r 
lo

o
k
e
d

 a
ft

e
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 i
m

m
e
d

ia
te

 
a
n
d
 r

o
b
u
s
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d
. 
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
re

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 a
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n

g
 o

f 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 h

a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 
th

o
s
e
 w

it
h
 e

x
p
e

rt
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 o

f 
p
ri
v
a
te

 f
o
s
te

ri
n
g
 a

re
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 i
n

v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

. 
A

 u
p
d
a
te

d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 c

re
a

te
d

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u
e

s
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
. 
O

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
, 

a
ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h

is
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d

 a
n
d

 p
ri
v
a
te

ly
 f
o
s
te

re
d

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 a

n
 L

S
C

B
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
. 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 w
ill

 b
e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 f
o
llo

w
 u

p
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
  

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 

fi
n
d
in

g
s
 o

f 
a
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 e

n
q
u
ir
y
. 

  
5
.0

 
 5
.0

1
 

  5
.0

2
 

   5
.0

3
 

    5
.0

4
 

  5
.0

5
 

       

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 E

x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 L

S
C

B
 F

u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 D
is

c
h
a
rg

e
d

 T
h
is

 s
e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 R

e
p
o
rt

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 w

a
y
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 h

a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
it
s
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
in

te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 w

o
rk

 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r,

 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 m

a
k
e

s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
c
o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 t
o

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

. 
 In

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
1
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 a

n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n

t 
a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 e

x
te

n
t 
to

 w
h
ic

h
 i
t 
w

a
s
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e
ly

 c
a
rr

y
in

g
 o

u
t 
th

e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

s
c
ri
b
e
d
 t
o
 i
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
. 
O

v
e
ra

ll,
 t
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 a

t 
th

a
t 
ti
m

e
 t

h
a
t 
a
lm

o
s
t 
a
ll 

o
f 
th

e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 b
e
in

g
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 t
o
 a

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
r 

b
e
tt

e
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
c
le

a
r 

p
la

n
s
 w

e
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
w

h
e
re

 n
e
e
d
e
d
. 
 

 T
w

o
 a

re
a
s
 w

e
re

 l
a
c
k
in

g
 a

d
e

q
u
a

te
 p

la
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u

ld
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 a

 s
h

o
rt

fa
ll:

  
 

‘L
S

C
B

s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h

 a
n
y
 s

e
c
u
re

 s
e

tt
in

g
 i
n

 i
ts

 a
re

a
 a

n
d
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 s

c
ru

ti
n
is

e
 r

e
s
tr

a
in

t 
te

c
h
n

iq
u
e
s
, 
th

e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 
p

ro
to

c
o

ls
 w

h
ic

h
 s

u
rr

o
u
n

d
 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 
re

s
tr

a
in

t,
 a

n
d

 i
n
c
id

e
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

ju
ri
e
s
’ 

 
‘T

h
e
 L

S
C

B
 a

s
 t
h
e
 ‘
re

s
p

o
n
s
ib

le
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

’ 
fo

r 
‘m

a
tt

e
rs

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 f
ro

m
 h

a
rm

’ 
u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 L
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 A

c
t 

2
0
0
3

’ 

 A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 a

c
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 s

in
c
e
 t
a

k
e

n
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 o
f 
th

e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 L
S

C
B

’s
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 i
s
 p

ro
v
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
c
ia

l.
 F

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
ta

ils
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

re
le

v
a
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 e

ls
e
w

h
e
re

 i
n
 t
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

. 
 T

h
is

 w
o
rk

 f
o
rm

e
d
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a
 b

ro
a
d
e
r 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
s
e
s
s
io

n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 f
u

ll 
B

o
a

rd
 i
n

 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
. 
T

h
e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 B

o
a
rd

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 g
iv

in
g

 a
c
ti
v
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

g
ro

u
p
 f
o
rm

a
t 
to

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 t
h
e
m

e
s
 t
h
a
t 

e
m

e
rg

e
d
 f
ro

m
 

e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
o
ls

 u
s
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e
 t
o
o
ls

 w
e
re

; 
 

 
C

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

T
B

 2
0
1
0
-1

1
 o

n
 h

o
w

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 t
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 c

o
re

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
. 

 
C

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 G

o
v
e

rn
a
n
c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
. 
 

 
T

h
e

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 s
e

lf
 -

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
‘C

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 a
n
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t’
 t
o
o
l 
b
y
 B

o
a
rd

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

. 
 

Page 100



   5
.0

6
 

            5
.0

7
 

   5
.0

8
 

            5
.0

9
 

 
L
S

C
B

 S
u
b
-g

ro
u
p
 C

h
a
ir
s
’ 
R

e
p
o
rt

s
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
n
g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

 

 
In

d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n

t 
C

h
a

ir
 3

6
0

 d
e
g

re
e

 e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
. 
 

 
A

 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 w

it
h
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
L
S

C
B

 s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

. 
 T

h
e

 o
v
e
ra

ll 
c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 c

o
m

p
o
n
e
n
ts

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 B

o
a

rd
 h

a
s
 m

a
d

e
 a

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 w
a

s
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 O

fs
te

d
 i
n

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n

, 
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

t 
th

a
t 
ti
m

e
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 w

h
ic

h
 s

ta
te

d
: 

 
“T

h
e

 L
S

C
B

 i
s
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

 a
n
d
 m

e
e
ts

 i
ts

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
s
p
o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
. 
It

 h
a

s
 a

n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

c
h
a
ir
 w

h
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

. 
S

h
e

 h
a
s
 

w
o
rk

e
d

 h
a
rd

 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 
a

ll 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 i
s
 b

e
g
in

n
in

g
 t
o
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 o

n
 t
h
e
ir
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

. 
T

h
e
 L

S
C

B
 h

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 s
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

re
p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o
n
. 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 h
a
v
e

 v
a
lu

e
d
 d

ir
e
c
t 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e

 c
h
a
ir
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 b

y
 s

o
m

e
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 i
s
 p

o
o
r 

b
u

t 
th

is
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

o
n
it
o

re
d
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

n
n
u
a

lly
. 
A

 m
o
re

 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

P
la

n
 O

c
t 
2

0
1
0

 -
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
 w

it
h

 c
le

a
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
. 
T

h
e
 L

S
C

B
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
0
/2

0
1
1
 i
s
 g

o
o
d
; 
it
 t
a
k
e
s
 a

 s
e

lf
-

c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
a
rd

’s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 b

o
th

 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
it
s
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

h
a

lle
n
g

e
s
. 
T

h
e

 L
S

C
B

 h
a
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

 i
ts

 m
u
lt
i-

a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
is

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
s
 g

o
o

d
. 
It

 h
a

s
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 n

e
w

 p
o
s
ts

 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h

e
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
a
rd

 i
n
 2

0
1
1
-2

0
1
2
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 u

s
e
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
, 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 
q
u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
, 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

”.
 O

fs
te

d
 O

c
t 
2

0
1
1

 
 T

h
e
 t
h
e
m

e
s
 c

h
o
s
e
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p

 w
e
re

 t
h
o
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
fo

c
u
s
e
d
 a

tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 ‘
p
ro

c
e
s
s
’ 
o
f 
h
o
w

 t
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
s
 i
t’
s
 w

o
rk

, 
ra

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 o

n
 w

h
a
t 

th
e
 B

o
a
rd

 d
o
e

s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 d
e
a
lt
 w

it
h
 i
n
 t
h
e
 ‘
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
’ 
p
a
rt

 o
f 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
, 
b
e

c
a
u
s
e
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 s
u

g
g

e
s
ts

 t
h

a
t 
s
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
L

S
C

B
s
 p

a
y
 a

tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

h
o
w

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

 w
o
rk

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r.

 T
h
is

 c
re

a
te

s
 m

o
re

 e
n
g
a
g
e

m
e
n
t 

fo
r 

a
ll 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
n
d

 m
o

d
e

ls
 c

o
-o

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
. 

 T
h
e
 t
h
e
m

e
s
 w

o
rk

e
d

 o
n
 w

e
re

: 
  

‘H
o
w

 c
a
n
 t
h

e
 L

S
C

B
 e

n
a
b
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
ir
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 a

s
s
is

ts
 t
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 

c
a
rr

y
in

g
 o

u
t 
it
s
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
?
’ 
 

 
‘W

h
a
t 
s
te

p
s
 c

a
n
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 t
a
k
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
c
ti
v
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
n

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
ll 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 i
n
c
lu

s
iv

it
y
?
’ 

 
‘W

h
a

t 
fu

rt
h
e

r 
s
te

p
s
 c

a
n

 t
h

e
 L

S
C

B
 t
a

k
e

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 a

n
d
 t
h
e

 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 G

ro
u
p
 i
s
 m

o
s
t 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
.’
 

 
‘I
f 
it
 i
s
 t
ru

e
 t
h
a
t 
h
o
w

L
S

C
B

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 w
o
rk

 t
o

g
e

th
e
r 

is
 c

ru
c
ia

l,
 b

e
c
a
u

s
e

 i
t 
is

 p
o

te
n

ti
a
lly

 m
ir
ro

re
d
 a

t 
a
ll 

le
v
e
ls

 o
f 
in

te
r-

a
g
e
n
c
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 h

o
w

 p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

, 
w

h
a
t 
s
te

p
s
 c

a
n
 t

h
e
 L

S
C

B
 t
a
k
e
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
f 
th

is
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
?
 H

o
w

 c
a
n
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

B
o
a
rd

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 w
o
rk

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

a
n
d

 t
a
k
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o
f 
w

h
a
t 
is

 m
ir
ro

re
d
?
’ 

 
‘H

o
w

 c
a
n
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
it
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 c

h
ild

 f
o
c
u
s
e
d

 i
n
 a

ll 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 t
h
a

t 
it
 d

o
e
s
?
 

 W
o
rk

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
h
e
m

e
s
 h

a
s
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 m

a
d
e

 b
y
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

 
 

   

   

Page 101



 5
.1

 
 5
.1

1
 

     5
.1

2
 

    5
.1

3
 

    5
.1

4
 

    

 W
o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 –

 R
e
a
lis

in
g
 t
h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
1
-1

5
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
s
. 

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
1
-1

5
  

In
it
ia

l 
fe

e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
 r

e
m

a
in

 f
it
 f
o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
n
o
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 m

a
d
e

. 
O

n
 2

0
.0

4
.1

2
. 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 d

e
c
id

e
d
 t
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t

h
e
 s

ta
tu

s
 o

f 
‘E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
’ 
fr

o
m

 a
 ‘
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

’ 
to

 a
 ‘
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

.’
 T

h
is

 w
a
s
 i
n
 r

e
c
o
g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
s
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

a
s
t 
tw

o
 y

e
a
rs

 o
n

 i
ts

 g
o

v
e
rn

a
n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 s

c
o
re

c
a
rd

. 
 

 T
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

O
v
e

ra
ll 

g
o
o

d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 s

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

in
 a

n
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

. 
9
8
%

 o
f 
ta

s
k
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
d
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 s

lip
p
a
g
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
t 
in

 3
7
%

. 
A

 m
o
re

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 i
s
 a

tt
a
c
h

e
d
 a

s
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 3
 a

n
d
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 a
n
d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n

s
 a

re
 a

tt
a

c
h
e
d
 a

s
 A

p
p
e

n
d

ix
 3

. 
 A

 R
e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
’s

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

is
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

. 
(a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 a

s
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 4
).

 T
h
is

 s
h
o
w

s
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
tt

e
d

 s
h
o
rt

fa
ll 

in
 i
n
c
o
m

e
, 

w
h

ic
h

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e

d
 b

y
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

u
s
e

 o
f 

th
e
 L

S
C

B
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
. 
A

 ‘
s
ta

n
d

s
ti
ll’

 b
a
s
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 s
e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
1
2
/1

3
, 
a
g
a

in
 w

it
h

 a
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 

in
c
o
m

e
 d

e
fi
c
it
 o

f 
£
2
1
,5

6
0
. 
 

  In
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
is

 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
v
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 v

a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e

y
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
n

fo
rm

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
s
e
tt

in
g
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
.  

  

5
.2

 
 5
.2

1
 

   5
.2

2
 

  

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 I
n
te

r-
A

g
e

n
c
y
 P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 

 L
e
e
d
s
 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a
 c

o
n
s
o
rt

iu
m

 o
f 
fi
v
e
 W

e
s
t 
Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
it
h
 a

 s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
c
o
m

p
a
n
y
 t
o
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 I
n
te

r-
A

g
e

n
c
y
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
. 
D

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

L
e
e
d
s
 h

a
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
h

is
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 c
o
n

tr
ib

u
te

d
 t
o

 u
p

d
a

te
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 o
n

 
a
 s

ix
 m

o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

. 
 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

re
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 a

n
d
 u

p
d
a
te

s
 a

re
 f

la
g

g
e

d
 t
o

 p
a

rt
n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 
p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 a
re

 k
e
p
t 
u
p
 t

o
 d

a
te

. 
   

5
.3

 
 5
.3

1
 

   

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
S

in
g
le

 a
n
d
 M

u
lt
i-
A

g
e
n
c
y
 T

ra
in

in
g
 

 D
e
ta

ile
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 i
n
 t
h

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 S

y
s
te

m
  
u
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 B

a
s
e
d
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ti
b
ili

ty
 (

O
B

A
) 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

. 
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 &

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
s
u
b
 g

ro
u
p
 t
o
 d

is
s
e
m

in
a
te

 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 a

n
d

 h
e

n
c
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

C
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o
p

le
.

Page 102



 5
.3

2
 

    5
.3

3
 

      5
.3

4
 

         5
.3

5
 

  5
.3

6
 

  5
.3

7
 

   5
.3

8
 

  5
.3

9
 

   

A
 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 
1
1
7
 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 w

e
re

 r
u
n
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
-1

2
, 
w

it
h
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 
2

5
0
1
 p

la
c
e
s
 b

o
o
k
e
d
. 
O

f 
th

o
s
e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 3

8
 w

e
re

 l
e
v
e
l 
1
 c

o
u

rs
e
s
 (

fo
r 

T
h
ir
d
 S

e
c
to

r 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
),

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 8
3

2
 p

la
c
e
s
 a

n
d

 3
4

 s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 w

e
re

 L
e

v
e

l 
2

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 7

6
9
 p

la
c
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 4

5
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 w

e
re

 “
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
a
n
d
 

S
p

e
c
ia

lis
t”

 c
o
u

rs
e

s
, 
a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 9
0
0

 p
la

c
e
s
. 
O

f 
th

o
s
e
 p

la
c
e
s
 b

o
o
k
e
d
 2

1
3
3
 (

8
5
%

) 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n

ts
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

, 
2

1
2

 (
8

%
) 

s
e

n
t 
a

p
o

lo
g

ie
s
, 
1
4
3
 (

6
%

) 
d
id

 n
o
t 

a
tt
e
n
d
 a

n
d
 1

3
 (

1
%

) 
a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 b

u
t 
w

e
re

 e
it
h
e
r 

s
e
n
t 
a
w

a
y
 f
o
r 

a
rr

iv
in

g
 l
a

te
 o

r 
le

ft
 e

a
rl
y
. 
T

h
is

 e
x
c
e
e
d

s
 t
h
e
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
a
tt
e
n
d

a
n
c
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
7
5
%

, 
 

 In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

ta
n
d
in

g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 a

 s
e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
c
it
y
-w

id
e
 e

v
e

n
ts

 w
e

re
 h

e
ld

 f
o

r 
p
ra

c
ti
ti
o

n
e

rs
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d
: 
 

 
 

1
0
 b

ri
e
fi
n
g

s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 F

a
m

ili
e

s
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 C
h

ild
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 C

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e
s
. 

 
A

 W
e

s
t 
Y

o
rk

s
h

ir
e

 M
a
s
te

rc
la

s
s
 

 
F

o
u

r 
S

C
R

 b
ri
e

fi
n

g
s
 

 
A

 c
o
n

fe
re

n
c
e
 t
o
 l
a
u
n

c
h
 t
h
e
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 C

S
E

 a
n
d
 M

is
s
in

g
 C

h
ild

re
n
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 

 R
e
a
c
ti
v
e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 s

h
e
e
ts

 a
re

 i
s
s
u
e
d

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
e
v
e
ry

 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 w

h
ic

h
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 a
re

 a
s
k
e
d
 t
o
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

 t
h
e

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
: 

  
H

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 b

e
e
n

 m
e

t 
 

W
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

, 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 s

k
ill

s
 

 
If

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o

f 
e
q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 a

n
ti
-d

is
c
ri
m

in
a
to

ry
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 

 
T

h
e
 m

e
th

o
d

s
 u

s
e
d

 a
n

d
 t
h
e

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 t
ra

in
e
rs

 
 

If
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 m

e
t 
th

e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 e
x
p
e

c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 

 
T

h
e
 v

e
n
u
e
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

 F
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
re

 c
o
u
rs

e
s
 L

e
v
e
l 
1
 a

n
d
 L

e
v
e
l 
2
 t
h
e
re

 w
a

s
 a

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
9
7
%

. 
F

o
r 

a
ll 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n

s
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
9
0
%

 o
r 

h
ig

h
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
s
 i
n

d
ic

a
ti
n
g

 
th

a
t 
th

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
fu

l 
e
x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e

 w
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
.

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 q

u
a
lit

a
ti
v
e
 d

a
ta

 w
a
s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 w

h
a
t 
p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
ts

 f
o

u
n
d

 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 
u
s
e

fu
l,
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

, 
a
n
d
 h

o
w

 i
t 
w

o
u
ld

 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 w

o
rk

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

. 
 

 T
h

e
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
e
s
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

 t
h

a
t 
a

 h
ig

h
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n

 o
f 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n

ts
 f
e

lt
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 m

e
t 
th

e
ir
 n

e
e
d
s
, 
th

a
t 
th

e
y
 f
o
u
n
d
 a

ll 
o
f 
it
 u

s
e
fu

l 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 d

id
 n

o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
y
th

in
g
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 o

r 
c
h
a
n
g

in
g

. 
 A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 s
m

a
ll 

in
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

, 
s
u
g
g

e
s
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 m
a
d
e

 a
s
 t
o
 h

o
w

 c
o

u
rs

e
s
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d

. 
  W

h
e
n

 c
o
n

s
id

e
ri
n

g
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

, 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n

ts
 p

re
d
o

m
in

a
n
tl
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
tt
e
n
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
h
e
m

 w
i t
h
 b

e
tt
e
r 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
. 
T

h
e
y
 a

ls
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
it
 w

o
u

ld
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 w

o
u

ld
 s

h
a

re
 t
h

e
ir
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 w
it
h
 c

o
lle

a
g
u
e
s
. 

 F
o

r 
th

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
c
o

u
rs

e
s
 t
h

e
re

 w
a
s
 a

n
 8

8
%

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 r

a
te

, 
a
n
d
 i
t 
a
g
a
in

 h
it
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
a
rg

e
t;
 w

it
h
 9

5
%

 o
f 
re

s
p

o
n
s
e
s
 

in
d
ic

a
ti
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 a

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
fu

l 
e
x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e
. 
T

h
e
 q

u
a
lit

a
ti
v
e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 a

g
a
in

 s
h
o
w

e
d
 a

 s
im

ila
r 

p
a

tt
e
rn

, 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 t
re

n
d
s
 

b
e
in

g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

 

Page 103



5
.3

1
0
 

 
Id

e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 h

o
w

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
, 
m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 h
a

d
 r

e
s
u

lt
e
d

 f
ro

m
 a

tt
e

n
d

in
g

 t
h

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

is
 c

a
p
tu

re
d

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
re

e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f
o
llo

w
 u

p
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a

ir
e
s
 t
o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n

ts
 a

n
d

 f
ir
s
t 
lin

e
 m

a
n
a

g
e

rs
. 
C

o
m

m
o

n
 r

e
o
c
c
u
rr

in
g

 t
h

e
m

e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
; 
a
 b

e
tt

e
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
, 
u
p
d
a
te

d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
, 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d
 a

w
a
re

n
e

s
s
, 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g
e

 o
f 
p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
 a

n
d
 m

o
re

 c
o
n

fi
d
e
n
c
e

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 o
u
tp

u
ts

 w
ill

 
h

a
v
e

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 f
o

r 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
n
d
 t
im

e
ly

 r
e
s
p
o
n

s
e
s
 t
o
 c

o
n
c
e

rn
s
 o

r 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 n

e
e
d
. 

 
5
.4

 
 5
.4

1
 

  5
.4

2
 

     5
.4

3
 

    5
.4

4
 

        5
.4

5
 

   5
.4

6
 

    

L
e
s
s
o
n
s
 a

b
o
u

t 
P

re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 C

h
ild

 D
e
a
th

s
 (

C
D

O
P

) 
 U

n
d
e

r 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 i
n

 C
h

a
p

te
r 

7
 o

f 
W

o
rk

in
g

 T
o

g
e

th
e

r 
to

 S
a

fe
g

u
a
rd

in
g

 C
h

ild
re

n
, 
L

e
e

d
s
 h

a
s
 b

o
th

 a
 S

u
d

d
e

n
 U

n
e
x
p
e

c
te

d
 

D
e

a
th

 i
n

 C
h

ild
h

o
o
d

 (
S

U
D

IC
) 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
, 
a
n

d
 a

 C
h

ild
 D

e
a

th
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 P

a
n
e
l 
(C

D
O

P
) 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
T

h
e
 t
w

o
 a

re
 s

e
p
a

ra
te

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
, 
b
u
t 
a
re

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 l
in

k
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 C

h
ild

 D
e
a
th

 O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 P
a
n
e
l 
(C

D
O

P
) 

w
a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 f
ro

m
 1

s
t  A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0

8
 u

n
d
e
r 

g
u

id
a
n
c
e

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 i
n
 C

h
a
p
te

r 
7
 o

f 
W

o
rk

in
g
 T

o
g
e
th

e
r 

to
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 C
h
ild

re
n
 2

0
0
6
. 
T

h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
th

e
 C

D
O

P
, 
(a

s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
 B

o
a
rd

s
 R

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 2

0
0
6
) 

is
 t
o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 a
 

c
o

m
p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 a

n
d

 m
u

lt
id

is
c
ip

lin
a
ry

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
a

ll 
d

e
a

th
s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 n

o
rm

a
lly

 r
e
s
id

e
n
t 
in

 L
e
e
d

s
 a

g
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

1
8
 y

e
a
rs

, 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d
 b

e
tt

e
r 

h
o
w

 a
n
d
 w

h
y
 t
h
e
y
 d

ie
, 
a
n
d
 t
o
 u

s
e
 t
h
e
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 t
o
 t
a

k
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
o
th

e
r 

d
e
a
th

s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
, 
w

e
llb

e
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
 T

h
e
 S

U
D

IC
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
s
 e

a
rl
y
 n

o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 u

n
e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 d

e
a
th

 o
f 
a
 c

h
ild

, 
a
n
d
 a

 p
ro

m
p
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 o

f 
in

v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
, 
le

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 S

U
D

IC
 

P
a
e
d
ia

tr
ic

ia
n
. 
T

h
is

 m
a
y
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 w

it
h
 c

lin
ic

ia
n
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l,
 P

o
lic

e
, 
S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
rs

. 
S

o
m

e
ti
m

e
s
 a

 v
is

it
 t

o
 t
h
e
 p

la
c
e
 o

f 
d
e
a
th

 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
. 
A

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
s
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

 i
n

v
o

lv
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h

e
 c

h
ild

, 
to

 l
e
a
rn

 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
. 
A

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
n
to

 t
h
e

 c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
ild

’s
 d

e
a
th

 i
s
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 s

h
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t
h

e
 C

o
ro

n
e

r,
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

D
O

P
. 

 T
h
e
 C

D
O

P
 c

o
n
s
id

e
rs

 t
h
e
 d

e
a
th

 o
f 
e
a
c
h
 c

h
ild

, 
a
n
d

 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 a
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
p

ro
fo

rm
a

 r
e

g
a
rd

in
g

 i
ts

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 f
o

r 
e

a
c
h

 c
h

ild
. 
T

h
e
 p

ro
fo

rm
a
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 f
a
c
to

rs
 r

e
la

ti
n
g

 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

 a
n

d
 f
a

m
ily

, 
a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
; 

c
a
te

g
o
ri
z
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

a
u
s
e
 o

f 
d
e
a
th

; 
a
 j
u
d
g
m

e
n
t 
re

g
a

rd
in

g
 p

re
v
e
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
e
a
th

; 
le

a
rn

in
g

 p
o
in

ts
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
; 
im

m
e
d
ia

te
 f
o
llo

w
 u

p
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e

 f
a
m

ily
; 
a
n
d

 w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 c

a
s
e
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d

 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 C

h
a
ir
 

fo
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 S

e
ri
o
u

s
 C

a
s
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 
d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 p

a
s
t 
y
e
a
r,

 t
h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 C

D
O

P
 h

a
s
 p

ilo
te

d
 a

 W
e
s
t 
Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 f
o
rm

 t
o
 c

o
lle

c
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 
p
re

v
e
n

ta
b
le

 f
a
c
to

rs
 f
ro

m
 a

 p
u
b
lic

 h
e
a

lt
h
 p

e
rs

p
e
c
ti
v
e
. 
In

 L
e
e
d
s
, 
a
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 w

a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 h

o
ld

 t
w

o
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 P

a
n

e
ls

 –
 o

n
e

 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

th
e
 d

e
a
th

s
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
e
r 

b
a
b
ie

s
 w

h
o
 w

e
re

 n
e
v
e
r 

d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
d
 f
ro

m
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
(“

N
e
o
n
a
ta

l 
P

a
n
e
l”
),

 a
n
d

 a
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 p
a

n
e

l 
to

 c
o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e

 d
e
a

th
s
 o

f 
o
ld

e
r 

b
a

b
ie

s
 

a
n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 (

“O
ld

e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 P

a
n
e
l”
).

 T
h

is
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 h

a
s
 e

n
a
b
le

d
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h
t 
s
o
rt

 o
f 
e
x
p
e
rt

s
 t
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 e

a
c
h
 P

a
n
e
l,
 a

n
d
 t
o
 u

s
e
 t
h
e

ir
 e

x
p
e
rt

is
e
 m

o
s
t 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
o
s
e
 c

a
s
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
. 

 T
h

e
 C

h
a

ir
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ild

 D
e

a
th

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 P

a
n

e
l 
p
re

p
a
re

d
 a

n
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o

rt
 f
o
r 

th
e
 L

S
C

B
 o

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c

a
le

n
d
a
r 

y
e
a
r,

 i
n
 t
h
is

 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

 2
0

1
1

, 
a

n
d

 
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a

ti
o
n
s
, 
d
a
ta

 o
n

 c
a
s
e
s
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r,

 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 f
ro

m
 e

x
a
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 

c
a
s
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f

u
tu

re
. 
 

 T
h
e
 C

D
O

P
 p

a
n
e
l 
is

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 w

it
h
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
. 
It
 a

im
s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
o
s
e
 f
a
c
to

rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
a
 c

h
ild

’s
 l
if
e
, 
a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

h
ild

’s
 d

e
a
th

, 
w

h
ic

h
 

m
ig

h
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

m
e
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 m

o
d
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
s
im

ila
r 

d
e

a
th

s
 o

c
c
u
rr

in
g
 i
n
 t
h

e
 f
u
tu

re
. 
W

it
h
 t
h
is

 
in

 m
in

d
, 
th

e
 L

e
e
d
s
 C

D
O

P
 h

a
s
 m

a
d
e
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 
k
e
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e

 L
e
e
d
s
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
 B

o
a
rd

, 
b
u
ild

in
g
 u

p
o
n
 t
h
e
 

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
c
h
ild

 d
e
a
th

s
 a

c
q
u
ir
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
is

 a
n

d
 p

re
c
e
d

in
g
 y

e
a
rs

. 
B

o
th

 t
h
e
s
e
 n

e
w

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 a

n
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
re

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 
re

p
o

rt
. 

Page 104



 5
.4

7
 

     5
.4

8
 

   5
.4

9
 

           5
.4

1
0
 

             5
.4

1
1
 

  

 A
s
 i
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

, 
th

e
re

 r
e
m

a
in

 s
o
m

e
 p

e
rs

is
te

n
t 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 i
n
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 t
h
e
 C

D
O

P
, 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 b

a
c
k
lo

g
 o

f 
c
a

s
e

s
. 

A
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1

2
, 
th

e
re

 w
e
re

 9
4
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 c

a
s
e
s
 a

w
a
it
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 b
a

c
k
lo

g
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 d

e
la

y
s
 i
n

 r
e
c
e

iv
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 R

e
p
o

rt
 

F
o

rm
s
 f
ro

m
 v

a
ri
o

u
s
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
v
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it
. 
M

o
s
t 
re

c
e
n
tl
y
, 
a
n
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
a
c
h
e
d
 w

it
h
 L

e
e
d

s
 T

e
a
c
h

in
g

 
H

o
s
p
it
a
ls

 N
H

S
 T

ru
s
t,
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
v
ie

s
t 
d
e
m

a
n
d
 f
a
lls

, 
to

 u
ti
liz

e
 d

is
c
h
a
rg

e
 l
e
tt
e
rs

 a
s
 a

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
o
u
rc

e
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 C

D
O

P
. 
It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 

th
a
t 
th

is
 w

ill
 a

lle
v
ia

te
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 t
h
e
 d

e
la

y
s
 i
n

 c
o
m

p
ili

n
g
 t
h
e
 p

a
n
e
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 
 

 T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 u

n
d
e
rt

o
o
k
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 e

a
rl

y
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
, 
m

a
k
in

g
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 L

e
e
d
s
 C

D
O

P
, 

d
ra

w
in

g
 o

n
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 u

s
e
d
 i
n
 B

ir
m

in
g
h
a
m

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
re

a
s
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 
w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 d

e
la

y
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 u
n
ti
l 
a
ft

e
r 

th
e
 

p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 v

e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
W

o
rk

in
g
 T

o
g
e

th
e
r,

 d
u

e
 i
n
 S

p
ri
n

g
/S

u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1

2
, 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 t
a

k
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n

t 
o
f 
n
e
w

 g
u

id
a
n
c
e
. 
 

 
N

o
ti

fi
c
a
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 C
D

O
P

 A
c
ti

v
it

y
 (

A
p

ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 t

o
 3

0
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
) 

Y
e
a
r 

 
N

o
ti

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 C

D
O

P
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a

to
r 

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
a
s
e
s
 R

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 b
y
 C

D
O

P
 

 

 N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

C
a
s
e
s
 O

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

C
D

O
P

 R
e

v
ie

w
 

 
N

e
o

n
a

ta
l 

O
ld

e
r

c
h

il
d

 
T

o
ta

l 
N

e
o

n
a

ta
l 

O
ld

e
r 

c
h

il
d

 
T

o
ta

l 
N

e
o

n
a

ta
l 

O
ld

e
r 

c
h

il
d

 
T

o
ta

l 

2
0

0
8
-9

 
3

4
 

3
2

 
6

6
 

3
4

 
3

0
 

6
4

 
0

 
2

 
2

 
2

0
0

9
-1

0
 

3
0

 
4

1
 

7
1

 
2

8
 

2
9

 
5

7
 

2
 

1
2

 
1

4
 

2
0

1
0
-1

1
 

2
6

 
3

3
 

5
9

 
1

7
 

1
3

 
3

0
 

9
 

2
0

 
2

9
 

2
0

1
1
-1

2
 

2
5

 
2

9
 

5
4

 
2

 
3

 
5

 
2

3
 

2
6

 
4

9
 

 
 A

s
 i
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

, 
th

e
 P

a
n
e
l 
h
a
s
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 s

e
v
e
ra

l 
is

s
u
e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
c
a
s
e
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
c
o
n
te

x
t 
o
f 
th

e
 P

a
n
e
l’s

 f
in

d
in

g
s
. 
S

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

ro
s
e
 i
n
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n

 o
n
e
 c

a
s
e
, 
a
n
d
 s

o
m

e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 h

ig
h

lig
h
te

d
 i
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 b

u
t 
a

re
 

a
g

a
in

 p
ro

m
in

e
n

t 
a

m
o

n
g

 c
a
s
e
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r.
 T

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

e
re

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

e
ri
o
d

 c
o
v
e
re

d
 b

y
 t
h
is

 r
e
p
o

rt
: 
 

"
 T

h
e
 r

is
k
s
 o

f 
s
u
d
d
e
n
 u

n
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
, 
u
n
e
x
p
la

in
e
d

 d
e
a
th

 a
m

o
n

g
 b

a
b
ie

s
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h

 c
o
-s

le
e

p
in

g
, 
s
le

e
p

in
g

 o
n

 s
o

fa
s
, 
in

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 

b
e
d
d
in

g
, 
 a

n
d
 p

a
re

n
ta

l 
s
m

o
k
in

g
, 
a
lc

o
h
o

l 
a
n
d
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 u

s
e

. 
 

"
 C

o
n
s
a

n
g

u
in

it
y
 (

c
o

u
s
in

 m
a

rr
ia

g
e
) 

a
s
 a

 r
is

k
 f

a
c
to

r 
fo

r 
s
e
ri
o
u

s
 g

e
n
e
ti
c
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
. 
 

"
 T

h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
v
e
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

lo
th

in
g
 i
n
 r

o
a
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 a
c
c
id

e
n
ts

. 
 

"
 T

h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 
c
h
ic

k
e
n
 p

o
x
 (

V
a
ri
c
e
lla

 z
o
s
te

r)
 i
n
 2

 d
e
a

th
s
, 
in

 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
a
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
o
lic

y
 n

o
t 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 r

o
u
ti
n
e
 c

h
ild

h
o
o
d
 i
m

m
u
n
iz

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

c
h
ic

k
e
n
 p

o
x
. 
 

"
 T

h
e

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
 f
o

r 
o

b
ta

in
in

g
 t
im

e
ly

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 f
ro

m
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 f
o
r 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 w

it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h

 v
e
ry

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e

s
. 
 

"
 T

h
e
 h

ig
h
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 o
f 
c
a
re

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 L

e
e
d
s
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h

 c
o

m
p
le

x
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
lif

e
, 
fr

o
m

 a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
. 
 

"
 T

h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
ro

u
ti
n
e
 c

h
ild

h
o

o
d

 i
m

m
u

n
iz

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 m

a
d

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t
o

 c
h

ild
re

n
 w

h
o

 m
o
v
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 U

K
 f
ro

m
 o

th
e
r 

c
o

u
n

tr
ie

s
. 
 

 D
e
ta

ile
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 m

a
d
e

 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 w

h
ic

h
 w

h
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d
 w

ill
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u

te
 t
o
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 b
e
in

g
 s

a
fe

r 
in

 t
h

e
 

fu
tu

re
. 
(T

h
e

 f
u
ll 

C
D

O
P

 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
1
1
 i
s
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 a

s
 A

p
p
e

n
d

ix
 5

) 

Page 105



5
.5

 
 5
.5

1
 

   5
.5

2
 

    5
.5

3
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 I
s
s
u
e
s
/G

ro
u
p
s
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p

le
. 

D
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
 L

S
C

B
 h

a
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d

 i
ts

 r
o
le

 i
n
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 a
n
d
 c

o
o
rd

in
a

ti
n
g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 w
o
rk

 
w

it
h
 t
h
o
s
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 s
e
e
n
 a

s
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 n

e
e
d
 o

f 
th

e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ty

, 
th

o
s
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 ‘
fr

o
n
t 

d
o

o
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e

s
’ 
(r

e
q
u

e
s
ts

 f
o

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e

, 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
e
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o
n

s
);

 t
h
o
s
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 a
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
; 
a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 a

re
 ‘
L
o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r’
. 

 T
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

th
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 m

is
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

r 
s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 c
h
ild

 s
e
x
u
a
l 
e
x
p
lo

it
a
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 L

S
C

B
 &

 T
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 
S

o
c
ie

ty
 h

e
ld

 a
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 c

it
y
-w

id
e
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
n

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
2

 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
C

&
Y

P
 w

h
o
 g

o
 m

is
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

re
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
s
e
x
u
a
l 
e
x
p
lo

it
a
ti
o
n

 
a

n
d
 t
o
 l
a
u

n
c
h
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
. 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 b

ri
e
fi
n
g

 s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 h

e
ld

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
s
ta

ff
 f
ro

m
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
re

 
c
le

a
r 

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
ir
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

. 
 W

o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
 g

o
in

g
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 g

o
o

d
 s

o
u
n

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
. 
W

o
rk

 i
s
 a

ls
o

 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 a

ro
u
n
d

 d
o

m
e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
, 
d
ru

g
s
 a

n
d
 a

lc
o
h
o
l,
 a

n
d
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
ir
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 p

a
re

n
ti
n

g
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
. 

T
h

e
 L

S
C

B
 i
s
 m

in
d
fu

l 
o
f 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

ro
a
d
e
n
 t
h
is

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 o

th
e
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
 a

s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
s
 m

a
d
e

 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
ta

rg
e
t 
g
ro

u
p
s
. 

  
 5
.6

 
 5
.6

1
 

         5
.6

2
 

          

 U
n
d
e

rt
a
k
in

g
 S

e
ri
o
u
s
 C

a
s
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
ix

 S
C

R
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
re

e
 L

L
L
R

 s
e
ts

 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n

s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 
 

A
 c

o
m

p
o
s
it
e
 d

a
ta

b
a
s
e
 h

e
ld

 b
y
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 T
e
a
m

 c
o
n
ta

in
s
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
e
v
id

e
n

c
e
d
 S

C
R

/L
L

L
R

 a
c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
th

re
e
 

y
e
a
rs

. 
 

  
. 

G
o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 o

n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
ll 

s
ix

 S
C

R
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
. 
O

n
e
 i
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e

a
rl
y
 s

ta
g
e
s
 o

f 
im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

. 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

1
0
 a

c
ti
o
n

s
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
e
d

, 
4
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 r

e
la

te
 t
o
 S

C
R

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 p
ri
o
r 

to
 2

0
1

1
. 
T

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 d
u

e
 t
o

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

. 
 

. 
A

ll 
o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 ‘
h
is

to
ri
c
a
l’ 

o
u

t 
o
f 
a
re

a
 S

C
R

s
 i
n
v
o
lv

in
g
 L

e
e
d
s
 S

C
B

 o
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n

c
ie

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d
. 
 

. 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 i
s
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 o

n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ti
n

g
 S

C
R

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 f
ro

m
 3

 S
C

R
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 o

th
e
r 

a
re

a
 t
h
a
t 
L
e
e
d
s
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

te
d
 t
o
. 
 

. 
1
5
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 t
h
re

e
 L

L
L
R

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
e
d

 a
n
d
 m

o
n

it
o
re

d
. 
 

 
T

h
e
 L

S
C

B
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 &

 A
u
d
it
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 4

 s
tr

a
n
d

s
 w

h
ic

h
 t

e
s
t 
o
u
t 
th

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

C
&

Y
P

 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

fr
o
m

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 S

C
R

s
 a

n
d
 L

L
L
R

s
: 
 

 
 

S
1

)T
o

 q
u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
re

 a
n
d
 a

u
d
it
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p
le

 s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n

s
. 
 

 
S

2
) 

T
o
 a

u
d
it
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t
im

e
s
c
a

le
s
 f
o
r 

c
a
lli

n
g
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
, 
re

v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
re

 g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g
 

re
a
s
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
d
e

la
y
. 
 

 
(S

4
) 

T
o
 a

u
d
it
 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

p
o
lic

y
 o

n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 o

f 
te

e
n
a
g
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 
w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 T

e
e
n
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 P

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 P

a
th

w
a
y
. 

 
 

(S
5
) 

T
o
 a

u
d
it
 (

a
) 

th
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
re

v
is

e
d
 c

a
re

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
p
o

lic
ie

s
 i
n

 S
p

e
c
ia

l 
In

c
lu

s
io

n
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 C
e

n
tr

e
s
 (

S
IL

C
s
) 

a
n

d
 (

b
) 

w
h
e
n

 b
ro

u
g
h
t 
to

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u

th
o
ri
ty

’s
 a

tt
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
th

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 w

h
e
re

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
a
d

v
o

c
a

te
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 w
h
e
n

 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
re

 m
a
d
e

 b
y
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
. 
 

Page 106



 5
.6

3
 

  

 
T

h
e
 L

S
C

B
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

u
b
 G

ro
u
p
, 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
it
s
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
, 
in

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
2
, 
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 

th
e
 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
e
m

e
rg

in
g
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 S

C
R

s
 a

n
d
 L

L
L
R

s
. 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
ra

l 
c
h
a

n
g
e
s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
. 
 

  
5
.7

 
 5
.7

1
 

   5
.7

2
 

  5
.7

3
 

  5
.7

4
 

   5
.7

5
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 R

a
is

in
g
 A

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 

 T
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 h

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 C

o
m

m
u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 F

in
is

h
 g

ro
u
p
 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 l
e
a
d
 o

n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 p

ro
a

c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
a
c
ti
v
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 s

y
s
te

m
s
, 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
, 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n

t.
 T

h
e
 L

S
C

B
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

 C
o
m

m
u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

n
 2

2
.0

6
.1

2
.w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 s

te
e
r 

h
o
w

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 c

a
n
 b

e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 a
ll 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

’s
 w

o
rk

. 
 

 In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it
 w

ill
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 
k
e
y
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 w
id

e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e

 e
n
g

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e
 B

o
a
rd

. 
 

 R
e
d
e

s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 b

ra
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
  
w

o
rk

 t
o
 r

e
d
e

s
ig

n
 t
h

e
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
.T

h
is

 w
ill

 s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
’s

 a
b
ili

ty
 t
o
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

. 
 T

h
e
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
la

y
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 h
a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
. 
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n

s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 a
re

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 
d
e
te

rm
in

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

ta
rt

 a
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 e

a
rl
y
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

la
y
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
re

 p
ro

p
e
rl
y
 i
n
d
u

c
te

d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

 
a
n
d
 c

a
n
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 v

a
lu

a
b
le

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 e

n
v
is

a
g
e
d
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
v
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n
t 
w

a
y
s
 o

f 
o
b
ta

in
in

g
 t
h
e
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 a
s
s
is

t 
th

e
 B

o
a

rd
 i
n

 
it
s
 w

o
rk

. 
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 f
ir
m

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 a
ll 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t

o
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

, 
th

e
 d

e
la

y
 h

a
s
 c

e
n
tr

e
d
 o

n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

 d
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 w

it
h

 s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
k
ill

s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
is

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 a

t 
a
 t
im

e
 o

f 
re

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
. 

A
 h

ig
h
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 g

iv
e
n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 B
o

a
rd

 t
o

 r
e
s
o
lv

in
g

 t
h

e
s
e

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e

a
rl
y
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
. 

5
.8

 
 5
.8

1
 

  5
.8

2
 

       

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p

le
 i
n
 S

e
c
u
re

 S
e
tt

in
g
s
 

 A
n

 i
n

d
e

p
e
n

d
e

n
t 
re

v
ie

w
 w

a
s
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e

n
 i
n

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

 o
n
 t

h
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 
re

s
tr

a
in

t 
in

 t
h
e
 s

e
c
u
re

 e
s
ta

te
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
. 
 L

e
e

d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a
s
 

tw
o
 j
u
v
e
n
ile

 s
e
c
u
re

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

ts
 w

it
h
in

 i
ts

 j
u
ri
s
d
ic

ti
o
n
 –

 H
M

Y
O

I 
W

e
th

e
rb

y
 a

n
d
 E

a
s
t 
M

o
o
r 

S
e
c
u
re

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 H
o

m
e

 (
S

C
H

).
  
 

 T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
R

e
s
tr

a
in

t 
in

 s
e
c
u
re

 S
e
tt
in

g
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 b

o
th

 E
a
s
t 
M

o
o
r 

S
e
c
u
re

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
 

a
n

d
 H

M
 Y

O
I 
W

e
th

e
rb

y
. 
N

e
v
e

rt
h

e
le

s
s
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
a
re

a
s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
w

e
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

 
1
. 

T
h
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 t
h
e
 t
w

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

ts
 i
n
 r

e
c
o
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g

 r
e
s
tr

a
in

t 
in

c
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d

a
ta

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o
 t
h

e
 L

S
C

B
 m

a
k
e
s
 i
t 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 a

n
y
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 –
 w

e
 w

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t
o

 s
e
e
 a

 m
o
re

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

is
e
d
 f
o
rm

 o
f 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
. 

2
. 

T
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 w

o
u
ld

 w
e
lc

o
m

e
 m

o
re

 c
o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 o
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
n

th
 b

y
 m

o
n

th
 r

e
s
tr

a
in

t 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
re

 a
re

 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
e
x
p
la

n
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 –
 f
o

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 c
h

ild
re

n
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d
a
te

d
, 
is

s
u
e
s
 a

ro
u

n
d
 g

a
n
g
s
 e

tc
. 
–
 a

n
d
 w

h
a
t 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 t
a
k
e
 t
o
 c

o
u
n

te
r 

th
e
 e

ff
e
c
ts

 o
f 
th

e
s
e
. 
 

Page 107



      5
.8

3
 

  

3
. 

W
h
ile

 b
o

th
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 p
ro

v
id

e
 d

a
ta

 o
n
 i
n
ju

ri
e
s
 t
o
 c

h
ild

re
n
, 
w

e
 a

re
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 c

la
s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 d

if
fe

re
n
t

in
 e

a
c
h

 s
e
tt
in

g
. 

4
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
d
a
ta

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 L

S
C

B
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
t 
o
n
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 
in

a
p
p

ro
p
ri

a
te

 u
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
tr

a
in

t,
 o

r 
u
s
e
 o

f 
u
n
a
u
th

o
ri
s
e

d
 (

a
n
d

 
u
n

tr
a
in

e
d
) 

m
e
th

o
d
s
. 
 

5
. 

D
e

ta
ils

 o
f 
th

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
te

c
h
n

iq
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 p
o

s
it
io

n
s
 u

s
e

d
 d

u
ri
n
g

 r
e
s
tr

a
in

t 
in

c
id

e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
to

 a
llo

w
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 t
o
 m

a
k
e

 a
n
y
 j
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 r

is
k
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
’ 

 T
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e

d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
a
n
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
re

s
tr

a
in

t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
. 

 
1
. 

L
e
e
d
s
 L

S
C

B
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 E

a
s
t 
M

o
o
r 

a
n
d
 H

M
 Y

O
I 
W

e
th

e
rb

y
 t
o

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 m

o
re

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 g

ro
u
n

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

L
S

C
B

. 
It
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
b
o
th

 W
e
th

e
rb

y
 a

n
d
 E

a
s
t 
M

o
o
r 

h
a

v
e
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 t
h
e
ir
 w

ill
in

g
n
e
s
s
 t
o
 c

o
o
p
e
ra

te
 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 a

lr
e
a
d

y
 p

u
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 s
u
g
g
e

s
ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

a
ta

 t
h
a
t 
w

o
u
ld

 m
e
e
t 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 n

e
e
d

s
. 

2
. 

L
e
e
d
s
 L

S
C

B
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 b

o
th

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 f
in

d
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 
s
h
a
ri

n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 m

o
n
th

 b
y
 m

o
n
th

 r
e
s
tr

a
in

t 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d

 w
h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
re

 
a
re

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
e
x
p
la

n
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 a
n
d
 w

h
a
t 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 t
a
k
e
 t
o
 c

o
u
n
te

r 
th

e
 e

ff
e
c
ts

 o
f 
th

e
s
e
 

3
. 

T
a
k
in

g
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
a
n
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 r

e
c
o
rd

in
g
 i
n
 Y

O
Is

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 r
e
s
tr

a
in

t 
s
y
s
te

m
, 
w

o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 w

it
h
 b

o
th

 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 m
o

re
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 c

la
s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

in
ju

ri
e

s
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
re

s
tr

a
in

t.
 

4
. 

L
e

e
d
s
 L

S
C

B
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 b
o

th
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 t
o

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
d
a
ta

 i
s
 s

h
a
re

d
 o

n
 i
n
a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 u
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
tr

a
in

t,
 o

r 
u
s
e
 o

f 
u
n

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 (

a
n
d
 

u
n

tr
a

in
e

d
) 

m
e

th
o

d
s
. 

5
. 

L
e
e
d
s
 L

S
C

B
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 b

o
th

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 f
o
r 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 t
h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

  
5
.9

 
 5
.9

1
 

  5
.9

2
 

 

T
h
e
 L

ic
e
n
s
in

g
 A

c
t 
2
0
0
3
 

 A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 L

ic
e
n
s
in

g
 A

c
t 
2
0
0
3
 a

ll 
lic

e
n
s
in

g
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
T

h
e

 L
S

C
B

 i
s
 s

p
e

c
if
ie

d
 a

s
 a

 
“R

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

le
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

” 
in

 m
a
tt
e
rs

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 f
ro

m
 h

a
rm

. 
 F

o
llo

w
in

g
 l
ia

is
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 L

e
e

d
s
 L

ic
e

n
s
in

g
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

r 
L
e
e

d
s
, 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 f
o

c
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
h
e

 
a
p
p
lic

a
n
t 
d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g

 s
c
h
e
d
u
le

 h
o

w
 t
h

e
y
 i
n
te

n
d

 t
o
 p

ro
te

c
t 
c
h
ild

re
n
 f
ro

m
 h

a
rm

. 
 A

s
 a

 r
e
s
p
o
n

s
ib

le
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
h

e
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 
C

h
ild

re
n
 B

o
a
rd

 c
a
n
 m

a
k
e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

ic
e
n
s
in

g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o

 a
n
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
ra

is
e
s
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
. 
T

h
e

 L
S

C
B

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

s
, 
o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
, 
2
0
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 p

e
r 

m
o
n
th

. 
 

6
.0

 
 6
.0

1
 

  6
.0

2
 

    

S
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 
A

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

B
u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 g

o
o
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

s
h
ip

 b
e
in

g
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 &

 C
T

B
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 L

S
C

B
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
s
a

fe
g
u

a
rd

in
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
 w

ill
 h

o
ld

 t
h

e
 C

T
B

 t
o

 a
c
c
o
u

n
t 

fo
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 a

n
d
 i
d
e
n

ti
fy

 n
e

w
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 f
o

r 
2
0

1
2
/1

3
. 

 T
h
e
 C

T
B

 h
a

s
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 p

o
s
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 (
J
u
ly

 2
0
1
1
) 

to
 ‘
re

b
a
la

n
c
e
 t
h
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

 s
y
s
te

m
’ 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

C
&

Y
P

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 t
h
e
 r

ig
h
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

t 
th

e
 r

ig
h

t 
ti
m

e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 C

Y
P

P
 2

0
1
1
-1

5
; 

c
o
n
fi
rm

in
g
 a

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 o
f 
‘k

e
e
p
in

g
 C

&
Y

P
 s

a
fe

 f
ro

m
 h

a
rm

’ 
a
n
d
 

in
it
ia

ti
n
g
 a

n
 ‘
o
b
s
e
s
s
io

n
’ 
o
n
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
&

Y
P

 w
h
o
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 t
o
 b

e
 ‘
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e

r.
’ 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 a

 s
e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
c
e
n
tr

a
l 

c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 ‘
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

 s
y
s
te

m
’ 
(e

.g
. 
F

ro
n

t 
D

o
o
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
e

 t
o

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
o

 C
S

W
S

; 
C

A
F

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
; 
th

e
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

P
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 s

y
s
te

m
) 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d

 i
n
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 
p
la

n
n
e

d
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 i
n

 s
a

fe
g
u

a
rd

in
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

2
/1

3
. 

Page 108



 6
.0

3
 

    6
.0

4
 

   6
.0

5
 

  6
.0

6
 

 

L
S

C
B

 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 a

n
d
 e

x
p

a
n

d
e

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
1

/1
2

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 r
e
g
u

la
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
ri
e

fi
n
g

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 e

m
e
rg

in
g
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 t
h
e
m

e
s
. 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
n

 
o
v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 c
a
n
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

C
&

Y
P

 e
v
a
lu

a
te

d
. 
L
in

k
s
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 &

 E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
ta

s
k
 g

ro
u
p
 w

ill
 e

n
a
b

le
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 t
o
 b

e
 m

o
re

 w
id

e
ly

 d
is

s
e
m

in
a
te

d
.

 T
h
e
 g

ra
d
u
a
l 
im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

 o
f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
S

y
s
te

m
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u

t 
2
0

1
1
/1

2
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
is

 f
o
r 

a
 m

o
re

 s
o
p

h
is

ti
c
a
te

d
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
re

a
c
h
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
1

/1
2
 a

b
o
u
t 
h
o
w

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
, 
c
o
lla

te
d
 a

n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
d
 w

ill
 

fa
c
ili

ta
te

 m
o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 r

o
b
u
s
t 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 t
o
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
. 

 T
h
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 t
w

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 L
e
e
d

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

n
n
u

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
re

s
tr

a
in

t 
h
a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

w
o
rk

in
g
 

g
ro

u
p
 t
o
 p

o
o
l 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 t

o
 t
h
is

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
C

&
Y

P
. 

 P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
ri
o

ri
ty

 (
4
) 

‘E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
’ 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 a

s
 a

 ‘
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

’ 
fo

r 
2
0
1
2
/1

3
; 
to

 b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 
T

h
e
 L

S
C

B
 B

U
 w

ill
 b

e
 f
u
lly

 s
ta

ff
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 f
ro

m
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
2

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 e

n
a

b
le

 
m

o
re

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o
 s

u
b
, 
ta

s
k
 a

n
d
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
. 
 

  
7
.0

 
 7
.1

 
    7
.1

1
 

              

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 T
ru

s
t 
B

o
a
rd

 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r’
s
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 
 T

h
e
 C

T
B

 a
c
c
e
p
te

d
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

T
B

 o
n
 7

th
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
1

 a
n

d
 a

s
k
e

d
 f
o

r 
u

p
d

a
te

s
 o

n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 r

e
 t
h

e
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 A
t 
th

e
 S

e
p
t 
C

T
B

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
t 
w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 c

lu
s
te

r 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 n
e
e
d
e
d

 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 C

T
B

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

L
S

C
B

 r
e
p
o

rt
in

g
 t
o
 o

n
e
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

o
n
 k

e
y
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
. 
It

 w
a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
u
b
 g

ro
u
p
s
 o

f 
b
o
th

 b
o
d
ie

s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 l
in

k
 u

p
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
is

 
ta

k
e
s
 p

la
c
e

. 
 

 S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e
d
, 
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 m

a
d
e

 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

T
B

 a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

T
B

 O
b
s
e
s
s
io

n
 (

o
n
e
 o

f 
th

re
e
) 

to
 ‘
R

e
d
u
c
e
 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 t
o
 b

e
 L

o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e

r 
(h

e
lp

 c
h
ild

re
n
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 s

a
fe

 a
n

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

iv
e
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
).

 
 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

S
to

ry
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 D

a
ta

 
 

 
 

1
) 

R
e
b
a
la

n
c
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
u
m

 o
f 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 

a
n
d
 i
n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 m
a
n
n
e
r.

  
T

o
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
: 

 
C

o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

T
B

 o
v
e
rs

e
e
in

g
 t
h
e
 

L
A

C
 ‘
o

b
s
e
s
s
io

n
’ 

 

 
 

 

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
d
 m

u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

t 
lo

c
a
lit

y
 l
e
v
e
ls

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 r
e
c
e

iv
e

 t
h

e
 r

ig
h

t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

t 
th

e
 r

ig
h
t 
ti
m

e
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

C
o
m

m
o
n
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 

 
R

e
d
u

c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
C

A
F

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

 
P

la
te

a
u
 t
h
e
n
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 n

o
. 
o
f 
C

P
 

P
la

n
s
 

 
In

tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 ‘
re

s
to

ra
ti
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
’ 

 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
lu

s
te

r 
w

o
rk

in
g
 

 
R

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 C

S
W

S
 

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
C

S
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

Page 109



                                        

(C
A

F
) 

is
 u

s
e
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

 
a

 “
te

a
m

 a
ro

u
n

d
 t
h

e
 c

h
ild

” 
a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

. 
(e

g
 F

G
C

s
) 

to
 u

n
d

e
rp

in
 a

ll 
p
ro

c
e

s
s
e
s
 

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
h
a

n
d

b
o

o
k
 

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
E

a
rl
y
 S

ta
rt

 t
e
a
m

s
 

im
p
le

m
e
n

te
d
 i
n
 o

n
e
 c

lu
s
te

r.
 

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 r

e
-l
a
u
n
c
h
 o

f 
C

A
F

 

 
In

tr
o
 ‘
s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
’ 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

to
 C

P
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 

 
 

 

 
A

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

a
tt

e
rn

 o
f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 
a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 u

s
e
d

 t
o

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t
h
a
t 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g

 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
re

 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
h
a
rm

. 
 

 
S

ta
ti
c
 n

o
. 
o
f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
o
 C

S
W

S
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 –

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

 
D

 T
h

o
rp

e
 u

p
d
a

te
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
p

a
tt
e

rn
s
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 a
n

d
 s

u
b
s
e
q

u
e
n

t 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 
m

a
k
in

g
 

 
R

e
-d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
C

S
W

S
 d

u
ty

 a
n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 

te
a
m

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 f
ro

m
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
. 

 
 

 

 
R

e
d
u

c
in

g
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 “
lo

o
k
e
d

 
a
ft
e
r”

. 

 
N

o
. 
o
f 
L
A

C
 s

ta
b
ili

s
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

(1
.8

%
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 a

t 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
, 

s
u

b
s
e
q

u
e
n

tl
y
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 i
n

 1
s
t  2

 m
o
n
th

s
 

1
2

/1
3

) 

 
C

Y
P

P
 L

A
C

 o
b
s
e
s
s
io

n
 2

0
1
1
-1

5
 

 
In

te
g
ra

te
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 L

A
C

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
. 

 
L
e
g
a
l 
ri
n
g
 f
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
ti
m

e
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
re

v
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
a
re

 o
rd

e
rs

  
re

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 p

a
re

n
ts

. 
 

 
 

2
) 

E
n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
re

 a
b
le

 t
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 a

n
d
/o

r 
p
ro

v
id

e
 i
n
p
u
t 
in

 a
 t
im

e
ly

 m
a
n
n
e
r 

to
 I
n
it
ia

l 
C

h
ild

 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 C
o
n

fe
re

n
c
e
s
 e

n
a

b
lin

g
 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 b
e

 
h
e
ld

 w
it
h
in

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
 l
a
id

 d
o
w

n
 i
n
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
. 

 
In

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 I
C

P
C

s
 

 
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 R

C
P

C
s
 

 
L
S

C
B

 A
u
d
it
 (

S
2
) 

w
ill

 e
x
a
m

in
e
 t
h
is

 i
n
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

 
 

 
3

) 
C

o
n

s
id

e
r 

h
o

w
 t
h

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 m
a

d
e

 t
o

 d
a

te
 a

re
 s

u
s
ta

in
e

d
 a

n
d

 
b
u
ilt

 u
p
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 
o
f 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 

d
e
m

a
n
d
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
‘t
u
rn

in
g

 t
h
e
 c

u
rv

e
’ 
in

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

k
e

y
 c

o
m

p
o

n
e
n

ts
 o

f 
s
a

fe
g
u
a

rd
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
: 

 
N

o
. 
C

P
 P

la
n
s
 

 
T

im
e

lin
e
s
s
 I
C

P
C

s
 

 
S

ta
b
ili

s
a
ti
o
n
 L

A
C

 n
u
m

b
e
rs

 

L
S

C
B

 A
n
n
u
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

 A
n
a
ly

s
is

: 

 
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
k
e
y
 A

re
a
s
 F

o
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 

 
2
0
1
2
/1

3
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 

in
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

C
&

Y
P

 
 

 
 

4
) 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
re

 a
b
le

 t
o
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 h
o
w

 t
h
e
y
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
ir
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

 
In

it
ia

ti
o
n
 L

S
C

B
 Q

A
 &

 A
u
d
it
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

 
S

(1
1
) 

a
u
d
it
 

 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 p

a
c
e
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Page 110



               

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
, 
th

ro
u
g
h
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d

 b
y
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 

m
u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 a

u
d
it
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 n

e
t 
fo

r 
S

(1
1
) 

a
u
d

it
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

 
T

o
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 
m

o
re

 m
e
ta

 a
n
a
ly

s
e
s
 f
ro

m
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d

 a
u

d
it
s
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

      

 
 

5
) 

P
re

p
a
re

 t
o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

im
p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 ‘
M

u
n
ro

 R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

’ 

 
O

n
g

o
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

ts
 p

la
n

n
e
d

 w
it
h

in
 

th
e
 ‘
c
o
n
te

x
t 
o
f 
‘M

u
n
ro

. 

 
A

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
C

W
D

C
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 

C
S

W
S

/L
S

C
B

 t
o
 p

re
p
a
re

 f
o
r 

M
u
n
ro

 
im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n
. 
 

 
Is

s
u

in
g

 o
f 
re

v
is

e
d

 W
o

rk
in

g
 T

o
g

e
th

e
r 

fo
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
2
 

 
P

ilo
t 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 t
ri
a
lli

n
g
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

c
h

a
n

g
e
s
. 

 
W

o
rk

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o
n

 1
-4

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
it
h
 M

u
n
ro

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 

 
L
S

C
B

 P
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
r 

c
o
n
fe

re
n

c
e
 h

e
ld

 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
2
 

 
 

 
 

 8
.0

 
 8
.0

1
 

            

C
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

T
B

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
  

 A
ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
is

 e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
n
e
w

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 C

T
B

 (
a
c
c
e
p
te

d
 o

n
 9

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
2
) 

 
T

o
 e

m
b

e
d

 c
h
a

n
g

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

 b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 
a
 m

o
re

 ‘
b
a
la

n
c
e
d
’ 
s
y
s
te

m
 

(t
o
w

a
rd

s
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o
n

,)
 w

it
h
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
  

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
h
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
o
 C

&
Y

P
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
y
s
te

m
 (

C
&

Y
P

 s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 C
P

 P
la

n
s
 a

n
d
 L

A
C

) 
  

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
ri
s
k
 i
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 i
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 M

u
n
ro

 R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
, 
s
o

 t
h
a
t 

c
h
ild

re
n

’s
 s

a
fe

ty
 i
s
 n

o
t 
je

o
p
a
rd

is
e
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
. 

  
T

o
 l
e
a
d
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h
in

 p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 ‘
T

h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

’ 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
in

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
2
. 
 

  
T

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 t
o
 s

a
fe

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

, 
a
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 h

o
w

 H
e
a
lt
h

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

re
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
, 
a
re

 k
e
p
t 

u
n

d
e

r 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
. 
 

  
T

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 w

it
h

 a
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 r

e
p
o

rt
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 a

d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 m

a
d
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 s

e
t.

 

Page 111



9
.0

 
                                      

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 m

a
d
e

 i
n
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r’
s
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o

rt

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

S
to

ry
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 D

a
ta

 
 

 
 

1
) 

T
o
 c

o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

 a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

th
e
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
h

a
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d
e
 i
n

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
, 
e
n
g
a
g
in

g
 

w
it
h

 b
o

th
 t
h

e
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 

th
e
 w

id
e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
, 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
. 

 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 t
o
 C

T
B

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
1
 (

in
c
l.
 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
) 

 
U

p
d
a

te
s
 o

n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
o
 C

T
B

 
p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 L

S
C

B
 C

h
a
ir
 

 
P

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
b
o
d
ie

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
  

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 r

e
p
o

rt
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 b

y
 

L
S

C
B

 w
it
h
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
fo

c
u
s
 o

n
 2

 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
 (

C
P

 P
la

n
s
, 
L
A

C
) 

  
S

lo
w

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 C

&
Y

P
 v

o
ic

e
 

a
n
d
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

  
D

e
la

y
 i
n
 a

p
p
o
in

ti
n
g
 l
a
y
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 
   

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 L

S
C

B
 p

ro
fi
le

. 
 C

T
B

 r
e
s
p
o
n

s
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
in

g
 C

Y
P

P
 (

m
o
re

 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 f
o

r 
2
0
1
2
/1

3
.)

 
  In

c
re

a
s
in

g
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
d

a
ta

 
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

o
p
h
is

ti
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
n
a
ly

s
e
s
. 

   C
a
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

2
) 

T
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 p
la

n
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 s

e
t.
 

 

 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 m

a
d
e
 o

n
 9

8
%

 o
f 
ta

s
k
s
 

 
S

lip
p
a
g
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
 i
n
 3

7
%

 
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 &
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
th

e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
, 
th

e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

 o
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
 w

ri
te

 o
f 
W

o
rk

in
g
 

T
o

g
e

th
e
r 

in
 2

0
1

2
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

le
a
rn

in
g

 a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.
 

3
) 

T
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
h
a
t 
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
s
 

c
a

m
p
a

ig
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 r

a
is

in
g

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 o

f 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 t
a
s
k
 g

ro
u

p
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
. 

 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
 b

y
 

L
S

C
B

 2
2
.0

6
.1

2
. 

C
a

m
p
a

ig
n
s
 p

la
n

n
e
d

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

2
/1

3
 i
n
c
l.
 r

a
is

in
g

 
a

w
a
re

n
e

s
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
C

S
E

 a
n
d

 g
e

n
e
ra

l 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

Page 112



                                        

4
) 

T
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
S

y
s
te

m
 (

P
M

S
) 

in
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 i
n
 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 
m

o
re

 r
o
u
n
d
e
d
 i
n
te

lli
g
e
n
c
e
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
th

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
le

s
s
o
n
s
 l
e
a
rn

t 
fr

o
m

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 

a
u
d
it
s
 a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

C
&

Y
P

. 

 
N

e
w

 P
M

S
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

 
2

 s
c
o

re
 c

a
rd

s
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 o
n

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 (

C
P

 
P

la
n
s
, 
L
A

C
) 

 
4

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 s
c
o
re

 c
a

rd
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 
a
t 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 

 
S

c
o
re

 c
a
rd

 o
n

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n
a

l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

t 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 

 
S

c
o
re

 c
a
rd

 r
e
 C

&
Y

P
 w

h
o
 a

re
 m

is
s
in

g
 /
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 C

S
E

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
r 

la
s
t 
6
m

 o
f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

G
ra

d
u
a
l 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 d

a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

P
M

 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 
 Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 r

e
p
o

rt
s
 t
o
 L

S
C

B
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
  
b
y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
s
u
b
 

g
ro

u
p
 (

P
M

S
G

).
 

 T
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 d

a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
. 

 T
o
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
 P

M
F

 &
 A

u
d
it
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

. 
 

5
) 

T
o
 s

e
t 
u
p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 m

u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n
c
y
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 c

h
ild

 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
, 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 n

e
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 e

a
rl
y
 

in
te

rv
e
n

ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
. 
T

h
is

 
w

ill
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
S

C
R

 a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n

s
, 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 s
(1

1
) 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
 

  

 
A

u
d
it
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 s

e
t 
u
p
 w

it
h
 6

 s
tr

a
n
d
s
 

(d
ra

w
n
 f
ro

m
 S

C
R

s
, 
L
L
L
R

s
, 
s
1
1
 a

u
d
it
).

 

 
S

tr
a

n
d

 (
1
) 

in
it
ia

te
d

 –
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
a

n
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 

fo
r 

C
&

Y
P

 s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 C
P

 P
la

n
s
. 

 
A

u
d
it
 t
o
o
ls

 d
e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 f
o
r 

4
 o

th
e

r 
s
tr

a
n
d

s
 

  

 
P

a
c
e
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o

 b
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

d
u

ri
n
g

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

 
E

a
rl
y
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 f
ro

m
 s

tr
a
n
d
 (

1
) 

to
 b

e
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1

2
 

   
S

(1
1
) 

a
u
d
it
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 3

 S
e
c
to

r 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 

6
) 

A
u

d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 a

rr
a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
p

a
e

d
ia

tr
ic

 
m

e
d
ic

a
ls

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is

 p
la

n
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 s

o
m

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 r

a
is

e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

L
S

C
B

 a
b
o
u
t 
c
u
rr

e
n

t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
. 
 

  

 
C

o
h
o

rt
 f
o
r 

a
u
d
it
in

g
 a

g
re

e
d
 

 
T

o
 b

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 

7
) 

T
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
s
.(

1
1
) 

s
e
lf
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
u
d
it
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

s
e
e
k
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 

a
re

a
s
: 

 
U

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 w
h

e
n

 a
n

d
 h

o
w

 t
o

 
in

it
ia

te
 a

 C
A

F
 

 
E

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 C

&
Y

P
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 

th
e
ir
 r

ig
h

t 
to

 b
e
 s

a
fe

 f
ro

m
 a

b
u
s
e
 

 
S

(1
1
) 

a
u
d
it
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 f
o
r 

B
o
a
rd

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 
  . 

C
A

F
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 i
n

 2
0
1

1
/1

2
 

 . 
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
a
re

a
 f
o
r 

fo
c
u
s
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 S

1
1
 

A
u
d
it
s
 

 

 

Page 113



                                        

 
M

o
re

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

s
e
lf
-a

u
d
it
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 

. 
R

e
fi
n
e
d
 a

u
d
it
 t
o
o
l 
to

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 

 A
re

a
s
 f
o
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
: 

 
M

o
re

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
C

R
B

 c
h
e
c
k
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

 
E

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 m

o
re

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h
 

C
A

F
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 

 
8

) 
T

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n

t 
a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 t
o

 s
.(

1
1

) 
a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
h

a
t 
ta

k
e

s
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 f
a
c
e

d
 b

y
 s

m
a

ll 
T

h
ir
d

 s
e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 

 
C

o
m

m
o
n
, 
u
s
e
r 

fr
ie

n
d

ly
 s

(1
1

) 
a
u
d
it
 t
o
o
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

 
L
C

C
 C

S
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

 t
o
 u

s
e

 t
o
o
l 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 
o
f 
te

n
d
e
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e

s
. 

 
N

e
w

 t
o
o
l 
to

 b
e
 u

s
e
d

 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 –

 t
o
 

in
c
lu

d
e

 t
h

ir
d

 s
e
c
to

r 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 a
 w

id
e

r 
s
p
re

a
d
 o

f 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
. 

9
) 

T
o
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 e
n
g
a
g
e
 C

&
Y

P
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e
 L

S
C

B
 

 

 
S

lo
w

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 C

&
Y

P
 v

o
ic

e
 

a
n
d
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

  
C

&
Y

P
 w

e
re

 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
b
ra

n
d
in

g
 o

f 
L
S

C
B

 

 
C

S
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n

g
 d

e
la

y
e
d

 t
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
a
 d

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

w
o

rk
 

 
A

 B
o
a
rd

 w
o
rk

s
h
o
p

 i
s
 p

la
n

n
e
d
 f
o
r 

A
u
tu

m
n

 
2

0
1

2
 t
o

 b
u

ild
 o

n
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 
m

a
d

e
 w

it
h

 R
e

d
c
a

r 
a

n
d

 C
le

v
e

la
n
d

 J
u

n
io

r 
L

S
C

B
 

1
0
) 

T
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 Q

A
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 t
ra

in
in

g
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e
n

 
b

y
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 L

S
C

B
 

a
re

 o
f 
a
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 h

ig
h
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

. 
 

 
P

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
y
 L

e
v
e
l 
1
 t
ra

in
in

g
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 
Q

A
’d

 a
n
d
 a

m
e

n
d
e
d
 a

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a

te
. 

T
o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
. 

1
1
) 

T
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 m

o
re

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t
h
e
 

L
S

C
B

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
. 

 
 

  

 
Im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 (

3
m

 
a
ft

e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g

 e
v
e
n
t)

 d
is

s
e
m

in
a
te

d
 t
o
 a

ll 
a
tt

e
n
d
e
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
y
e
a
r.

 
  

 
In

c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 r

a
te

 t
o
 b

e
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 i
n
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

Page 114



                        

 1
2
) 

T
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

re
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
 t
o
, 

c
o
lle

c
ti
n
g
, 
c
o
lla

ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 a

n
a

ly
s
in

g
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 
c
h
ild

 d
e
a
th

s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 i
n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 m
a
n
n
e
r 

le
s
s
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 

m
a
y
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
e
n

ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
e
a
th

s
 

in
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
. 

 

 
R

e
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 a
t 
6

m
 a

n
d

 
1
2
m

. 

 
R

e
v
is

io
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

im
p
lif

y
 d

a
ta

 
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 a
n
d
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
. 

 
G

ra
d
u
a
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
ti
m

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r.

 

C
D

O
P

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 i
n

 
th

e
 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
re

 w
ri
te

 W
T

 2
0
1
2
. 

1
3
) 

T
o
 p

re
p
a
re

 t
o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

im
p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t
h
e
 ‘
M

u
n
ro

 R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

h
ild

 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

’ 

 
A

ll 
s
u

b
 g

ro
u
p
s
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h
e

 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 G

o
v
t’
s
 r

e
s
p
o
n

s
e
 t
o
 

M
u
n
ro

. 

 
L
S

C
B

 P
M

S
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o

 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

M
u

n
ro

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o
n

s
 

 
P

&
P

 s
u
b
 t
o
 l
e
a
d
 o

n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 W

T
 

c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

 
L
S

C
B

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 &

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 b

e
in

g
 

re
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
W

T
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

. 

Page 115



 1
0
.0

 
 1
0
.0

1
 

 1
0
.0

2
 

                                  

 C
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 –

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 L

S
C

B
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

   
A

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
is

 e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
n

e
w

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e

 L
S

C
B

 (
a
c
c
e
p
te

d
 o

n
 2

0
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
2
).

 
 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

: 
L

e
a
d

, 
L

is
te

n
, 
A

d
v
is

e
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
E

x
e
rc

is
e
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 l
e
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll
 s

ta
k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

: 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
 c

h
il

d
 f

ri
e

n
d

ly
 c

it
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
T

h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

T
B

, 
to

 p
ro

m
o
te

 c
o
n

s
o
lid

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

ts
 i
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h

e
 p

a
c
e

 o
f 
c
h

a
n
g

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

in
g

 p
e

ri
o

d
. 

 T
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
v
e
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h

 &
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

, 
a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
b

o
d

ie
s
 

 T
o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h
e
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 N

H
S

 t
o
 a

 n
e
w

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n
g

 h
e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

a
n

d
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

th
e

 n
e

w
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 s
tr

o
n

g
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 g
o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 k

e
e
p

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 s
a
fe

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

s
a

fe
g
u

a
rd

in
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

  
in

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
t 
th

e
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

ra
l 
c
h
a

n
g

e
s
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 r

e
-w

ri
te

 o
f 
W

o
rk

in
g
 T

o
g
e

th
e
r.

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 w
it
h
 L

e
e
d
s
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 A

d
u
lt
 B

o
a
rd

. 
 

 
 

    

 
 

 
In

fl
u

e
n

c
e
 t

h
e
 w

id
e

r 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 k

e
e
p

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 s

a
fe

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 a

g
re

e
 a

n
d
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 L
S

C
B

 V
o
ic

e
 &

 E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

C
&

Y
P

. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h
 f
a
it
h
 g

ro
u
p
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
T

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
C

h
ild

 S
e
x
u
a
l 
E

x
p
lo

it
a
ti
o
n
 (

C
S

E
) 

a
n
d
 ‘
w

h
a
t 
to

 
d
o
 i
f 
y
o
u
 a

re
 w

o
rr

ie
d
.’
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

Page 116



1
0
.0

3
 

                       1
0
.0

4
 

               

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 2

: 
L

e
a
rn

 a
n

d
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
ro

m
o

te
 c

h
il
d

-c
e
n

tr
e
d

 p
ra

c
ti

c
e

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 m

o
re

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 w
it
h
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d

 p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 d

ir
e
c
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

le
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 o

n
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
C

&
Y

P
. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

ro
m

o
te

 P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
J
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

t 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 w
o
rk

 t
o

 p
ro

d
u
c
e

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
 a

 P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

ro
m

o
te

 a
n

 “
a
d

a
p

ti
v
e
”
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 s
y
s
te

m
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
T

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 r
e
v
is

e
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
S

U
D

IC
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
is

e
 C

D
O

P
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e
s
 

 T
o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
im

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

 o
f 
th

e
 M

u
n
ro

 R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
 

to
 t
h

e
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 r
e
w

ri
te

 o
f 
‘W

o
rk

in
g
 "

T
o
g
e
th

e
r’
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
. 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 3

: 
K

n
o

w
 t

h
e
 S

to
ry

, 
C

h
a
ll

e
n

g
e
 t

h
e
 P

ra
c
ti

c
e
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

g
re

e
 w

h
a
t 

w
e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 k
n

o
w

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
 t
h
e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

d
a
ta

 i
s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
a
 l
o
c
a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

le
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.
 

 T
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o

 t
h
e
 C

it
y
’s

 p
ri
v
a
te

 f
o
s
te

ri
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 a
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 b
e

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 N
o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

. 
     

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 117



                                  1
0
.0

5
 

    

 
U

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
n

e
s

s
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 s
y
s

te
m

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

U
n

d
e
rs

ta
n

d
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
li

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o

c
a
l 
s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 s
y
s
te

m
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
T

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 a

n
d
 p

a
c
e
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 Q

A
 &

 A
u
d
it
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

  T
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 t
ru

ly
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 b

a
s
is

 f
o
r 

th
e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
y
s
te

m
 (

P
M

S
);

 b
y
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 m

o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

ta
 f
ro

m
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 w

id
e
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

. 
  T

o
 o

b
ta

in
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 A

u
d
it
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 T
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
S

(1
1

) 
c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 w

h
o

le
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
. 

 T
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 a

d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 O

B
A

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u

ra
n
c
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
p

a
rt

n
e

r 
a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o
n

 
to

 s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
s
o
 a

s
 t
o
 c

re
a
te

 g
re

a
te

r 
c
o

n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 i
n
 d

a
ta

 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
in

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o
n
 i
s
 m

o
re

 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 i
ts

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
. 

 T
o
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 t
o

 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 o

n
 h

o
w

 g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 f
o
r 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
. 

    

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
U

s
e
 t

h
e
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 g

a
in

e
d

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 s
y
s
te

m
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 a

 d
if

fe
re

n
c
e

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
P

M
S

 r
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
o
 t

h
e

 L
S

C
B

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g
 o

f 
s
a

fe
g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

is
s
u
e
s
 /
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 i
s
 u

p
 t
o
 d

a
te

 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

fo
r 

C
&

Y
P

. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
D

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n

g
 p

la
n

s
 f
o

r 
g

re
a

te
r 

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 a

n
d

 C
h

ild
re

n
 

a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 e

n
g

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 r

a
is

in
g

 
 

 
 

Page 118



 
 

 
 

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 c

a
p

a
c
it

y
 o

f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 i
n

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

o
 d

e
li
v
e

r 
c
o

re
 f

u
n

c
ti

o
n

s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

p
p
o
in

t 
la

y
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 t
o
 t
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Id

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 r

is
k
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
li

v
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
re

 f
u

n
c
ti

o
n

s
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
U

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e
 a

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 v

a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
s
e
tt

in
g
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1
1
.0

0
 

 1
1
.0

1
 

      1
1
.0

2
 

  1
1
.0

3
 

C
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

 T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 r
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 
a
 y

e
a
r 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 m
a
d

e
, 
b

o
th

 i
n
 h

o
w

 c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n

 L
e
e
d
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

n
d

 i
n

 h
o
w

 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 h

a
s
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
e
d

 i
n

 u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 i
ts

 r
e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
. 
T

h
e

 L
S

C
B

’s
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 t
o

 c
o

n
s
o

lid
a

te
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

in
 t
h
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
, 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

, 
a
n
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

 t
h
a
t 
to

o
k
 p

la
c
e

 d
u

ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 F
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 c

h
ild

 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
th

e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
0

/1
1
 t
o
 h

o
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
 o

rg
a

n
is

e
d

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 b
u
ilt

 u
p
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 ‘
re

b
a
la

n
c
in

g
’ 
o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t
o

w
a
rd

s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 a
n
d
 t
h
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 i
n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
e

d
. 
 

 T
h
e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 e

n
d
o
rs

e
m

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 u

n
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
d
 O

fs
te

d
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
1
, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

ta
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

a
s
 o

f 
p
ri
o
ri
ty

 a
c
ti
o
n
 h

a
d

 b
e
e

n
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e

d
 

a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
ta

c
t,

 r
e
fe

rr
a
l 
a
n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
, 
a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
p
a
rt

 o
f 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
, 
n
o
w

 m
e
t 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
. 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 n
o
 r

o
o
m

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

p
la

c
e
n
c
y
. 
T

h
e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e

s
 t
o
 t

h
e

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 T
ru

s
t 
B

o
a
rd

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

in
g
 y

e
a
r,

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 i
n

 s
e
c
ti
o
n

 9
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p
o
rt

, 
m

a
k
e
 i
t 
c
le

a
r 

th
a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

m
u
c
h
 t
o
 d

o
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
s
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
iv

e
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n

 a
n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
T

h
e

 c
h
a

lle
n
g
e

s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
, 
d

e
ta

ile
d

 i
n

 s
e
c
ti
o

n
 1

0
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 h

ig
h
lig

h
t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o

r 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

in
g

 y
e
a
r 

to
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 g

a
th

e
r 

a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
d
e
ta

ile
d
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
w

h
e
th

e
r 

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n
 c

h
ild

re
n
’s

 l
iv

e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
. 

 
 

 
 1
2
.0

 
 1
2

.0
1
 

   1
2

.0
2
 

 N
e
x
t 
S

te
p
s
 

 T
h
is

 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

T
B

 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
. 
T

h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 T
ru

s
t 

B
o
a
rd

 i
n
 t
u
rn

 w
ill

 w
a
n
t 
to

 g
iv

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

, 
h
o
w

 t
h
e
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
in

d
in

g
s
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 t

h
e
 L

S
C

B
 i
s
 b

ri
n
g
in

g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

T
B

’s
 a

tt
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 w

ill
 w

a
n
t 
to

 t
a
k
e

 t
h
e
m

 i
n
to

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 w

h
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g

 P
e
o
p
le

’s
 P

la
n
. 
 

 T
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 L

e
a

d
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 t
h
e

 C
o
u
n

c
il 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 
th

e
 P

o
lic

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 (

in
 l
ie

u
 o

f 
th

e
 

lo
c
a
l 
P

o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 C

ri
m

e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

r)
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

 (
H

W
B

).
 I
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S

a
fe

r 
L

e
e
d
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t
h
e
 H

W
B

. 
It
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 s

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
a
ll 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h

 a
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 
th

a
t 
it
 i
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 b

o
d
y
. 

 
 

Page 119



 
1
3
.0

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ic

e
s
: 

 1
. 
L
S

C
B

 S
tr

u
c
tu

re
 C

h
a
rt

 
2

. 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
L

S
C

B
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 (

2
0

1
1

/1
2
) 

3
. 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 a
n
d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
s
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 

4
. 
L
S

C
B

 e
n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 
5
. 
C

D
O

P
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 d
a
te

 2
0
1
1
 

   
 

Page 120



 

 

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) 

Date: 11th October 2012 

Subject: Work Schedule 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to consider the Scrutiny Board’s work schedule for the 
forthcoming municipal year. 

 
2 Main Issues 
   
2.1 A draft work schedule is attached as appendix 1.  The work programme has been 

provisionally completed pending on going discussions with the Board.  The work 
schedule will be subject to change throughout the municipal year. 

 
2.2 Also attached as appendix 2 is the Council’s current Forward Plan.  
  
3. Recommendations 
 
3.1 Members are asked to: 
 

a) Consider the draft work schedule and make amendments as appropriate.  
b) Note the Forward Plan 

 

4.  Background papers  

None used 

 Report author:  S Newbould 

Tel:  24 74792 

Agenda Item 9

Page 121



Page 122

This page is intentionally left blank



Draft Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Work Schedule for 2012/2013 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

  Schedule of meetings/visits during 2012/13 

Area of review June July August 
 

Inquiries  Agree scope of review for 
*∗
 

1) Private/Independent Care Homes 
2) Private Fostering 
  

Evidence Gathering  
Private/Independent Care Homes 
Private Fostering 

Agree scope of review for 
*∗
 

4) The best start  – providing good foundations in early life 
for children to succeed 

Annual work programme 
setting - Board initiated pieces 
of Scrutiny work (if applicable) 

Consider potential 
areas of review  

  

Budget Update  Budget 2012/13   
 

 

Care Home Review   
 

Deferred report from April plus update  

Scrutiny Inquiry – Directors 
Response 

 • Attendance,  Child Poverty, Service 
Redesign 

• Young People engagement in 
Culture (SEC Board – for info only)* 

 

Recommendation Tracking  External Placements Inquiry  
 

Performance Monitoring Quarter 4 Performance 
Report 
 

  

Working Groups 
1) Child Poverty 
2) Youth Services 
3) Social Services Care System 
4) Education Challenge 

 Youth Services- 26
th
 of July @2pm – Ken 

Morton Lead 
 
 
 

Call In – Young Carers Working Group – 5
th
 September 

10am – Civic Hall  
 
 
 
 
 

                                            
∗ Prepared by S Newbould 
 
 

 

P
age 123



Draft Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Work Schedule for 2012/2013 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 
 

Schedule of meetings/visits during 2012/13 

Area of review September October November 
 

Inquiries Evidence Gathering  
The best start  – providing 
good foundations in early 
life for children to succeed 
 

Agree scope of review for 
*∗
 

3) Education Challenge – 
supporting children to 
achieve in Maths and 
English 

 

Evidence Gathering 
The best start  – providing good 
foundations in early life for children to 
succeed 
 
 

Evidence Gathering  
The best start  – providing good foundations in 
early life for children to succeed 
 

Board Agree Reports∗ 

• Private/Independent Care Homes 
• Private Fostering 
 
Board Agree Report * 
Increasing the number of young people who are in 
EET 
 

Exec Board Request for 
Scrutiny 

Basic Need 2012: Carr 
Manor and Roundhay: All 
Through Schools 
Revised Costs 

  

Recommendation Tracking  
 

 • Attendance Inquiry 

• Service Redesign Inquiry 

• External Placement Inquiry 

• Pre 2012 outstanding recommendations 

Performance Monitoring Quarter 1 performance 
report  
 

Leeds Safeguarding Children – Annual 
Report 

 

Working Groups 
1) Child Poverty 
2) Youth Services 
3) Social Services Care 
System 
4) Education Challenge 

 
 

• Child Poverty Update and 
Recommendation Tracking – date 
tbc 

• Youth Services – 2nd October 
@2pm – Ken Morton Lead 

 

Inquiry - Education Challenge – supporting 
children to achieve in Maths and English 
 
Social Services Care System 

                                            
 
∗ Prepared by S Newbould 

P
age 124



Draft Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Work Schedule for 2012/2013 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 
 Schedule of meetings/visits during 2012/13 

Area of review December January February 

Inquiries  Directors Response 
Private/Independent Care Homes 
Private Fostering 
NEET Report 

Report to be Agreed∗ 
The best start  – providing good foundations 
in early life for children to succeed 
 

 

Budget  Budget Update, Including School Budget 
Reform. 
 

 

Academies  The Board to consider the implications 
of Academies for the Local Authority 
and Education in general. 

  

Safeguarding Update 
 

Subject to date of Ofsted inspection – 
Lead Steve Walker 

  

Performance Monitoring Quarter 2 performance report 
 
 

Common Assessment Framework- 
To consider if improvement have been 
established with a view to increasing the 
number of CAF’s undertaken. – Lead Steve 
Walker 

 

Working Groups 
1) Child Poverty 
2) Youth Services 
3) Social Services Care 
System 
4) Education Challenge 
inquiry 

Inquiry Education Challenge – 
supporting children to achieve in Maths 
and English 
 
Youth Services? 

Child Poverty Update and Recommendation 
Tracking 
 
Inquiry - Education Challenge – supporting 
children to achieve in Maths and English. 

 

                                            
∗ Prepared by S Newbould 

P
age 125



Draft Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Work Schedule for 2012/2013 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 
 

 Schedule of meetings/visits during 2012/13 

Area of review March April May 

Inquiries Report to be Agreed* 
Education Challenge – supporting children to 
achieve in Maths and English 

 

Directors Response 
The best start  – providing good 
foundations in early life for children to 
succeed                    and 
Education Challenge – supporting 
children to achieve in Maths and English 
 

 

Partnership Review - 
Children’s Trust Board  
 

To review the performance of the Children’s 
Trust Board.  

  

Budget and Policy 
Framework 

 Children and Young Peoples Plan – to 
be agreed by Council July 2013 
 

 

Recommendation Tracking • Attendance Inquiry 

• Service Redesign Inquiry 

• External Placement Inquiry 

• Pre 2012 outstanding 
recommendations 

 

  

Performance Monitoring Quarter 3 performance report 
 

  

Working Groups 
 
1) Child Poverty 
2) Youth Services 
3) Social Services Care 
System 
4) Education Challenge 
Inquiry 

Youth Services  
 
 

Child Poverty Update and 
Recommendation Tracking 

 

 
Need to schedule Ofsted report                                                   Updated 3rd October 2012 

P
age 126



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 
Scrutiny Board – Children and Families 

 
 

1 October 2012 – 31 January 2013 
 
 

P
age 127



 

What is the Forward Plan? 
 
The Forward Plan is a list of the key decisions the Authority intends to take during the period 1 October 2012 – 31 January 
2013.  A new Plan is issued on a monthly basis, but the Plan is updated as often as required during that month.  Details 
of each key decision will be available to the public 28 clear days before the decision is due to be taken. 
 
What is a Key Decision? 
 
A Key decision, as defined in the Council’s Constitution is an executive decision which is likely to: 
 

• result in the Authority incurring expenditure or making savings over £250,000 per annum, or 
• have a significant effect on communities living or working in an area comprising one or more wards. 
 
Article 13 of the Council’s Constitution provides more details about which decisions will be treated as key decisions. 
 
What does the Forward Plan tell me? 
 
The Plan gives information about: 
 
Ø  what key decisions are due to be taken in the next four months 
Ø  when those key decisions are likely to be made 
Ø  who will make those decisions 
Ø  what consultation will be undertaken 
Ø  the documents that will be considered by the decision maker and where these can be accessed, and how other 

documents which may become available to the decision maker at a later date can be requested  
 
 
 

P
age 128



Who takes key decisions? 
 
Under the Authority’s Constitution, key decisions are taken by the Executive Board or Officers acting under delegated 
powers. 
 
Who can I contact? 
 
The contact details of a lead officer are provided for each key decision listed in the Plan.  In addition, the last page of 
the Forward Plan gives a complete list of all Executive Board members.  If you are unsure how to make contact, please 
ring Leeds City Council on 0113 222 4444 and staff there will be able to assist you. 
 
How do I get copies of the documents being considered by the decision maker? 
 
The Plan lists the documents (meaning any report or background papers, other than those only in draft form) which will 
be taken into consideration by the decision maker in relation to any key decision.   
 
The agenda papers for Executive Board meetings1, and the documents being considered by officers taking key 
decisions2, are available five working days beforehand on the Council’s website (using the links below) and from the 
following address: 
 

Governance Services, 4th Floor West, Civic Hall, Portland Crescent, Leeds, LS1 1UR 
Telephone: 0113 39 52194 / Fax: 0113 3951599 

Email: cxd.councilandexec@leeds.gov.uk 
 
If you wish to obtain copies or extracts of any other listed documents you should contact the lead officer for the 
particular key decision named on the Plan.  Other documents relevant to the key decision may be submitted to the 

                                            
1
 http://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=102&Year=2012  
2
 http://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?bcr=1&DM=4  

P
age 129



decision maker at any time before the decision is made.  If you wish to receive details of those documents as they 
become available, please contact the lead officer for the particular key decision named on the Plan. 
 
Sometimes the papers you request may contain exempt or confidential information.  If this is the case, it will be 
explained why it will not be possible to make copies available. 
 
Where can I see a copy of the Forward Plan? 
 
The Plan can be found on the Leeds City Council website.  The Plan will be issued once a month on or before the 
following dates, and will be updated as often as required between these dates: 
 

Publication date Period covered by the Plan 

Friday 31st August 1st October 2012 – 31st January 2013 

Wednesday 3rd October 1st November 2012 – 28th February 2013 

Friday 2nd November 1st December 2012 – 31st March 2013 

Monday 3rd December 1st January 2013 – 30th April 2013 

Thursday 3rd January 1st February 2013 – 31st May 2013 

Thursday 31st January 1st March 2013 – 30th June 2013 

Friday 1st March 1st April 2013 – 31st July 2013 

Tuesday 2nd April 1st May 2013 – 31st August 2013 

About this publication 

 
For enquiries about the Forward Plan of Key Decisions please e-mail: cxd.corporategovern@leeds.gov.uk or telephone: 
0113 39 51712. 
 

P
age 130



Visit our website www.leeds.gov.uk  for more information on council services, departments, plans and reports. 
 
This publication can also be made available in Braille or audio cassette.  Please call: 0113 22 4444. 
 
If you do not speak English and need help in understanding this document, please phone: 0113 22 4444 and state the 
name of your language.  We will then make arrangements for an interpreter to contact you.  We can assist with any 
language and there is no charge for interpretation. 
 
(Bengali):- 

 
(Chinese):- 

 
(Hindi):- 

 
(Punjabi):- 

 
(Urdu):- 

P
age 131



 

P
age 132



FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 
 
For the period 1 October 2012 to 31 January 2013 
 

Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by 
Decision Maker 

Lead Officer 
 

Contract with Leeds 
Community Healthcare 
Request to waive Contracts 
Procedure Rule 13 and 
enter into a new contract 
with Leeds Community 
Healthcare. 

Director of 
Children's 
Services 
 
 

1/10/12 n/a 
 
 

Waiver Report 
 

Paul Bollom, Interim 
Lead Commissioner 
for Children's 
Services 
 
paul.bollom@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

Disabled Facilities Grant 
2012/13 
To grant authority to spend 
approx £6,670,000 for a 
category B capital scheme – 
Capital Scheme 98040, 
Category B DOD.  
Assistance for private 
residents city wide, towards 
the provision of adaptations 
to the home. 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 
 

1/10/12 Consultations are ongoing 
with Executive Member 
for Environment and 
Neighbourhoods and 
regular Scrutiny Board 
reports. 
 
 

Design and Cost 
Report and 
delegated 
decision report 
 

Colin Moss, 
Adaptations Agency 
Manager 
 
colin.moss@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

P
age 133



Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by 
Decision Maker 

Lead Officer 
 

 

Framework Agreement for 
the Procuring of fixed play 
ground equipment including 
MUGAs, teen shelters and 
skateboard BMX equipment 
Awarding of the 
Framework Contract for 
the supply and 
installation of playground 
equipment for a period of 
3 years from the 1st 
March  2012 with the 
option to extend for a 
further 2 years if so 
required. 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 
 

1/10/12 Parks and Countryside, 
Procurement Unit. 
 
 

Tender Returns 
 

Neil Evans, Director 
of Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 
neil.evans@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

Implementing a new 
children's services structure 
through the restructure of 
existing provision 
To take one or more 
decisions in connection with 
the proposals for the new 
structure including the 
restructure of existing 
provision. 

Director of 
Children's 
Services 
 
 

1/10/12 Staff, Trade Unions 
 
 

Delegated 
Decision Report 
and relevant 
structure charts 
 

Nigel Richardson, 
Director of Children's 
Services 
 
nigel.richardson@lee
ds.gov.uk 
 

P
age 134



Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by 
Decision Maker 

Lead Officer 
 

 

Schools devolved formula 
capital budgets 2012/13 
Approval to carry out capital 
works and incur expenditure 
at Leeds schools, to be 
funded by Devolved 
Formula Capital Grant. 

Director of 
Children's 
Services 
 
 

1/10/12 Schools (excluding VA 
schools and Academies) 
 
 

Design and cost 
report 
 

Charlotte Foley, Lead 
Officer for the Built 
Environment 
 
charlotte.foley@leeds
.gov.uk 
 

Troubled Families 
Programme 
Approval of initial spending 
profile for Troubled Families 
programme. Approximately 
£2.3 million will be made 
available to Leeds from the 
DCLG in 2012/13 to work 
with families to positively 
impact on a range of issues 
including worklessness, 
crime, anti-social behaviour 
and school attendance. 

Director of 
Children's 
Services 
 
 

1/10/12 Consultation on the 
direction of travel of the 
troubled families 
programme, including an 
outline of an options 
appraisal for spending 
have been presented to 
Corporate Leadership 
Team, Children’s Service 
Leadership Team, 
Children’s Trust Board, 
Safer Leeds Executive 
and the Troubled Families 
Programme Board. 
 
 

Programme 
Board Mandate, 
Troubled Families 
Financial 
framework, 
Options Appraisal 
(to follow) 
 

Jim Hopkinson, Head 
of Service - Targeted 
Services 
 
jim.hopkinson@leeds
.gov.uk 
 

P
age 135



Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by 
Decision Maker 

Lead Officer 
 

 

Youth Contract: Support for 
16-17 year olds who are not 
in education, Employment 
or Training 
To approve £815k of fully 
funded expenditure into the 
Children’s Services 12-13 
budget. 

Director of 
Children's 
Services 
 
 

1/10/12 Elected Members 
 
 

Funding Letter 
 

Ken Morton, Head of 
Service - Young 
People & Skills 
 
ken.morton@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

Youth Inclusion Projects, 
Inclusion Service, 
Substance Misuse 
Treatment 
To agree the waiver of 
Contract Procedure Rule 13 
to enter into contracts for 
the provision of: Youth 
Inclusion Projects; Inclusion 
Services; and Substance 
Misuse Treatment. 

Director of 
Children's 
Services 
 
 

1/10/12 Children’s Services 
Directorate, Procurement 
Unit, Chief Officer 
Concerned 
 
 

Proposals from 
the existing 
contracted 
providers 
 

Iain Dunn, Strategic 
Category Manager 
 
iain.dunn@leeds.gov.
uk 
 

Yewtree and Rosewood 
Extra Care Provision 
To award a contract to 
Methodist Homes 
Association to provide 65 
housing tenancies for older 
people residing in the Moor 
Allerton extra care housing 
provision. 

Director of Adult 
Social Services 
 
 

11/10/12 Project Board and the 
Health and Social Care 
Executive Board Member 
 
 

Report to the 
Director of Adult 
Social Services 
 

Susan Gamblen, 
Commissioning 
Manager for Older 
People's Services 
 
susan.gamblen@leed
s.gov.uk 
 

P
age 136



Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by 
Decision Maker 

Lead Officer 
 

 

Outcome of competitions for 
two new primary schools 
To determine the outcome 
of the competitions held to 
open two new primary 
schools. 

Executive Board 
Portfolio: 
Children's 
Services 
 

17/10/12 The competitions were 
approved following formal 
statutory consultation held 
12 Sep – 11 Oct 2011. This 
included consultation with 
and members directly and 
through area committees, 
and with all other 
stakeholders. Following the 
competition, a statutory 
notice was published 
describing the bids received, 
and advertised to ward 
members and all other 
stakeholders. A public 
meeting was held during the 
notice period, to allow 
members of the public and 
other stakeholders to find 
out more about the bids. 
Information on the views 
expressed during that notice 
period form the basis of the 
report.  

 
 

The report to be 
issued to the 
decision maker 
with the agenda 
for the meeting 
 

Stuart Gosney, 
Capacity Planning 
and Sufficiency Lead 
 
stuart.gosney@leeds,
gov.uk 
 

P
age 137



Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by 
Decision Maker 

Lead Officer 
 

 

Tour de France: Le Grand 
Depart 
To approve the contract with 
Welcome to Yorkshire to 
attract the Tour de France 
to Leeds. 

Executive Board 
Portfolio: Leisure 
and Skills 
 

17/10/12 Executive Member for 
Leisure, Welcome to 
Yorkshire, Yorkshire and 
Humber Chief Executive’s 
Group. 
 
 

The report to be 
issued to the 
decision maker 
with the agenda 
for the meeting 
 

Catherine Blanshard, 
Chief Libraries, Arts 
and Heritage Officer, 
Learning and Leisure 
 
 
 

P
age 138



Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by 
Decision Maker 

Lead Officer 
 

 

Award of contract for 
Targeted Information, 
Advice and Guidance (IAG) 
Service for young people 
The award of a contract to 
the successful applicant in 
the procurement of a 
Targeted IAG Service for 
young people. Contract for 
1st April 2013- 31st March 
2015, with 3 extension 
periods of 1 year. 

Director of 
Children's 
Services 
 
 

1/11/12 Children’s Services 
Leadership Team – w/c 
26/11/12.  
Consultation that has 
already taken place: 

• An event for 
stakeholders, 
including elected 
members, to be 
involved in planning to 
shape the new 
service took place in 
January 2012. 

• A soft market testing 
exercise has been 
conducted with the 
market place to seek 
their views on 
contracting models. 

• Consultation took 
place with young 
people Feb – April 
2012. 

• Consultation with 
voluntary sector 
representatives from 
Young Lives Leeds on 
25th July 2012. 

 
 

Contract award 
report 
 

Mary Brittle, 
Commissioning 
Programme Manager 
(Learning & Skills) 
 
mary.brittle@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

P
age 139



Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by 
Decision Maker 

Lead Officer 
 

 

Inclusion Support for 
Disabled children, young 
people and parent carers 
Request to award a 3(+1+1) 
year contract from 1st April 
2013 for the provision of the 
Leeds Inclusion Support 
Service to the successful 
bidder following competitive 
tendering exercise 

Director of 
Children's 
Services 
 
 

1/11/12 Extensive consultation 
with stakeholders, 
including disabled 
children and their families 
has been undertaken. 
Further consultation will 
take place with providers 
as part of the 
procurement exercise. 
Regular briefings will take 
place for the Executive 
and Lead Member for 
Children’s Services. 
 
 

Delegated 
Decision Report 
 

Paul Bollom, Interim 
Lead Commissioner 
for Children's 
Services 
 
 
 

Transfer of Gypsy and 
Traveller site into the 
Housing Revenue Account 
The report sets out the 
proposals to transfer the 
income and expenditure of 
the Gypsy and Traveller site 
into the Housing Revenue 
Account 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 
 

Between  
1/11/12 and 
30/11/12 

Ward Members 
 
 

EIA Screening 
 

Megan Godsell, 
Housing Policy 
Manager 
 
megan.godsell@leed
s.gov.uk 
 

P
age 140



Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by 
Decision Maker 

Lead Officer 
 

 

A strategic review of the 
Leeds " Youth Offer" 
To delegate a budget 
from April 2013 to Area 
Committees so that they 
can commission 
activities (places to go, 
things to do for young 
people) which engage 
young people. 
To restructure the Youth 
Service and end their 
‘generalist’ role within the 
overall Youth Offer, to 
have a clearly defined 
delivery role, which 
better meets more 
targeted need, whilst 
enshrining the 
significance of 
professional youth work. 
To determine if resource 
available for youth work 
which meets more targeted 
need should be subject to 
competition 

Executive Board 
Portfolio:Children'
s Services 
 

7/11/12 A consultant has 
conducted an elected 
member led review 
engaging with over 
40 stakeholders 
sessions with elected 
members, young 
people, staff  and 
voluntary and 
community faith 
partners. 
The principles and 
propositions from the 
review will be widely 
circulated with 
responses fed into 
the review. 

 
 
 

The report to be 
issued to the 
decision maker 
with the agenda 
for the meeting 
 

Ken Morton, Head of 
Service - Young 
People & Skills 
 
ken.morton@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

P
age 141



Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by 
Decision Maker 

Lead Officer 
 

 

Tropical World 
Refurbishment 
To approve the design and 
cost report for the proposed 
Tropical World 
refurbishment. 

Executive Board 
Portfolio: The 
Environment 
 

7/11/12 Consultation will 
commence once 
Executive Board have 
agreed in principle to 
inject funds into a capital 
scheme 
 
 

The report to be 
issued to the 
decision maker 
with the agenda 
for the meeting 
 

Sean Flesher, Head 
of Parks and 
Countryside 
 
sean.flesher@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

Outcome of consultation on 
expansion of school places 
for 2014 
Permission to publish 
statutory notices for the 
proposals 

Executive Board 
Portfolio: 
Children's 
Services 
 

12/12/12 The report will 
summarise the formal 
statutory 6 week 
consultation period 
held 11 June to 27 July 
2012 with prescribed 
consultees and other 
local stakeholders.  
This includes area 
committees and all 
ward members city 
wide. 
 
 

The report to be 
issued to the 
decision maker 
with the agenda 
for the meeting 
 

Stuart Gosney, 
Capacity Planning 
and Sufficiency Lead 
 
stuart.gosney@leeds.
gov.uk 
 

P
age 142



Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by 
Decision Maker 

Lead Officer 
 

 

Outcome of consultation on 
expansion of school places 
for 2014 
Permission to publish 
statutory notices for the 
proposals 

Executive Board 
Portfolio: 
Children's 
Services 
 

12/12/12 The report will 
summarise the formal 
statutory 6 week 
consultation period 
held 11 June to 27 July 
2012 with prescribed 
consultees and other 
local stakeholders.  
This includes area 
committees and all 
ward members city 
wide. 
 
 

The report to be 
issued to the 
decision maker 
with the agenda 
for the meeting 
 

Stuart Gosney, 
Capacity Planning 
and Sufficiency Lead 
 
stuart.gosney@leeds.
gov.uk 
 

Schools Funding - Changes 
to the way schools are 
funded 
To agree the new factors to 
approve school funding 
formula’s 

Executive Board 
Portfolio: 
Children's 
Services 
 

12/12/12 Schools Forum, 
Governing Bodies 
 
 

The report to be 
issued to the 
decision maker 
with the agenda 
for the meeting 
 

Simon Darby, School 
Funding and 
Initiatives Team 
Leader 
 
simon.darby@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

 

P
age 143



 
MEMBERSHIP OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD 

 

Executive Board Portfolios Executive Member 
 

Leader of Council Councillor Keith Wakefield 

Deputy Leader and Executive Member for Children’s Services Councillor Judith Blake 

Deputy Leader and Executive Member for Neighbourhoods, Planning and Support Services Councillor Peter Gruen 

Executive Member for Leisure and Skills Councillor Adam Ogilvie 

Executive Member for Development and the Economy Councillor Richard Lewis 

Executive Member for the Environment Councillor Mark Dobson 

Executive Member Adult Social Care Councillor Lucinda Yeadon 

Executive Member for Health and Well Being Councillor Lisa Mulherin 

 
In cases where Key Decisions to be taken by the Executive Board are not included in the Plan, 5 days notice of the intention to take such 
decisions will be given by way of the agenda for the Executive Board meeting.  
 

P
age 144


	Agenda
	7 Scrutiny Inquiry - Foundation Years - providing the best start in life for Children to succeed - Session 2
	Foundation Years - Session 2 - Appendix a
	Foundation Years - Session 2 - Appendix b
	Foundation Years - Session 2 - Appendix c
	Foundation Years - Session 2 - Appendix d
	Foundation Years - Session 2 - Appendix e

	8 Leeds Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report 2011/12
	Leeds Safeguarding Childrens Board

	9 Work Schedule
	Work Schedule - Appendix 1
	Work Schedule - Appendix 2


